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CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW 
 
 
1.1 Foreword by the Executive Mayor 

 

We are pleased to present the 2004-2005 Annual 

Report of the Mangaung Local Municipality (MLM). 

This Report is prepared in accordance with the 

Municipal Financial Management Act (MFMA) and 

contains the following primary components: 

 

§ MLM’s performance report, presenting our 

accomplishments and results for the year as 

compared to our Integrated Development 

Plan (IDP) and Budget commitments; 

§ The Annual Financial Statements and the 

Auditor General’s report on his audit of those 

statements; his review of our performance 

measurement processes. 

 

In preparing this Report, we have focused on 

MLM’s strategic goals, as committed to in our IDP, 

and describe our performance towards the 

achievement of our identified priorities.  Our 

priorities were drawn from our citizens’ stated 

expectations, collected and compiled during our 

extensive community consultations, and from 

communications with our Councillors and the 

employees of the municipality.   

 

Our Council and officials have shown themselves 

ready to meet our citizens' expectations for 

improved service delivery and are responding with 

imaginative and innovative solutions. This has 

required delivering programs and services from our 

citizens’ perspective and exploring new 

organization solutions, including partnerships with 

other levels of government and private entities.   

 

While there is still a long way to go, it is important 

to recognize the progress that is being made.  

Following are just a few highlights of the 

accomplishments and progress made during the 

2004/2005 financial year to deliver on our 

commitments to the approximately 160,000 

households of MLM: 

  

§ Over 6,000 additional households now have 

water service; 

§ Over 13,000 additional households have at 

least a basic level of sanitation service;  

§ For the first time in 2004/2005, we are now 

providing 100 percent of households with 

refuse removal services; 

§ Significant progress on roads - tarring of an 

additional 18 kilometers; gravelling of an 

additional 71 kilometers; and resealing of an 

additional 53 kilometers of existing roads; 

§ Continued development and coordination of our 

comprehensive and aggressive HIV/AIDS 

programs; 

§ Continued strong financial management and 

performance, as reflected by the reaffirmation 

of our high quality credit rating by an external 

rating service. 
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These services and performance are fulfilling our 

mandate in accordance with our IDP, our budget 

and the values of our municipality. They are 

respecting the fundamental principles of 

responsible government and accountability. They 

are reaffirming the commitment to service. They are 

signaling that service can be improved by an 

integrated approach among directorates and 

among governments.  

  

An uncompromising commitment to quality service 

is a fundamental responsibility of your local 

government.  Though we have not yet achieved all 

of the lofty goals that our citizens expect from us, 

we recognize and reaffirm out commitment to you 

that service delivery, service quality, and value 

must continuously be improved.  The many strides 

and improvements that are being made bode well 

for the future.  

 
Through this report, we place ourselves at, and 

welcome your judgment.  We commit to an even 

greater focus on listening to and learning from you, 

the citizens and owners of this municipality.  In so 

doing, we will continue to raise our performance 

and service delivery to the levels required to meet 

all our citizens’ needs and expectations. 

 

 

 

Clr GETRUDE MOTHUPI 

Executive Mayor 

Mangaung Local Municipality 
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1.2 Overview of the Municipality 

 

The name of the municipality 

 

The name Mangaung loosely means ‘place of 

Cheetahs’. Mangaung has been a historic major 

settlement for black inhabitants since the 

establishment of Bloemfontein. 

 

The oldest township in Mangaung, Batho, 

established in 1873, is situated just outside the 

central business district of Bloemfontein. As home 

to such historical relics as the Maphikela house (the 

birthplace of the African National Congress) it 

prompted the naming of the entire municipal area 

as Mangaung. 

 

The geographic profile  

 

The Mangaung municipality covers an area of 6 

285 km² and is located at the heart of the Free 

State province. The municipality consists of three 

urban areas, namely the City of Bloemfontein, the 

‘peri-urban’ towns of Botshabelo and Thaba Nchu, 

and a large rural area. The spatial frameworks of 

the three urban areas are shaped by their very 

different histories, and this background will continue 

to impact on the economic and social lives of the 

residents for a long time to come. 

 

Bloemfont ein is the economic hub of the municipal 

area, with an economy based mainly on services 

and government. It has the largest population 

share, with considerable inward migration to 

Bloemfontein from within the region.  

 

Botshabelo was established in 1978 as an 

apartheid engineered town for the displaced 

Basotho people in the Free State. Most of the 

present inhabitants moved to the town from rural 

farms. The settlement was designed as an 

elongated town with a small shopping facility in the 

centre, and an indus trial area on the northern side 

next to the N8. Botshabelo is also a dormitory town 

for workers in Bloemfontein. 

 

Thaba Nchu has been the home of the Tswana 

people in the Free State for more that 180 years 

and was an ‘island’ of Bophuthatswana in the 

apartheid era. Thaba Nchu consists of both an 

urban area with private land ownership and a rural 

area of both private and communal land with people 

living in 31 scattered villages in the area. Thaba 

Nchu has a strong rural character and is mainly a 

dormitory town for workers in Bloemfontein.   

 

Figure 1 shows the location of Mangaung in the 

Free State and Figure 2 the relative positions of the 

main towns in Mangaung. 
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Figure 1.1: Mangaung in the Free State Province 
 

 
 

 
 

Figure 1.2: The Mangaung Area 
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Demographic profile  

 

Mangaung is the most densely populated area in the 

Free State with 104 people per km2, and has 24% of 

the total Free State province’s population. It also 

contains 89% of the total population of the Motheo 

District Municipal area (FSPG, 2001). There have 

been considerable changes in Mangaung’s 

population over the last 20 years, with the creation of 

Botshabelo and rural -urban migration.  

 

Table 1.1 shows the projected population figures from 

the IDP . 

 

However, these do not fully illustrate the impact of 

HIV. Until the 2001 census figures were published, 

there were no reliable figures on which to base the 

total or relative populations of the different areas 

within Mangaung. 

 
Table 1.1: Mangaung Population by Area     

                    
 

Area 
Census 

1996 

Census 

2001 

Projected 

2005 

Projected 

2010 

Bloemfontein 334 639 364 734 394 448 434 908 

Botshabelo 177 971 175 392 247 785 278 891 

Thaba Nchu 90 143 67 064 120 263 135 405 

Rural 38 606 38 242 40 471 41 978 

Total  641 359 645441 803 238 891 272 
Source: MLM IDP, 2005/06 

 

Over three quarters of the population is black, 46% 

are of a working age (20-65). 

 

 
Table 1.2: Demographic structure of the population of   
                 Mangaung 
 

Age  % of the Population 

>4 8,7 

5-19 30,4 

20-65 55,8 

>65 5 

unknown 1 
 
Source: Statistics SA 2001 

 

Economic profile  

 
Table 1.3: Sectoral Contribution to Employment           

 

% of employment 
Sector 

2004 2005 

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing 5.7 5.8 

Mine/ Quarry 0.2 0.2 

Manufacturing 10.1 9.98 

Electricity, Gas, Water 1.2 1.2 

Construction 4.1 3.95 

Trade, Catering, Accommodation 13.0 12.83 

Transport, Communication 4.5 4.67 

Finance and Real Estate 7.9 8.22 

Community Service 38.4 38.4 
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1.3 Executive Summary  

 

 Our vision 

 

In terms of the IDP, the following is presented as 

the vision of the municipality:  

 

‘By 2015 Mangaung is recognised nationally and 

internationally as a safe and attractive place to 

live, work and invest.  

 

There are good and accessible basic services for 

all and a dynamic economy with a high 

employment rate, many innovative formal 

businesses and a highly skilled workforce.  

 

Mangaung’s citizens have great civic pride, 

responsibility and strong partnership ethics and 

there is a vibrant cultural life. Citizens participate 

actively and trust their service providers, who 

operate with a culture of transparency and 

accountability.  

 

Poverty has reduced, everyone has access to land 

and housing, there is a much more equitable 

distribution of wealth and health and 

disadvantaged groups are participating actively in 

society and the economy’. 

 

Statement of goals and priorities 

 

The following are overall strategic goals and 

priorities of the municipality: 

• To provide strong civic leadership and good 

governance which builds stakeholder 

confidence and engenders a strong sense of 

common purpose among all stakeholders; 

• To transform and build an efficient 

administration that cares and serves the 

people of Mangaung with excellence;  

• Ensure economic growth and creation of jobs; 

• Ensure an attractive environment with clean, 

well kept natural spaces, parks and well 

maintained built environment; 

• Ensure that Mangaung is a safe and secure 

place to live in, visit and do business in; 

• All households have access to basic services; 

• Ensure the provision of affordable housing to 

the poor. 

• Contribute to the reduction of HIV/AIDS, 

teenage pregnancy and crime rate in the 

community. 

• To ensure that the finances of the municipality 

are managed sustainably.  

 

Statement of the municipality’s relative financial 

viability 

 

The municipality’s financial position and viability 

remain strong.  MLM has maintained its credit rating 

profile from that of the previous financial period. This 

is an independent evaluation done by a third party 

contractor. Their evaluation of the municipality’s 

financial strength was as follows:  
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Short-term debt: High Grade - A1: Very high 

certainty of timely payment. Liquidity factors are 

excellent and supported by good fundamental 

protection factors. Risk factors are minor. 

 

Long-term debt: Investment Grade - A: High credit 

quality. Protection factors are good. However, risk 

factors are more variable and greater in periods of 

economic stress.   

 

The rating is based on the following key factors: 

    

• MLM displays a sound financial profile, as 

evidenced by its healthy discretionary cash 

flows and high level of cash on hand; 

• Furthermore, the municipality exhibits 

negligible levels of gearing and a strong net 

cash position; 

• The municipality has historically funded the 

bulk of its capital and expenditure (capex) 

requirements internally and has demonstrated 

an ability to almost achieve (and more recently 

exceed) its budgeted capex.  In addition, the 

relative level of net capex to total income was 

favourable considered;  

• Following stricter provisioning policies and bad 

debt write-offs, the net debtors to total income 

ration has evidenced a decreasing trend in 

recent years and for the year to date, to a level 

slightly above its peers; 

• While the relative strength and fairly well 

diversified nature of the local economy 

positively influenced the rating, the 

comparatively poor socio-economic profile and 

limited investment opportunities, despite efforts 

by council to stimulate economic growth and 

employment, served to constrain the rating. 

 

The municipality has put a lot of effort and resources 

towards the management of its financial resources. 

A key test for any municipality, apart from its ability 

to meet its service delivery expectations, is its ability 

to generate and collect revenue from its citizens. 

The municipality has continued to focus on the 

collection of revenue due to it. One of the measures 

taken was the establishment of a dedicated Debt 

Collection Section within the Revenue Management 

Sub directorate. A number of summonses were 

issued during the year on certain categories of 

defaulting customers. This resulted in a number of 

arrangements being made for payment of debts over 

a period. The full impact of the Debt Collection 

Section towards the reduction of the debtor’s book 

will be visible in the next eighteen to twenty four 

months. Another effort made was the launch of the 

100% Campaign aimed at encouraging citizens of 

the city to pay for their municipal services in full.  

 

However, the municipality’s continued viability is 

threatened by: 

 

• Sustained pressure being placed on the 

municipality to extend service delivery to the 

large underdeveloped areas under its 

administration; 
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• The low level of payment for services 

(although improving), which places a degree 

of pressure on the council’s collection and 

liquidity levels. 

 

The table below shows the level of billings for 

municipal services for the year and collection 

(payments) thereof received from the citizens:  

 

The table below shows rate of debt collection for 

the year under review:  
 
 
Table 1.4: Debt collection 
 

Debt Collections: July 2004-June 2005 

Service  Billed 

R’000 

Received 

R’000 

% 

Rates 231,494 177,785 76.80 

Sanitation 70,375 63,660 90.46 

Rental 12,510 3,948 31.56 

Water 203,437 192,350 94.55 

Electricity 451,563 441,759 97.82 
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CHAPTER 2: PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 

 

2.1 Water and Sanitation 

 

Cost recovery project 

 

As from the first quarter of 1999, the former 

Botshabelo TLC experienced difficulty with their bulk 

water account to Bloem Water and after political 

intervention a Memorandum of Understanding was 

signed between the MEC of Local Government and 

Housing, the Mayor of Botshabelo and the 

Chairperson of the Bloem Water board to address 

the problem. A total number of 31 700 erven 

throughout Botshabelo, Thaba Nchu and Mangaung 

has been targeted for water and sanitation services.  

To date a total of 25 933 erven have successfully 

been serviced through the project. 

 

All construction activities on both water and 

sanitation contracts were, as far as possible, carried 

out utilizing labour intensive construction methods as 

is now called for in the new Expanded Public Works 

Programme (EPWP) specifications.  A high level of 

community participation has consequently been 

maintained and local labour has been employed as 

far as possible. To date a total amount of R5.5 

million has been paid to local labour and the total 

programme target including the 2005/06 financial 

year is R6.8 million. The reported labour days 

currently stand at 146 870 of which 38 379 (26%) 

accounts for labour days provided by women. 

 

A total amount of R 394 500 has been spent on 

training and capacity building, for administration, 

technical and life skills training (1 775 trainee-days 

recorded) and R 1.85 million has been paid to local 

SMME’s on subcontracting work. Extensive 

induction training and empowerment ha ve also 

taken place on health and safety as required by 

new legislations and will be continued in the 

2005/06 financial year projects.    

 

The Peoples Republic of China’s grant obtained 

through DWAF have made a large financial 

contribution to the programme and the total 232 km 

length of pipe and 21 654 meters installed to date, 

have a combined value of just below R 10 million. 

 

Call centre 

 

The Association for the Disabled is currently 

running a pilot project call centre on an agency 

basis. The call centre is based on a master 

database that will ensure database relationships 

between official erf numbers, street addresses and 

account data. The call centre and the database will 

become a first hand tool to manage and control the 

Water and Sanitation maintenance teams. The 

database on the other hand will provide a link to the 

master erven database of the Municipality to 

ensure that all complaints can be linked to a 

geographical information system for attention. 
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Refurbishment of water and sanitation systems 

 

A total of R3, 16 million and R2, 71 million was 

provided in the 2004/05 Capital Budget for water and 

sewerage system refurbishment, respectively, to 

attend to water leaks and network losses on the one 

side and root ingress and silting of the sewerage 

network on the other side.  

 

A computer model of the sewer network has been 

compiled to determine the level of service of the 

network. The data from this model has also been 

transferred to a geographical information system to 

verify the exact position of any problem in the 

system. Root ingress into waterborne sewers is a 

common problem and continuous refurbishment of 

sewers is needed. Preventative clearing of sewers is 

done to alleviate this problem. 

 

As the sewer networks become older sewer 

blockages will occur more regularly. The Municipal 

teams cannot always attend to sewer blockages in 

good time and for that reason a contractor was 

appointed to assist municipal teams with 

preventative maintenance. This reduced the risk of 

sewers overflowing for extended periods. 

 

Unless serious remedial work is done on an ongoing 

basis the ingress of roots and grit will always be a 

problem, especially in older sewers. Due to the cost 

to relay sewers in built-up areas it is not a viable 

option and regular preventative maintenanc e remain 

the only alternative option.  

Pressure management 

 

The MLM water network consists of a total of 2 700 

km water lines that has to be maintained and 

guarded against network losses. Key to ensuring 

that these losses remain within design limits is 

cont inuous focus on the maintenance management 

of the network and optimisation of system 

pressures. Although the Municipality has the 

responsibility for the maintenance of the water 

network, consumers are responsible for their 

system between the point of supply and the point of 

consumption.  

 

The main objective of pressure reducing is to 

minimise excess water pressure in water systems 

during off-peak hours in order to reduce the 

leakage rates as well as the frequency of pipe 

bursts. The first areas that were attended to were 

the Mangaung, Heidedal, East-End and Hamilton 

areas and included the low cost development areas 

of Grasslands, Bloemside, Freedom Square and 

Turflaagte. Pressure reducing valves were installed 

that lower the static pressures during the night. It 

has been extended to Botshabelo during 2004/05 

and Thaba Nchu will follow thereafter. 

 

Monitoring of the system shows that approximately 

190 000 kilolitres of water per month were saved in 

the Bloemfontein area alone with the new 

approach. This water savings resulted in a financial 

saving of approximately R526 000 per month. 
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Reduction of the bucket system 

 

At the end of the 2003/04 financial year the Surveyor 

General’s plans for MLM showed that more than 

158 000 formal erven have been registered. This 

includes about 3 000 erven for the Rural Areas that 

were not formalised at that stage.  Of this total, more 

than 21 000 erven used buckets that are both an 

unacceptable and a very expensive service. A 

further 30 000 erven are provided with sub-standard 

pit latrines that needs upgrading. Since the 

beginning of the 2001/02 financial year the 

Municipality provided more than 29 000 stands with 

dry on-site sanitation that was financed by 

Government and complies with DWAF’s minimum 

standard for sanitation. This includes all the erven in 

the Rural Areas. 

 

Dry on-site sanitation was provided to replace both 

sub-standard pit latrines and bucket systems. A 

further 12 000 dry sanitation systems have been 

installed in the 2004/05 financial year in order to 

address the large backlog in sub-standard 

sanitation. Government’s Municipal Infrastructure 

Grant allocated a further R4, 9 million for the 

2005/06 financial year to address bucket eradication. 

 

Water leakage awareness and repairs project 

 

Mangaung Local Municipality implemented for the 

first time a project that was aimed at reducing water 

leakages on private properties and promoting 

willingness to pay among consumers, especially 

indigent consumers. The project started in 

February 2005 and ended in July 2005, which 

was immediately followed by the After Care 

Programme to fix any problems that emanated 

from the implementation phase. The pilot phase 

of the project started in Freedom Square, Batho, 

Bochabela and Heidedal with Randwater/Iliso 

Joint Venture managing the process. It was found 

that most of the residents had extremely high 

outstanding water accounts due to leakages, 

especially toilet leakages. The project has seen 

success in reduction of water losses especially in 

Freedom Square, which had an outstanding 

amount of R26 million during the implementation 

phase and an average user consumption of 18 

kiloliters per month, which dropped to 10 kiloliters 

per month after the implementation. This proved 

that technical intervention and leakage 

awareness forms integral part of water demand 

management and justified implementation of such 

strategies in the whole municipality, which will be 

achieved in the next phase of the project starting 

from February 2006. Additional funding of R2 

million from the Special Municipal Infrastructure 

Fund (SMIF) and R3 million from the 

Restructuring Grant will be used in the next 

phase with high optimism that such small 

investment will yield much bigger savings 

beneficial to the municipality and its residents. 

 

In the pilot phase of the project a total of 124 

community plumbers were trained, with 20 from 

each of Ward 1, 2, 16 and 17. Additional 44 



 

 12

community plumbers were from Freedom Square 

and a total of R730 000.00 was used for labour. A 

total amount of R2 million received from SMIF for the 

second phase was invested in this project and in 

Freedom Square alone.  The total monthly water bill 

was reduced from an average of R213 000.00/ 

month to just R107 000.00 per month with projected 

savings in excess of R1.1 million per annum. 

 

Figure 2.1: Freedom Square billed metered consumption 
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2.2 Roads and stormwater 

 

A total of 17.78 km of new tar roads were built, 71 km 

gravelled and 52.6 km of existing roads resealed 

during this financial year. This brings the total of 

tarred roads to 1 300 km’s and gravelled to 1 272 

km’s. This means that the target set according to the 

scorecard has been achieved and the percentage 

access and main roads tarred has increased from 

85.3% in June 2004 to 88.7% in June 2005. 

 

A total of 100% of the budget for roads and 

stormwater were spent this financial year and about 

81% of tenders were awarded to HDI’s. 

 

Expanded public works programme learnerships 

 

A contractor learnership program has been started 

under the Extended Public Works Program (EPWP). 

The intention is to train 20 learner contractors over a 

period of 2 years during which the trainees will 

undergo classroom training as well as complete 3 

projects as part of their practical training. The 

programme started with a selection process in 

November 2004 and the first project started in May 

2005. The last project will be completed towards the 

end of 2006.  

 

Completion of ASD investigation for roads and 

stormwater (Phase 1 and 2) 

 

In terms of Section 78 of Municipal System’s Act 

Municipalities are required to investigate the 

efficient and effective way of delivering its 

services. Roads and Stormwater investigation 

was completed in 2004. The investigation 

indicated that roads and stormwater would 

function more effectively if it became a ring 

fenced business unit. 

 

Introducing PDI leading roads consultants  

 

A team of consultants that can vary from 10 to 

16 implements the Capital Projects for Roads 

and Stormwater. The consultants are divided 

in groups of 4-6 consultants and a project 

group leader appointed for each group to liaise 

with MLM on behalf of the consultant group.  

 

Until the 2003/04 financial year the group 

leaders were only established non-PDI firms. 

For the 2004/05 financial year it was decided 

that a fully PDI firm must also be given the 

experience to function as a group leader. The 

firm CEE was appointed as group leader and 

performed so well that they were again 

appointed as group leaders for the 2005/06 

financial year.  This initiative led to the 

establishment of a PDI firm as one of the 

leading consultant firms in the MLM area. 

 

Introducing Professional Construction 

Management Method for implementing EPWP  

 

In the past main contractors were used to train 

the upcoming contactors, but in most 
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instances the initiative was taken away from the 

learners to such an extent that few of the learners 

were able to continue as successful contractors.  

The EPWP contractor learnerships allow for learners 

to be trained by Training Providers for classroom 

training and mentors during the practical (project) 

training phase. The mentors used by DPW are not 

experienced enough to train the contractors on civil 

engineering and labour intensive construction as 

such. MLM therefore requested proposals for 

Professional Construction Project Managers with 

labour intensive construction experience to manage 

the learnership process. This approach is innovative 

but without an experienced labour intensive 

construction Manager the risk of failure was deemed 

too high. 

 

Development Pavement Management System and 

Stormwater Management System (SMS) for the entire 

MLM Area 

 

The effective planning and management of roads 

and stormwater were not possible because of a 

lack of available data in the previously 

disadvantaged areas. To enable MLM to maintain 

control over the municipal services like the streets 

and stormwater and do proper planning and 

maintenance, the establishment of information 

management systems plays a major role and can 

be seen as a strategic project. An amount of R 2 

943 806 in total was used from transformation 

funding to complete the streets and stormwater 

management systems during the 2004/2005 

financial year; 

 

Although the PMS and SMS fields are specialized 

fields both firms appointed to do the work had to 

utilize local PDI students from the Technikon 

(mostly females) and upcoming PDI firms for the 

assessment process.  A total of 15 PDI students 

were used on this project. 

 

Introduction of cape seal (labour intensive) as 

an alternative to gravseal 

 

Over the last 5 years MLM started using a low 

volume sealed road as an intermediate level of 

service to increase the km of roads to be sealed 

each year.  The roads were commonly referred to 

as Gravseal roads and could be built for 15 - 25% 

(R250 000 per km compared to R1 - R1.5 

million/km) of the cost for conventional designed 

roads. 

 

The one disadvantage of the Gravseal was that it 

was not labour intensive. During 2003/04 a pilot 

project was launched where a Cape Seal road 

was built successfully by means of labour 

intensive methods in Botshabelo.  During this 

financial year all previously Gravsealed Roads is 

now built with a labour intensive Cape Seal. 

 

The PDI contractor used for this work was trained 

under the pilot project under a Construction 
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Project Manager and is now doing the work on his 

own.  

 

Development of affordable levels of service strategy 

policy  

 

Due to financial constraints and the backlog for basic 

services in the previously disadvantaged areas the 

need to have an affordable level of services policy 

was identified. The main purpose of the policy was to 

address the backlogs in basic services first before 

any other higher -level services can be addressed. 

 

According to this policy different levels of services 

(basic, intermediate and full) were identified and 

defined and prioritized to lead Council to effective 

project identification for the most needy with the 

different funds (grants and loans) available.  

 

Quarterly information on municipal infrastructure grant 

(MIG)  

 

The Municipal Infrastructure Grant is a new funding 

arrangement that combines all previous capital grants 

disbursed by government for municipal infrastructure 

into a single consolidated grant. MIG funds can only 

be used for infrastructure services at basic levels of 

service for the poor.  MLM was allocated an amount 

of R 64 181 638 for the 2004/2005 financial year and 

it was spent as shown in the table below. It is worth 

mentioning that MLM is one of only a few 

municipalities in the Free State to have spent their full 

MIG allocation on time and in accordance with 

their cash flow projections.
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Grant Details 
 

Amount Received and Spent Each Quarter 

Grant name, project  

 

1 Apr 2004 

 to  

30 Jun 2004 

1 Jul 2004  

to 

30 Sept 

2004 

1 Oct 2004 

 to  

31 Dec 2004 

 1 Jan 2005 

 to  

31 Mar 2005 

 Total (R) 

Municipal Infrastructure Grant 

(MIG) 
     

Botshabelo & Thaba Nchu: 

Extension of cost recovery system 

for water (283) 

      1,441,537.56 1,441,537.56 

Botshabelo / Thaba Nchu / 

Mangaung: Provision of main 

stormwater and streets (285) 

4,194,714.06 928,330.41   5,123,044.47 

Botshabelo: Water mains (003)     1,568,794.58 1,568,794.58 

Mangaung, Botshabelo, Thaba 

Nchu: Provision of main streets and 

stormwater canals  

    475,650.20 475,650.20 

Mangaung: Leak Awareness and 

base flow reduction 
    1,730,348.97 1,730,348.97 

Mangaung: Provision of main streets 

and stormwater (004) 
  2,758,552.84 5,669,812.01 15,995,964.05 24,424,328.90 

Mangaung: Urban VIPs (001) 1,695,889.00 5,735,862.83 9,173,938.17 892,516.57 17,498,206.57 

PMU Establishment 2004/2005     69,516.61 69,516.61 

PMU Establishment 2004/2006     356,210.25 356,210.25 

Water Services VIPs (2004/2005)    1,435,787.99 10,058,212.01 11,494,000.00 

Total 5,890,603.06 9,422,746.08 16,279,538.17 32,588,750.80 64,181,638.11 
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2.3 Solid Waste Management  

 

Percentage share of Households receiving weekly 

door-to-door service 

 

Area 2003/2004 

Bloemfontein 53.9% 

Botshabelo 32.3% 

Thaba Nchu 8.8 % 

Total percentage 95 % 

 

Area 2004/2005 

Bloemfontein 53.9% 

Botshabelo 33.5% 

Thaba Nchu 12.6% 

Total percentage 100 % 

 

Integrated Waste Management Plan  

 

The implementation of an Integrated Waste 

Management (IWM) planning system was identified 

as a high priority short-term initiative in the National 

Waste Management Strategy (NWMS), October 

1999.  The main goal of the Integrated Waste 

Management Planning (IWMP) is to optimise waste 

management by maximising efficiency, and 

minimising associated environmental impacts and 

financial costs.  The Department of Environmental 

Affairs and Tourism (DEAT) to assist responsible 

parties to draft IWM Plans have developed guidelines 

for the compilation of Integrated Waste Management 

Plans, which describes the framework within which 

waste management has to be carried out.  The 

primary objective of this project was to develop a 

comprehensive Integrated Waste Management 

that provides a waste collection and disposal 

service to all waste generators that is 

sustainable, equitable, efficient, effective and 

affordable for the Municipality.   

 

Secondary objectives were to:  

• Identify and plan for future waste 

management needs and requirements, such 

as waste minimisation, recycling and 

recovery 

• Minimise waste management costs by 

optimising the efficiency of the waste 

management systems in terms of usage of 

infrastructure, labour and equipment.  This 

could include external service provision 

options, such as public-private partnerships. 

• Minimise adverse social and environmental 

impacts related to waste management and 

thereby improve the quality of life. The final 

draft of this plan was finalized at the end of 

2004/05 report period. 

 

Two landfill sites (northern and southern) were 

fenced. Although the fencing of disposal sites is a 

legal requirement it will also assist the sub-

directorate to have access control to the sites, 

which will ultimately lead to a generation of 

income for the Municipality. 

 

This will again assist with the control of illegal 

waste reclaimers, reduce criminal activities 
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happening inside the sites, ensure that only the type 

of waste permitted in the site are disposed of there. 

 

All the above will contribute towards operation of the 

site according to permit conditions.  

 

Development of a stormwater management system for 

Botshabelo landfill site 

 

A storm water management system was developed 

for the Botshabelo landfill site as part of compliance 

to the DWAF Minimum Requirements. 

   

One more SMME was appointed. An additional 

SMME was appointed to render a weekly door-to-

door refuse collection service to those areas within 

Mangaung Local Municipality that did not have 

access to the service bringing the total percentage of 

households receiving this service to 100%.  

 

Such an appointment also contributes towards local 

economic development. About 12 permanent jobs 

were created in this venture. 

 

2.4 Mechanical Services  

 

Fleet  

The implementation plan for the fleet centralization 

strategy has been developed. The current project 

plan estimates the completion of the project to be 

around April 2006. Currently the focus is on fleet 

maintenance and improvement of current service 

delivery levels. Regular meetings are held with 

stakeholders to ensure better scheduling and 

prioritizations of services and repairs. 

 

Below is an indication of the number of tasks, 

which have been recorded for the different types 

of vehicle and equipment serviced, repaired and 

maintained by Mechanical Services.  It can be 

noted from the table below that 18 269 tasks 

were recorded.  The average cost per tasks 

based on the income amounts to R401.69 and 

amounts to R719.97 based on the total 

expenditure for Mechanical Services. 

 

Number of Tasks for the Period 

1 July 2004 to 24 June 2005 

Compressors 200 

Construction Equipment  1367 

Fire Engine 68 

Fork Lifts / Tractors 1018 

HCV 3.5 -> 5.0 2856 

HCV 5.0 and up 3655 

Lawnmowers  30 

Light Commercial Vehicle  3602 

Mobile Clinic / Ambulance 89 

Motorcycles <200cc 102 

Motorcycles >200cc 379 

Not Classified 911 

Refuse Compactor 1335 

Sedans  1573 

Trailer - Fuel / Diesel 23 

Trailer - Large 219 

Trailer - Small 842 

Total 18 269 
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Electrical Maintenance 

 

The electrical maintenance component for the 

municipality was transferred in January 2004 to 

Mechanical Services.  This component now functions 

within the Mechanical Maintenance division.   

 

In this short period, Mechanical Services developed 

an Electrical Cost Management System, which was 

fully functional, operational and utilised since the 

beginning of the 2004/05 financial years.  During the 

2004/05 years, data has been collected, which can 

now be analysed with the assistance of the Electrical 

Cost Management System.  Mechanical Services can 

now advise Council based on the analysed data so 

that council can make better and informed decisions 

regarding electrical maintenance work, which is 

performed in and around council buildings. 

 

During the current financial year, a large number of 

Compliance Certificates have been issued for various 

council buildings and properties, as required by law. 

Mechanical Services plan to obtain Compliance 

Certificates for every council building over the next 2 

years. 

 

By adding this component to the Mechanical 

Maintenance division not only shortens the 

communication chann els, it also enables Mechanical 

Services to provide a one-stop service.  The services 

offered to our clients now include any air conditioning 

and ventilation, electrical or mechanical maintenance 

work. 

 

The table below indicates the percentages of the 

electrical maintenance cost as allocated to each 

directorate. 

 

Electrical Maintenance Work Per Directorate  

between 01 July 2004 and 24 June 2005 

 Tasks % 
Price  

(R) 

Labour  

(R) 

Total 

(R) 

Centlec (PTY) Ltd 32 7 22 238 1  151 23 389 

Community and 

 Social Development 
149 33 59 340 12 310 71 651 

Corporate Services  81 18 112 203 17  160 129 362 

Economic 

Development and 

Planning 

133 29 87 928 31 122 119 050 

Finance 8 2 5 169 160 5 329 

Infrastructure Services 52 11 43 178 1 922 45 099 

  455 100 330 056 63 825 393 881 
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Table 5: Service backlog and budget spent 
 

 30 June 2003 30 June 2004 30 June 2005 

 Required  Budgeted  Actual Required Budgeted  Actual Required  Budgeted  Actual 

Water Backlogs (GKL per 

month) 
                  

Backlogs to be eliminated 

(no. households not receiving 

minimum standards of 

service) 

52 267 5 364 5 109 47 158 10 614 10 109 37 049 6 974 6 642 

Backlogs to be eliminated 

(percentage-HH identified as 

backlogs/total HH in 

municipality) 

32.9% 3.4% 3.2% 29.7% 6.7% 6.4% 23.3% 4.4% 4.2% 

Spending on new 

infrastructure to eliminate 

backlogs (R ‘000) 

120 005 12 315 11 730 114 735 25 823 24 595 95 512 17 979 17 123 

Spending on renewal of 

existing infrastructure to 

eliminate backlogs (R ‘000) 

56 186 5 766 5 593 13 347 3 004 2 916 81 907 15 418 14 968 

Total spending to eliminate 

backlogs (R ‘000) 
176 191 18 082 17 323 128 082 28 827 27 511 177 419 33 397 32 091 

Sanitation Backlogs           

Backlogs to be eliminated 

(no. households not receiving 

minimum standards of 

service) 

78 097 11 226 10 691 67 406 14 897 14 188 53 218 14 014 13 347 

Backlogs to be eliminated 

(percentage-hh identified as 

backlogs/total hh) 

49.2% 7.1% 6.7% 42.5% 9.4% 8.9% 33.5% 8.8% 8.4% 

Spending on new 

infrastructure to eliminate 

backlogs (R ‘000) 

83 254 34 444 32 803 88 569 34 708 33 055 94 222 45 821 43 639 

Spending on renewal of 

existing infrastructure to 

eliminate backlogs (R ‘000) 

5 000 2 550 2 500 5 500 2 640 2 600 6 000 2 710 2 700 

Total spending to eliminate 

backlogs (R ‘000) 
88 254 36 994 35 303 94 069 37 348 35 655 100 222 48 531 46 339 

Roads Backlogs : 

Upgrading of Main Roads 

and Stormwater 

         

Backlogs to be eliminated 

(no. km not providing 

minimum standards of 

service) 

85.74 9.5 9.0 76.7 11 9.04 67.66 15 17.78 

Backlogs to be eliminated 

(percentage identified as 
16.42% 1.82% 1.72% 14.68% 2.11% 1.73% 12.95% 2.87% 3.40% 
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 30 June 2003 30 June 2004 30 June 2005 

 Required  Budgeted  Actual Required Budgeted  Actual Required  Budgeted  Actual 

backlogs) 

Spending on new 

infrastructure to eliminate 

backlogs (R ‘000) 

231,498 24,957 24,618 227,799 32,973 36,343 216,406 29,092 35,092 

Spending on Renewal of 

Existing Infrastructure to 

Eliminate Backlogs (Rand 

‘000) 

62,000 0 0 68,000 3,500 3,500 74,000 1,300 1,300 

Total spending to eliminate 

backlogs (R ‘000) 
293,498 24,957 24,618 295,799 36,473 39,843 290,406 30,392 36,392 

Spending on maintenance to 

ensure no new backlogs 

created (R ‘000) 

43,000 6,000 6,051 48,000 3,050 3,855 53,000 6,400 6,400 

Refuse Removal Backlogs          

backlogs to be eliminated 

(no. households not receiving 

minimum standards of 

service) 

 

13219 

 

4406 4406 8813 0 0 8813 8813 8813 

Backlogs to be eliminated 

(percentage-HH identified as 

backlogs/total HH) 

 

7.5% 

 

2.5% 

 

2.5% 

 

5.% 

 

0 

 

0 

 

5% 

 

       5% 

 

5% 

 
 

2.5 Status on Alternative Service Delivery 

 Investigations 

 

Finalise establishment of business units 

 

MLM Council resolved to establish the following 

services in the form of business units in line with the 

Systems Act: 

• Roads and Storm water; 

• Solid Waste management; 

• Fresh Produce Market; 

• Horticulture; 

• Zoo;  

• Tempe Airport. 

The Executive Management Team (EMT) 

approved business plans and financial model for 

each of the above at the end of June 2004. As 

part of the project plan, there was a need to 

establish the governance structure necessary for 

the management of the business units as well as 

Centlec, the electricity municipal entity. MLM has 

appointed a service provider to assist with the 

design and implementation of the governance 

model and framework.  

 

Water and sanitation 

 

MLM Council resolved to explore external 

mechanisms for its water and sanitation service. 
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One of the options to be considered was to look at 

the feasibility of establishing a regional entity 

involving other neighbouring municipalities and Bloem 

Water Board, in line with the objectives of the national 

Strategic Framework for Water Services. MLM has 

held several meetings with the Department of Water 

Affairs and Forestry (DWAF) and South African Local 

Government Association (SALGA) to explore 

synergies between the local and national processes. 

DWAF and SALGA are supportive of local institutional 

reform initiatives, to the extent that DWAF has made 

a clear commitment to provide funding to assist with 

the process. This investigation is one of the priority 

areas for DWAF’s development of Institutional 

Reform Strategy for water services. 

 

Further meetings have been held with Bloem Water 

and Water Services Authorities receiving bulk water 

supply from Bloem Water to discuss possible 

participation to take the process forward to explore 

the feasibility of a regional water services utility, in 

line with DWAF Strategic Framework for Water 

Services. Although the Water Services Authorities 

have expressed the desire to work with MLM on a 

possible regional entity for the Bloem Water supply 

area, each council has not taken a formal decision, as 

they have not yet commenced with a Municipal 

Systems Act (MSA), Section 78 investigation yet. 

 

Tempe Airport 

   

Section 78 of MSA investigation was carried out 

during the 2004/05 financial year for Tempe Airport. 

Council approved the continuation of the 

investigation to explore an external mechanism. 

The investigation has already commenced and it 

is envisaged that it will be finalized in the 2005/06 

financial year. 

 

Centlec (Pty) Ltd 

 

During this period a through compliance 

assessment was done revealing certain 

discrepancies in the Sale of Business (SOB) and 

Service Delivery Agreement (SDA) between 

Centlec and MLM. This necessitated the signing 

of the SDA and the addendum to the SOB. Of 

material importance is the change of the effective 

date of the transaction from 2004 to July 1, 2005. 

Furthermore, the governance framework 

including the shareholder compact, code of 

conduct and board charter were all agreed upon, 

thus making the institutional supervision easier.   

 

The above developments are indicative of the 

commitment and oversight role MLM continues to 

play through its Service Authority Unit. It is the 

belief of the Municipality that both Centlec and 

upcoming municipal business entities will 

continue to provide a platform for appropriate 

alternative service delivery options. 

 

2.6 Economic Development and Planning 

 

The municipality continued to introduce various 

measures to ensure economic growth and 
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sustainability.  These measures included the 

provision of housing, approval of zoning plans, 

township establishment, job creation and SMME 

development, as explained below. 

 

Housing 

 

The MLM adopted its first Housing policy in 

December 2005. The policy intends to ensure the 

promotion of equal access to housing for Mangaung 

citizens and fair administrative justice in the overall 

provision of housing to communities. It outlines 

various strategies to be employed by the municipality 

to provide housing especially to the vulnerable groups 

and the poor.  

 

In addition, the municipality has been prioritized by 

the National Department of Housing for Accreditation 

to implement National Housing Programmes.  The 

direct implementation of national housing 

programmes provides an important opportunity to the 

municipality to build sustainable communities. This 

financial year, the municipality managed to 

construct 3 450 new houses. The allocation is 

slightly lower compared to last year’s 4 950.   

 

The municipality also continues to manage its 

internal housing stock to ensure viable 

households and communities in areas allowing 

convenient access to economic opportunities, 

health, education and social amenities. 

 

Zoning and building plans 

 

The municipality has successfully introduced an 

electronic filing system of building plans by way 

of scanning the building plans on record. This 

system will be developed to a point where new 

building plans can be submitted electronically in 

order to reduce the lead time for submission of 

comments by internal departments. 

 

Below is a table that gives a breakdown of plans 

received and approved. 

 

Table 7 Plans received and approved 

 

Applications 

outstanding 

1 July 2003 

Category 

Number of new 

applications 

received 

2004-05 

Total value of 

applications 

received 

(R) 

Applications 

outstanding 

30 June 2005 

- Residential new 13 173 1 125 232 300 - 

- Residential 

additions  

1 371 173 466 144 - 

- Commercial 19 368 453 000 - 

- Industrial 15 9 633 300 - 

- Other (specify) 140 69 634 000 - 
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Township establishment 

 

During the year under review, the department 

finalized the township establishments of Bloemside 

Phases 9 and 10, Thaba Nchu and Grasslands 

Phase 3. The area between Vista University and 

Blomanda is in the process of township 

establishment. A call for the appointment of service 

providers was made and a preferred bidder was 

appointed.   Approximately 2200 erven will be 

created. 

 

LED and SMME development 

 

The Mangaung Economic Development Strategy 

(EDS) identifies the SMME Sector as a key driver of 

the Mangaung local economy.  Support to this 

sector is therefore essential.  Other key strategies 

highlighted in the EDS are that of human resource 

development and the promotion of 

entrepreneurship.  The EDS highlights the need for 

quality business development support.  The 

approach that MLM has taken is to establish a 

SMME Service Centre that will co-ordinate and 

ensure quality business development support to 

SMMEs in the area.  A further aim of the Centre 

would be to strengthen and co-ordinate Business 

Development Support (B DS) provision in 

Mangaung through the Business Advisors network 

that the sub-directorate has been able to establish 

and co-ordinate.  This project has been steered by 

a multi-stakeholder working group, including, Free 

State Development Corporation, Bloemfontein 

Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Central 

University of Technology, University of the Free 

State, Amalgamated Banks of South Africa, 

Mangaung Youth Chamber of Commerce, 

Botshabelo Creations, MLM, Free State Provincial 

Government, Department of Tourism, 

Environmental and Economic Affairs ’ SMME desk, 

COMSEC and Department of Labour.  Other 

agencies such as Microsoft have also supported 

the centre by providing software and licenses for 

the computers at the Centre.  They will also be 

donating computers for the satellite centres. 

 

The Centre is now operational in street front 

premises in the Sanlam Plaza in the Bloemfontein 

Central Business District. Discussions are currently 

underway with the Small Enterprise Development 

Agency (SEDA) for the Centre to become a SEDA 

branch.  Both the Free State Provincial Government 

and the Motheo District Municipality are in support 

of this proposal.  A memorandum of understanding 

will be signed between MLM and the SEDA, which 

will see the Centre converted into the SEDA 

Mangaung branch. 

 

Suitable satellite centres are being identified in 

Botshabelo and Thaba Nchu.  The SMME Service 

Centre will also have an outreach programme, i.e. 

BDS service provision will also be taken to the 

people in the areas where they live.  There is 

interest from donors to fund the set-up of these 

satellite centres  
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The interim staff managing and running the Centre 

received training at Community Self-Employment 

Centre (COMSEC) based in Port Elizabeth in terms 

of their International Standards Organisation (ISO) 

accredited systems.  COMSEC is one of the key 

partners in this project and their sustainable model 

of BDS provision has sparked this important co-

operation.  The aim is that the Centre needs to 

break even and be sustainable in the long run.  

This will be done through subsidizing services for 

the lower end of the market (start-ups) and by 

generating income through rent from tenants (other 

selected BDS Service Providers and the actual 

services (learnership training, tender advice etc), 

which the Centre will provide.  The Department of 

Labour will be piloting their Basic Entrepreneurial 

Skills Programme through the Centre.  This 

programme involves intensive hand-holding and 

mentoring of local SMMEs. 

 

A workshop for all SMME Business Advisors was 

conducted as part of their attempts to strengthen 

this network.  At this workshop, which took place on 

8 December 2004, stakeholders were updated on 

the developments around the SMME Service 

Centre.  The Business Advisors were also 

requested to register their details with MLM as part 

of consolidating the network and the business 

development services on offer in the city.  The 

workshop was hailed successful and the network 

noted thei r support for the SMME Service Centre 

and the need for regular network meetings.  They 

applauded MLM for the steps they were taking in 

this regard. 

 

Eight local SMMEs (7 from Thaba Nchu and 1 from 

Bloemfontein) were sponsored by MLM to attend 

the ESKOM SMME exhibition in Johannesburg.  

The aim was to provide the SMMEs with exposure, 

for them to network with other SMMEs and also for 

them to find new markets for their products.  The 

SMMEs have reported that the exhibition proved to 

be successful and most helpful in their 

development.  The 7 SMMEs from Thaba Nchu 

received the 3rd prize in the start -ups category. 

 

Another concrete example of the success of this 

program occurred in 2004/2005.  On invitation by 

the South African Embassy in Paris, a local female 

entrepreneur was afforded the opportunity by MLM 

to attend the international trade fair in Paris.  The 

black woman-headed business, Ipopeng 

Productions, used this opportunity to expand export 

markets.  She is currently exporting locally 

produced beadwork and crafts.  

 

The SMME support division in the sub directorate 

also facilitated financial assistance for seven private 

business funding proposals from national funding 

agencies.  The SMME Support division is tracking 

the progress of these applications.  Four community 

project proposals were submitted to the Khula 

Mentorship office to assist in the development of 

comprehensive business plans.   
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A Business Management training programme was 

funded for the indigenous food producers under the 

CSIR/Indiza Foods initiative. The training took 

place at MUCPP premises in Bloemfontein. A local 

manufacturing entrepreneur was assisted by the 

MLM to attend the Innovation Summit at the 

Gallagher Estates in Johannesburg. 

 

Entrepreneurial Awareness workshops took place 

on 15, 16 and 17 February 2005 in Botshabelo, 

Thaba Nchu and Bloemfontein respectively.  

Present at the workshops were existing and 

aspirant entrepreneurs, SEDA, KHULA, 

Umsobomvu Youth Fund, Department of Social 

Development, ABSA, Standard Bank and FDC.  

The workshops were successful and it was agreed 

that these type of workshops will be held on a 

regular basis to ensure that there is greater 

entrepreneurial awareness in the area. 

 

MLM participated in a research project 

commissioned by the World Bank on pro-poor LED.  

One of the aspects that the research focused on 

was the informal economy.  MLM used this 

research as the basis for the Informal Economy 

policy.   

 

The SMME Support division participated in the 

launching of the Expanded Public Works 

Programme (EPWP) in Mangaung.  The EPWP 

aims to ensure that at least 60 contractors are 

trained and empowered to undertake R30 million 

worth of construction and maintenance work in the 

Mangaung area over the next 3 years. 

 

MLM and the local business chamber jointly hosted 

a seminar on Black Economic Empowerment.  The 

seminar was well-attended by local business 

people.  The Centre for Business Dynamics 

provided an excellent presentation on the 

Department of Trade and Industry scorecard with 

regards to BEE.  The seminar is a fi rst of a series of 

joint projects between local government and the 

business chamber (BCCI) in an attempt to facilitate 

LED in the area. 

 

Marketing the city 

 

The new marketing material reflecting the new 

Mangaung brand has been widely disseminated at 

conferences, to visiting delegations and to overseas 

delegations.  The new material has been well 

received and highly commended. The marketing 

brochures have served as an important marketing 

tool for the area.  Several requests for these 

brochures have been made both by internal and 

external stakeholders.  Delegations to and from 

Mangaung were provided with a full portfolio of 

brochures covering most of the sectors within the 

Mangaung area.  MLM officials took these 

brochures to the international arena on their visits 

to Barcelona- Spain, Gent- Belgium and Uganda.  

The Parks and Cemeteries sub-directorate took the 

marketing material to the international flower show 

in Pietermaritzburg.   
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A two-page spread on promoting Mangaung 

appeared in the Sunday Times.  This was done in 

collaboration with the Economic Development sub-

directorate as part of the attempts to market the 

city. An advertorial on Mangaung’s Economic 

Development Strategy Launch also appeared on 

the South African Cities Network website.  An array 

of advertorials appeared in various national and 

international publications.  The most successful of 

these advertorials has been the advertorial features 

in Equinox, a lifestyle-tourism type publication that 

is distributed by all Southern Sun International 

hotels.  This has sparked a number of inquiries 

advertorial. Other advertorials include: a trade and 

investment advertorial that appeared in Global 

Trade and an advertorial on LED and Black 

Economic Empowerment promotion in Mangaung 

in the SALGA Supplement in the Mail & Guardian 

newspaper. A further 2 advertorials appeared in the 

prestigious publications of the Top 300 companies, 

Impumelelo and also in the SA Municipalities.  An 

advertorial on the municipality also featured quite 

prominently in the Portfolio on Municipalities 2004 

edition. Other publications which featured the 

highlights and opportunities of the city include 

Heartland magazine, Black Business Quarterly, the 

University of the Free State’s Rag magazine Ritsim, 

and the Sowetan Soccer publication.  MLM also 

advertised in the 2005 Mangaung Visitors Guide.  

MLM received 2000 complimentary copies of the 

Visitors Guide to be used for marketing and 

promotional purposes.  The new tourism maps 

were finalised and disseminated in time for the 

festive season demand.  The Marketing division 

also printed 2005 MLM calendars, which were 

disseminated to a range of stakeholders.   

 

A double page advertorial was placed in 

Opportunity, a SACOB publication, an issue which 

is particularly promoting investment opportunities in 

the 9 South African cities belonging to the South 

African Cities Network. Two further advertorials 

were published in the Commonwealth Annual report 

and the Wits Business Journal.  An advertorial for 

Indwe, South African Express in-flight magazine 

was finalised and appeared in the June issue. 

 

The static display together with the dissemination of 

the marketing brochures was also well received at 

the 2nd annual Conference of Women in Local 

Government, which MLM hosted in August 2005. 

An exhibition stall and marketing material was also 

prepared for the SALGA conference held in Cape 

Town in September 2005.  

 

Urban planning 

 

The municipality has started implementing projects 

meant to integrate the city. One of the projects is 

the integration of Grasland phas e 2 and Bloemside 

phase 9 and 10. These projects will serve as pilots 

for further integration of the city.  

 

The municipality has also implemented KPAs 4 – 7 

of the Mangaung Activity Corridor – an initiative 

meant to integrate the city and facilitate improved 
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access to the inner city.  KPAs 1 – 3 of the project, 

comprising the re-construction of the rail-over-road 

bridge in Fort Street and the widening of Dr Belcher 

Road/Fort Street to a four-lane road, is currently 

being implemented and is due for completion in 

July 2006.  

 

A comprehensive review of the Mangaung Spatial 

Development Framework has also been concluded 

during this year and comprised an extensive public 

participation process.  In order to integrate planning 

and implementation actions between municipal 

service units and to involve external stakeholders in 

the development process, internal and external 

forums have respectively been established at the 

municipal level to deal with the relevant matters.   

Two very successful quarterly meetings of the 

respective forums took place during 2005. 

 

The Urban Open Spaces Framework initiated the 

previous year has now been finalized and 

approved. The framework seeks to enable the 

municipality to use space better and further ensure 

spatial integration of the city. 

 

An efficient public transport system, as a strategic 

opportunity for integrating the city and that 

contributes to economic development, is vital. To 

this extent, the municipality conducted and 

concluded comprehensive investigations into the 

current status of public transport in Mangaung.   

The recently completed CBD Masterplan contains 

various strategies and initiatives to improve the 

accessibility of the Bloemfontein Central Business 

District by public transport and also to make this 

area easier reachable by means of non-motorised 

transport such as walking and cycling. 

 

To address the extensive pressure for commercial 

and township development in the area to the west 

of Bloemfontein and the resultant strain on 

transportation and other infrastructure in the area, a 

comprehensive transport and land use study was 

undertaken to facilitate informed decision-making 

regarding orderly and sustainable development in 

the area. 

 

Urban renewal 

 

The CBD master plan was commissioned in order 

to effect the implementation of urban renewal. The 

Minister of Finance proclaimed the CBD of 

Bloemfontein as an Urban Development Zone 

during the year under review   that entitles property 

owners within the proclaimed zone to share in the 

tax incentives made available for the improvement 

of their buildings. 

 

The renovation of historic buildings is an ongoing 

process that is geared to promote tourism in the 

city. A parallel process   of pedestrianization of 

Elizabeth Street is in the planning phase, a 

business plan has been developed to source for 

funds. 
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2.7 Community and Social Development 

 

Police Services    

 

Diagnostic studies on the feasibility of 

establishment a metro police entity has 

commenced and is expected to be completed 

during the 2005/06 financial year.  It will be on the 

basis of the outcomes of the investigations that 

Council will have to decide on whether there are 

merits in undergoing a Section 78 of MSA process 

for its security services. 

 

Fire safety and disaster management public 

education programme 

 

In order to ensure that future generations grow up 

with due regard for fire safety and an awareness of 

the risks and consequences of disasters a 

programme has been introduced which focused on 

two “fronts”: 

 

• Exposure to basic fire safety, practical 

demonstrations and museum visits; and 

• Awareness campaigns conducted on site at 

schools 

 

During the period under review the fire safety / 

emergency preparedness program was delivered to 

13 258 learners from 63 schools. A conscious effort 

to reach learners in Botshabelo and Thaba Nc hu 

was made by conducting on site campaigns at 12 

schools. More than 7 000 learners in the targeted 

areas were exposed and it is trusted that ultimately 

the programme will yield results by means of a 

reduction in deaths in accidental residential fires in 

especially informal settlements.   

 

Maintenance of emergency vehicles 

 

The vehicles and equipment used for the rendering 

of fire protection and rescue services are extremely 

expensive. It is therefore a major highlight when a 

new fire engine to the value of R2 300 000 is 

purchased. The fire fighting pump of the vehicle can 

deliver 3 600 liters per minute. The vehicle carries a 

crew of six and is also equipped to extricate 

trapped victims of motor vehicle accidents. By 

acquiring the vehicle MLM ensures that our 

firefighters who put their lives on the line to protect 

the community are able to render the service that 

the community deserves. 

 

HIV/AIDS 

 

In support of attaining the objectives of the MLM 

IDP “Aids Action” Programme to minimize the 

impact of the HIV/AIDS pandemic, the development 

and implementation of an Integrated HIV/AIDS 

Programme has been embarked upon to give 

direction to and co-ordinate all the HIV/AIDS related 

efforts of all directorates of Council.  

 

The main components of the Integrated Programme 

include: 
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• A Lifeskills program for the youth;  

• Voluntary HIV  Confidential counseling and 

testing (VCCT); 

• Home based care co-ordination and support; 

• Care and support programme for orphans; 

• Information, monitoring and evaluation. 

 

HIV/AIDS, health and education program aims to 

help ensure that citizens will have access to 

essential high quality social services.  MLM has 

worked with Primary Health Care services, 

Occupational Health, the Aids Unit/ATICC, the 

Microbiological Laboratory, Radiological services to 

improve their capacity to plan and manage the 

delivery of social services and commodities over 

the long term. Also MLM supported and provided 

training so that communities can meet the 

standards, and thus contributed to improved quality 

of health services. In particular, MLM provided 

technical assistance and capacity building to 

strengthen HIV/AIDS prevention, care, and support 

services.  

 

Health management 

 

Primary health care services  rendered from 

municipal clinics are rendered according to a 

Service Plan in accordance with a Service 

Agreement with the Free State Provincial 

Department of Health in line with health legislation 

and National Health Policy. All the National and 

Provincial targets were met and requirements of the 

agreement largely complied with. 

In the endeavour to improve Primary Health Care 

facilities, the reconstruction of the following clinics 

was done:  

 

§ Air-conditioning was installed in 6 clinics, 

the Opkoms clinic building extension was 

completed, rebuilding of the Freedom 

Square clinic was completed and paving 

done at Kagisanong and Hilton clinics. 

 

Environmental health and pests control services   

are rendered according to the Service Agreement 

between MLM and the Free State Province 

Department of Health. 

Together with the Laboratory the unit ensured that 

Drinking water quality was kept well within the 

standards set by the South African Bureau of 

Standards. 

 

Service rendering, particularly to the areas of 

Botshabelo and Thaba Nchu, has been 

compromised by the shortage of staff that should 

be addressed by the implementation of the new 

microstructure.  

 

Occupational health services were rendered to 

attend to the primary and occupational needs of 

employees and to ensure that MLM complies with 

legal requirements pertaining to health in the work-

place.  
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CHAPTER 3: HUMAN RESOURCE AND 

ORGANIZATIONAL MANAGEMENT 
 

3.1 Implementation of existing Human 

Resources Policies, Strategies and Plans 

 

In terms of the Employment Equity Plan, the 

municipality has made significant strides in 

ensuring representation at different levels of the 

organization. Current employment equity statistics 

are as follows: 

 

Table 3.1: Employment equity 

Target Group Levels of 

Representation 

Black 85.3% 

Women 25.4% 

People with disabilities 0.32% 

 

Filing of posts 

 

During the previous year, the municipality focused 

much of its attention to the filling of posts at a 

macro level. During 2004/05, the municipality gave 

further attention to the micro or lower levels of the 

new structure – recruitments are completed in a 

timely manner for virtually all positions.  

 

The organizational structure of the municipality 

consists of staffing complement of 4854. The total 

number of employee is 4116, excluding vacancies. 

The breakdown is as follows: 
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Service Excellence 

 

To further enhance the quality of service to the 

community, the municipality conducted a customer 

survey to determine the level of satisfaction with  

services. The survey was completed and a report 

compiled. The municipality is using the information 

to refine its plans, review service standards and 

delivery strategies as part of the broader IDP 

Review process and internal planning processes. 

 

Efforts are also being made to position the 

municipality to respond effectively to community 

needs. To this end, Customer Care Offices have 

been re-allocated and linked to the mainframe 

electronically. The latter would enable Customer 

Officials to have access to real-time information, 

and speed up handling of customer queries. 

 

 

In addition, the municipality increased the 

switchboard capacity to improve community access 

to municipality. 

 

To ensure resource efficiency, the municipality 

introduced various measures. First, the municipality 

is exploring various ways to reduce personnel costs 

and redirect resources to service delivery. To this 

end, the municipality is involved in the processes of 

ensuring those eligible for retirement are released, 

redundant posts are abolished and that those opting 

out are given Voluntary Severance Packages. As a 

result the municipality has managed to keep the 

personnel expenditure to 31%. The table below 

shows total expenditure on personnel over the last 

five years: 

 

 
 
 

Vacancies Incumbents Posts 
Directorates 

Perm Contr Total Perm Contr Total Perm Contr Total 

City Manager 21 6 27 48 37 85 69 43 112 

Community and Social 

Development 
75 0 75 1128 55 1183 1252 6 1261 

Economic Development and 

Planning 
48 0 48 221 7 228 269 7 276 

Corporate Services 42 1 43 254 8 262 296 9 305 

Finance 34 0 34 195 16 211 241 4 245 

Infrastructure Services  254 2 256 1621 58 1679 1929 6 1935 

Mangaung Electricity 253 2 255 464 4 468 717 6 753 

Total 727 11 738 3931 185 4116 4773 81 4854 
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Table 3.2: Trends on total personnel expenditures, excluding councillor allowances, over the last 5 years: 
 

Year 
Actual Salaries 

(R) 
Actual Total (R) 

% Salaries of 

Total Expenditure 

1999/2000 178 937 147 590 690 373  30.29% 

2000/2001 186 053 679 650 899 009  28.58% 

2001/2002 256 813 947 819 134 436  31.35% 

2002/2003 304 153 649 1 043 343 079  29.07% 

2003/2004 340 073 041 1 153 556 564  29.47% 

2004/2005 412 506 262 1 334 125 281 30.93% 
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CHAPTER 4: AUDITED MUNICIPAL 

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENTS  

 

Report of the Auditor-General to the Council on 

Performance Measurement at Mangaung Local 

Municipality for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 

 

1. Assignment 

 

The compilation, presentation and publishing of 

performance measurements as included on pages 

9 to 33 of this annual report and the 

implementation, management and internal control 

of supporting systems are the responsibility of the 

accounting officer.  

 

My responsibility is to provide an assessment of the 

controls implemented by the accounting officer to 

develop and manage the municipality’s 

performance management system as required by 

section 45(b) of the Local Government: Municipal 

Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000).  

 

My role is not to assess or comment on the 

municipality’s actual performance, but rather to 

assess the processes followed during the 

implementation of the performance management 

system. 

 

2. Nature and Scope  

 

I have performed the procedures agreed with 

management and described below regarding the 

performance management system of Mangaung 

Local Municipality. The assignment was undertaken 

in accordance with the Statements of South African 

Auditing Standards applicable to agreed-upon 

procedures engagements.  

 

The responsibility of determining the adequacy or 

otherwise of the procedures agreed to be 

performed is that of Mangaung Local Municipality. 

My procedures were performed solely to evaluate 

the controls implemented by the accounting officer 

regarding the municipality’s performance 

management system against the criteria set out in:  

 

• chapter 6 of the Municipal Systems Act, 

2000;  

• the Local Government: Municipal Planning 

and Performance Management Regulations, 

2001 (No. R. 796); and 

• international go od practices, 

 

so as to report on the applicable compliance with 

legislation and to assist in identifying possible areas 

for improvement. 

 

The procedures performed during our assignment 

were based on the feedback received from the 

completion of the high-level overview checklist by 

A U D I T O R - G E N E R A L 
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the accounting officer and included a review of the 

following aspects: 

 

• Development of an integrated development 

plan 

• Development of a performance management 

system 

• Development and implementation of key 

performance indicators 

• Setting of targets for key performance 

indicators 

• Actual service delivery process 

• Internal monitoring of performance 

measurements 

• Internal control of the performance 

management system 

• Performance measurement and reporting 

• Revision of strategies and objectives 

 

3. Findings 

 

I report my findings below:  

 

3.1  Integrated development plan 

 

The municipality had developed, adopted and 

implemented a formally documented integrated 

development plan according to a formally 

documented process. 

 

 

3.2 Performance management system 

 

A performance management system was 

developed, adopted and implemented as required 

in terms of sections 38 and 39 of the Local 

Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 and 

chapter 3, paragraph 8 of the Local Government: 

Municipal Planning and Performance Management 

Regulations, 2001. 

 

3.3 Key performance indicators and 

performance targets 

 

In accordance with section 41(1)(a) and (b) of the 

Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 

and chapter 3, paragraphs 9 and 12 of the Local 

Government: Municipal Planning and Performance 

Management Regulations, 2001: 

 

• Key performance indicators were set as a 

yardstick for measuring performance with 

regard to the municipality’s development 

priorities and objectives set out in the 

integrated development plan; and 

 

• Measurable performance targets were set 

with regard to each of those development 

priorities and objectives.  
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3.4 Actual service delivery and internal  

   monitoring 

 

Contrary to the provisions of section 41(1)(c) and 

(d) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems 

Act, 2000 and chapter 3, paragraph 13 of the Local 

Government: Municipal Planning and Performance 

Management Regulations, 2001:  

 

• Except for the first three levels of 

employment, the performance of staff and 

service providers for all levels of the 

organisation was neither measured nor 

reviewed;  

• The performance of staff and service 

providers during the actual service delivery 

process was not tracked; and 

• Actual progress and targeted progress were 

not monitored and compared on a continuous 

basis. 

 

3.5 Internal control 

 

In accordance with section 45(a) of the Local 

Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 and 

chapter 3, paragraph 14 of the Local Government: 

Municipal Planning and Performance Management 

Regulations, 2001, an internal audit section was 

implemented to audit the results of performance 

measures as part of the municipality’s internal 

auditing process. 

An audit committee was appointed to review, 

assess and report on performance measurements. 

This audit committee included one member who 

had expe rtise in performance management, but 

who did not attend any meetings.    

 

However, the performance management audit 

committee could not review or assess mechanisms, 

systems and processes as internal audit 

procedures did not take place.  

 

3.6  Performance measurement and  

 reporting 

 

In terms of regulation 13(2)(a) of the Local 

Government: Municipal Planning and Performance 

Management Regulations, 2001, the mechanisms, 

systems and processes for the monitoring, 

measurement and review of performance in respect 

of the key performance indicators and the targets 

that were set, must provide for reporting to the 

municipal council at least twice a year. A report was 

submitted to the Section 80 committee, but not to 

the council  

 

3.7 Revision strategies and objectives 

 

It was noted that the municipality’s strategies and 

objectives regarding performance management had 

been revised. 
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4. Conclusion 

 

Because the above procedures do not constitute 

either an audit or a review in accordance with 

Statements of South African Auditing Standards, I 

do not express any assurance on any performance 

measurement as at 30 June 2005.  

 

An audit of the financial statements in accordance 

with Statements of South African Auditing 

Standards was concluded and a report to this effect 

was included in the annual report. 

 

This report relates only to the specific phases of the 

performance management system as specified 

above, and does not extend to any financial 

statements of Mangaung Local Municipality, taken 

as a whole. 

 

5. Appreciation 

 

The assistance rendered by the staff of Mangaung 

Local Municipality during the assignment is 

sincerely appreciated. 

 

 

 

BJK van Niekerk 

for Auditor-General 

Bloemfontein 

30 November 2005 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 38

CHAPTER 5: AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT  

AND RELATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

 

5.1 General Information

Grading of Local Authority 

Grade 13 (Grade 5 in terms of Remuneration of 

Public Office Bearers Act 20/1998) 

Auditors       

Auditor-General   

Represented by PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. 

Bankers  

ABSA Bank  

Registered Office 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bram Fischer Building  

De Villiers Street 

Bloemfontein 

P O Box 288 

Bloemfontein  

9300 

Telephone : (051) 405 8911 

Fax:   (051)   447 6673 

Acting City Manager 

T D J Matutle 

 

Executive Director Finance 

J  F Britz: Registered Municipal Accountant 

(Associate) 

Approval of the Financial Statements 

The Annual Financial Statements as set out on 

pages 58 to 70 were approved by the City Manager 

on 29 August 2005 and will be presented to Council 

for approval.

 

 

_____________ ______________    ______________________ 

T D J Matutle  J F Britz 

Acting City Manager  Executive Director Finance  

        (Registered Municipal Accountant) 

29 August 2005       29 August 2005 

Members of the Mayoral Committee 

Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

J  I Mokoena  - 

F S Chaine 

J C Erasmus  

M M Fikizolo 

M E Moilwa 

Executive Mayor - Chairperson Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

Councillor 

N G Mokotjo 

T A Montsi 

M A Scheepers  

M Selaledi 

A T Stander 
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5.2 Report from the Auditor-General  

 

Part 1: Report of the Auditor-General to the 

Council on the Financial Statements of the 

Mangaung Local Municipality for the Year 

Ended 30 June 2005 

 

1. Audit Assignment 

 

The financial statements as set out on pages 60 to 

83 for the year ended 30 June 2005, have been 

audited in terms of section 188 of the Constitution 

of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 

of 1996), read with sections 4 and 20 of the Public 

Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004). These 

financial statements, the maintenance of effective 

control measures and compliance with relevant 

laws and regulations are the responsibility of the 

accounting officer. My responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these financial statements, based on 

the audit. 

 

2. Nature and Scope  

 

The audit was conducted in accordance with 

Statements of South African Auditing Standards. 

Those standards require that I plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the 

financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. 

 

An audit includes: 

 

• examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements, 

• assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management, 

and 

• evaluating the overall financial statement 

presentation. 

 

Furthermore, an audit includes an examination, on 

a test basis, of evidence supporting compliance in 

all material respects with the relevant laws and 

regulations, which came to my attention and are 

applicable to financial matters. 

 

The audit was completed in accordance with 

Auditor-General Direc tive No. 1 of 2005. 

 

I believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis 

for my opinion. 

 

3. Qualification  

 

3.1 Fixed assets 

 

Due to the following matters it was not possible to 

verify the completeness, accuracy, ownership and 

existence of fixed assets in the sum of R822 231 

A U D I T O R - G E N E R A L 
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912, as disclosed in note 6 to the financial 

statements: 

 

(a) A portion of the immovable property of the 

former Botshabelo Transitional Local Council 

that was registered in the name of the Free 

State Provincial Government was transferred 

to Mangaung Local Municipality (MLM) during 

the year.  The value of the property has not 

yet been determined and recorded in the 

fixed asset register of MLM.  Consequently, 

fixed assets are understated by an unknown 

amount.  

 

(b) Procedures and practices followed by the 

council were not consistently effective to 

ensure sufficient control over assets. The 

existence, valuation, completeness and 

ownership of assets included in the fixed 

asset register could not always be confirmed 

due to the following:  

 

(i) the matters reported in (a) and above, 

(ii) the fixed asset register was not always 

updated timeously,  and  

(iii) the descriptions, especially serial 

numbers and location of items, were 

insufficient to identify assets.  

 

3.2 Debtors 

 

(a) Short-term debtors 

 

(i) According to note 10 to the financial 

statements, the provision for bad debts 

amounted to R128 427 657 at 30 June 

2005. According to my calculation this 

amount is understated by 

approximately R54 517 801 (2004:  

R25 899 632).  

 

(ii) Total consumer debtors as disclosed in 

note 10 to the financial statements 

decreased from R568 902 269 at 30 

June 2004 to R526 665 003 at 30 June 

2005, after bad debts in the sum of 

R106 548 143 (2004: R5 521 053) had 

been written off. On current 

transactions, after taking into account 

the bad debts written off, consumer 

debtors increased by R64 310 877. 

The debt collection period for water 

and electricity debtors was 126 days 

(2004: 192 days) and 350 days (2004: 

326 days) in respect of rates and taxes 

debtors at 30 June 2005. For total 

consumer debtors, the collection period 

decreased from 238 days at 30 June 

2004 to 202 days at 30 June 2005.  
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It is therefore essential that drastic 

steps be implemented to encourage 

consumers to pay for services. 

(iii) Included in point (i) above is an amount 

of R46 million in respect of rates and 

taxes that is owed by government 

institutions to the MLM. This is contrary 

to section 35(b) of the Local 

Government: Municipal Finance 

Management Act, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 

2003) (MFMA) which states that 

national and provincial departments 

and public entities must “promptly meet 

their financial commitments towards 

municipalities”.  

(iv) It is also disconcerting that there are 

sundry debtors’ accounts amounting to 

R7 088 341 (2004: R3 869 302), which 

reflected no payments during the 

financial year.  

 

(b) Long-term debtors 

  

(i) According to note 8 to the financial 

statements no provision was made for 

bad debts. According to my calculation 

an amount of R10 921 877 (2004:  

R12 395 181) should be provided in 

respect of long-term debtors.  

 

(ii) Long-term debtors totalling R1 669 501 

(2004: R2 294 852) could not be 

verified during the audit because the 

relevant contracts could not be 

submitted for audit purposes. 

(iii) It is also disconcerting that there are 

erven and housing debtors’ loan 

accounts amounting to R5 289 684 

(2004: R5 289 684), which reflected no 

payments during the financial year.  

 

3.3 Long-term liabilities 

 

It was noted that redemptions as required by 

section 6, paragraph 111 of the Handbook for 

Municipal Finance Officers were not made on a 

number of internal loans. The amount that should 

have been redeemed totals R14 125 921. This has 

the effect that the net fixed assets of R822 231 912, 

the retained surplus of R37 901 703 and the total 

amount of internal loans of R801 793 084 as 

disclosed in appendix B to the financial statements, 

are overstated by the said amount.  

 

3.4 Limitation on scope of audit 

 

The following supporting documentation could not 

be submitted for audit purposes. This placed a 

limitation on the scope of our audit. 
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(a) Tenders 

 

For payments totalling R34 558 884 the 

documentation regarding the relevant tenders was 

not available for audit purposes. It could therefore 

not be verified whether the correct tender 

procedures were followed with regard to these 

payments. 

 

(b) Payments 

 

For payments totalling R37 744 025 the relevant 

supporting documentation could not be submitted 

for audit purposes. It could therefore not be verified 

that these transactions occurred and were 

accurately recorded and that irregular expenditure 

was not incurred. The Directorate Special 

Investigations (Scorpions) confiscated all the 

original supporting documents for payments for the 

year under review. They granted the audit team full 

access to the documentation, but the supporting 

documents could still not be found.   

 

(c) Requisitions 

 

Purchase and internal requisitions totalling 

R4 646 904 could not be submitted for audit 

purposes. It could therefore not be confirmed that 

these purchases and issues were properly 

authorised and that irregular expenditure was not 

incurred.  

3.5 Irregular expenditure 

 

In terms of the MLM’s procurement policy and 

chapter 11 of the MFMA, a municipality shall award 

contracts for goods and services in accordance with 

a system that is fair, equitable, transparent, 

competitive and cost-effective. The following 

irregular expenditure was identified because the 

above was not complied with and this expenditure 

was not disclosed in the financial statements as 

required by section 125(2)(d) of the MFMA. 

 

(a) Tenders 

 

It was noted that for payments totalling R14 684 

919 in respect of contracts for more than R120 000, 

tenders were not called for.  

 

(b) Quotations 

 

It was noted that in respect of payments totalling R1 

849 059 (2004: R4 014 895), the number of 

quotations as required by the council’s financial 

regulations and procurement policy was not 

obtained. In some cases where there could have 

been valid reasons for not obtaining the required 

number of quotations, the reasons were not 

documented.  
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(c) Donation of vehicle 

 

A vehicle was purchased for R269 304. No tenders 

were called for. Although this vehicle is recorded as 

an asset of the council, it was donated to the King 

of Thaba Nchu.   

 

(d) Authorisations 

 

Management policies and procedures were not 

adequately followed and this resulted in payments 

of R715 529 that were approved by personnel who 

exceeded their authorisation limit.  

 

4. QUALIFIED AUDIT OPINION 

 

In my opinion, except for the effect on the financial 

statements of the matters referred to in paragraph 

3, the financial statements fairly present, in all 

material respects, the financial position of the 

council at 30 June 2005 and the results of its 

operations and cash flows for the year then ended, 

in accordance with prescribed accounting practice 

(IMFO) and in the manner required by the MFMA. 

 

5. EMPHASIS OF MATTER  

 

Without further qualifying the audit opinion 

expressed above, attention is drawn to the following 

matters: 

 

5.1  Matters affecting the financial 

statements 

 

5.1.1 Creditors 

 

Creditors totalling R3 119 301 (2004: R1 361 431) 

in respect of assets purchased in the sum of R648 

037 and operating expenses incurred in the sum of 

R2 435 264, were not recorded at 30 June 2005.  

Creditors, assets and operating expenditure as 

disclosed in the financial statements at 30 June 

2005 were therefore understated by the 

aforementioned amounts.  

 

5.2  Matters not affecting the financial 

statements 

 

5.2.1 Matters in the public interest 

 

(a) Mangaung Tourism  

 

During the 2002-03 financial year a forensic audit 

was conducted by an external audit firm appointed 

by the Board of Mangaung Tourism. The Auditor-

General was of the opinion that further investigation 

was necessary. An engagement letter was issued 

on 12 August 2005. To date a response to the 

engagement letter has not been received from the 

MLM. 
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(b) Investigation by the Directorate Special 

Investigations 

 

During June 2005 the Scorpions visited the offices 

of the MLM after allegations of fraud and corruption 

regarding the tender process, tenders and certain 

expenditure in the municipality. Shortly thereafter all 

payment documents, inter alia, were seized and 

removed to their offices. Although the audit team 

was allowed access to these documents, all 

supporting documentation required for audit 

purposes could not be obtained.  

 

In the light of the allegations and the fact that all the 

necessary supporting documentation could not be 

obtained, the risk of not detecting possible fraud 

and error increased significantly. 

 

5.2.2 Financial management 

 

(a) Independent reconciliation and checks 

 

(i) Receipting 

As a result of management policies and procedures 

not being adequately followed and inadequate 

management monitoring and review, the following 

significant control weaknesses were noted 

regarding the receipting of money:  

• Cases were noted where more than a month 

lapsed between the receipt of money and the 

banking of the money. 

• A number of cash register rolls could not be 

submitted for audit purposes. 

• Prescribed procedures regarding the 

cancellation of receipts were not always 

followed.  

• Deposit slips stamped by the bank were not 

always available for audit purposes. 

• In some cases cash received did not total the 

amount that was recorded in the general 

ledger. 

• At some locations there was inadequate 

security over cashier pay points. 

• Receipts for Botshabelo pay points that used 

hand receipts had not always been recorded 

in the general ledger. 

• A number of cases of possible theft of cash 

were also being investigated by internal audit. 

 

The matters raised above significantly increase the 

risk of misappropriation of cash at the MLM.  

 

The following matters are the result of the lack of a 

proper management framework: 

 

(ii) Overtime  

 

A number of personnel received overtime payments 

that were in excess of their basic monthly salary for 

that month. The excessive number of overtime 

hours that the employees worked is in 

contravention of section 10(1) of the Basic 
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Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act No. 75 of 

1997).  

 

(iii) Leave  

 

According to the conditions of service, a minimum 

number of days leave have to be taken by all 

personnel. During the testing of leave it was found 

that a large number of personnel did not comply 

with this condition. This increases the risk that not 

all leave taken was processed. 

 

(iv) Traffic fines 

It is disconcerting to note that although traffic fines 

totalling R27 060 837 were issued during the year, 

only R7 620 784 of this income was collected. The 

poor recovery of income from traffic fines is 

attributable to a lack of policy, procedures and 

control mechanisms in respect of the adjustment of 

fines following application by the transgressor and 

the write-off of invalid or irrecoverable fines. 

  

(v) Biological assets (animals)  

 

It was noted that adequate controls were not in 

place regarding the animals at the zoo as well as 

the farm at Kwaggafontein. This increases the risk 

that animals may be misappropriated.   

 

(vi) Stock 

Stock adjustments to the value of R6 062 798 were 

not reported to or approved by an appropriate 

senior official. Supporting documents for changes 

to information on the computerised stock system 

could also not be submitted for audit purposes. This 

increases the risk that stock might be stolen without 

it being detected.  

 

(b) Control environment 

 

The audit of the computer environment revealed the 

following internal control weaknesses: 

 

(i) Although regular backups were made, 

a formal disaster recovery plan was not 

in place during the year.  

(ii) Although access to the council’s 

computer systems was restricted 

through the use of passwords, a formal 

information technology security policy 

was not in place during the year and 

proper access control procedures were 

not applied. 

(iii) The programmers of the financial 

system utilised by the Treasury sub-

directorate had full access to the 

production environment. The risk 

existed that the programmers could 

make changes to properly tested 

programs without the changes being 

properly tested or authorised, which 
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could result in errors in the program. 

This issue was addressed after year-

end through the implementation of a 

new financial system.  

(iv) These matters were the result of a lack 

of an appropriately documented and 

approved policy and procedure 

framework for the computer 

environment.  

 

(c) Policies and procedures 

 

The council did not have adequate approved 

policies and procedures in place during the year for 

all important business processes. The council was 

in the process of preparing such policies and 

procedures.  

 

(d) Internal audit 

 

Although internal audit reports were issued by 

internal audit, limited reliance was placed on the 

work of internal audit. This resulted from the fact 

that only ad hoc investigations were undertaken by 

internal audit.  

 

(e) Audit committee 

 

The audit committee functioned during the 2003-04 

financial year, but was disbanded during the year 

under review. Although the implementation date for 

section 166 of the MFMA is 1 July 2005, it is good 

corporate governance to have a functioning audit 

committee.  

 

5.2.3 Non-compliance with laws and 

regulations 

 

(a) Unauthorised expenditure 

 

In terms of the Division of Revenue Act, 2004 (Act 

No. 5 of 2004), the purpose of the restructuring 

grant is to support municipal restructuring initiatives 

of large municipalities. During the year the 

restructuring grant was utilised to pay an amount of 

R1 495 025 to sponsor the benefit year of a well-

known soccer player. Due to the fact that this 

expenditure was incurred contrary to the purpose of 

the grant, it is considered to be unauthorised 

expenditure as defined in section 1 of the MFMA. 

The unauthorised expenditure was not disclosed in 

the financial statements as required by section 

125(2)(d) of the MFMA. 

   

(b) New regional office 

 

The council resolved on 14 June 2005 to approve 

the draft agreement for the acquisition of a new 

regional office. Contrary to section 33(c) of the 

MFMA, the city manager had however already 

signed the contract on behalf of the council on 31 

May 2005.  
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As no tenders were called for this project, as 

required by chapter 11 of the MFMA, any payments 

made in future with regard to this project will be 

regarded as irregular. 

 

Section 33(b) of the MFMA requires the council to 

take into account the impact of the contract on 

future municipal tariffs and revenue. Evidence that 

this requirement was met could not be submitted for 

audit purposes. 

 

The erven (erf 2707 and erf 58524 consolidated 

into erf 58526) on which the new regional office will 

be erected were sold to the developer during the 

2004-05 financial year.  

 

(c) Tender register 

 

Capital payments totalling R7 157 180 were not 

recorded in the tender register as required by 

section 112(1)(h)(i) of the MFMA. 

 

(d) Delegated powers 

 

Although some of the delegated powers exercised 

by the executive mayor were reported to the council 

via the executive committee, reports as required in 

terms of section 63 of the Local Government: 

Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) 

(MSA), to advise the council of the delegated 

powers exercised, could not be submitted to audit.  

(e) Attendance of meetings 

 

According to rule 13(7) and (8) of the Standard 

Rules and Orders, Local Government Regulations, 

published on 1 December 2000, a councillor must 

pay a fine of 10% of his/her monthly allowance if 

he/she is absent from a council or committee 

meeting without applying for leave of absence. 

Notwithstanding the fact that these rules were 

transgressed by a number of councillors on at least 

29 occasions during the year under review (2004: 

21 occasions), the relevant councillors were not 

fined.  

 

(f) Financial interests of councillors  

 

On reviewing the register of interests of councillors 

it was found that four councillors did not declare all 

their interests in firms as required by paragraph 7 of 

the Code of Conduct of Councillors.  

 

(g) Consumer accounts of councillors 

 

Contrary to section 12A of schedule 1 to the MSA, it 

was noted that accounts in respect of rates and 

service charges of 10 councillors, totalling R37 548 

(2004: R38 986), had been outstanding for a period 

of more than three months at year-end.  
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(h) Tabling of annual report 

 

Section 46(2) of the MSA states that the 

municipality must table its annual report within one 

month of receiving the audit report. The audit report 

for the 2003-04 financial year was dated 18 March 

2005, but the annual report for the 2003-04 

financial year had not yet been tabled.  

 

(i) Consolidated financial statements 

 

The municipality has not consolidated the annual 

financial statements of MLM and Centlec (Pty) Ltd, 

a municipal entity under its sole control, as required 

by section 122(2) of the MFMA. The non-

compliance in this regard is attributable to the fact 

that Centlec (Pty) Ltd has not yet prepared financial 

statements for the year ended 30 June 2005 as 

required by section 126(2) of the said act.   

 

(j) Matters reported in prior financial years 

 

It is of particular concern that a significant number 

of matters reported in prior audit reports had not 

been adequately addressed as required by section 

131(1) of the MFMA.   

 

5.3  Other audits 

 

An assessment of the results of performance 

measurement in accordance with Statements of 

South African Auditing Standards applicable to 

agreed-upon procedures engagements was 

concluded. A separate report in this regard was 

signed and issued to council on 30 November 

2005.  

 

6. Appreciation 

 

The assistance rendered by the staff of the 

Mangaung Local Municipality during the audit is 

sincerely appreciated. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

BJK van Niekerk 

for Auditor-General 

 

Bloemfontein 

30 November 2005
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5.3 Municipal  Responses to the Auditor 

General  

 

Reports of the Auditor-General on the 

Financial Statements and Results of 

Performance Measurement of Mangaung 

Local Municipality for the Year Ended 30 

June 2005 

 

The attached report dated 30 November 2005 

was received from the Auditor-General on 24 

January 2006.  

 

My comments in the same sequence as the 

report are as follows: 

 

3 QUALIFICATION  

 

3.1 Fixed Assets  

 

(a) The immovable property of the former 

Botshabelo Transitional Local Council 

was transferred to Mangaung Local 

Municipality per title deed numbers 

T004272/2004 and T00005996/2005.  

The erven will now be valuated and 

included in the asset register of the 

current 2005/06 financial year. 

 

 (b)  The audit company, Ernst & Young was 

appointed to conduct a complete asset 

tracking exercise for the whole 

Mangaung area.  All assets will be bar-

coded and a new asset register will be 

compiled.  The project will be completed 

before June 2006. 

 

3.2 Debtors 

 

(a) Short-term debtors 

  

(i) - (ii) The escalating debtors are a major 

cause of concern.  It is imperative that 

drastic steps be implemented to improve 

the outstanding debt situation.  

(iii) The steps taken to recover outstanding 

National and Provincial Government 

debt have been going on for at least the 

last seven or eight years and include the 

following: 

 

• High level meetings at Provincial level 

• High level meetings at National level 

• Provision of detailed reconciliations of all 

arrear accounts 

• Appeals to National Treasury 

 

The success rate has been non-existent and 

there appears to be certain refusals to pay on 

the part of government. 
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Under the circumstances, management will 

again discuss this matter and attempt once 

again to come up with viable solutions to the 

problem. 

 

(iv)  The necessary steps are being taken to 

recover outstanding debt.  Sundry 

accounts that are irrecoverable will be 

written off.  A list in this regard will be 

presented to council in due course for 

approval.  

 

(b)  Long-term debtors 

 

(i) A separate provision for bad debt is not 

made for long-term debtors as only one 

provision exists for all outstanding 

debtors.  The long-term debtors are 

included in the continuous steps taken 

to recover outstanding debt. 

(ii)  The files in question are available from 

either the Housing Division or Council’s 

registration office.  In some cases, 

contracts have been temporary removed 

without leaving any copy therein,  

especially when transfer instructions are 

given to attorneys or defaulters are 

handed over for collections.  The 

Housing Division has indicated that 

control measures will be developed to 

ensure that files have all the proper 

documents, as requested by the 

Auditors. 

(iii) The outstanding erven and housing 

debtors are currently under investigation 

and will be written off if proved to be 

irrecoverable.  

  

3.3 Long-term Liabilities 

 

The redemption of R14 125 921 refers to the 

internal loans of Centlec (Pty) Ltd.  The effective 

date for business was changed from 1 July 2004 

to 1 July 2005.  As the internal loans will be 

written off to establish a shareholder’s loan, no 

provision was made for the redemption of 

internal loans in the budget of Centlec for the 

2004/05 financial year.  Only interest was 

charged to the income statement and the 

redemption was recalculated over the remaining 

period of the loans.  The viewpoint of the 

Auditor-General is not shared, because the 

municipality is allowed to adjust the annual 

redemption amount of internal loans, as long as 

it is redeemed within the original redemption 

period of the loans. 
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3.4 Limitation on scope of audit 

 

(a) Tenders 

 

Of the R34 558 884 noted by the Auditor 

General, in most cases the correct tender 

procedures were followed.  The City Manager 

will follow up on all other issues to ensure that 

each Executive Director addresses these issues. 

 

(b) Payments 

 

Payments to Bloemwater in the amount of R17.3 

million are included in the list. Payments to 

Bloemwater are not subject to a tender process 

as Bloemwater is the sole supplier of water to 

MLM.  Procurements under R120 000 were 

done through a quotation process and a formal 

tender process was also not required in some of 

these instances. 

 

As indicated in the report, the Directorate 

Special Investigations (Scorpions) confiscated 

all the original supporting documents for the last 

two financial years.  The documents were filed 

at their offices in such a manner that some of 

the files could not be found.  Payment vouchers 

are numbered in different sequences for creditor 

and direct payments, which complicated the 

filing system if the documents are not filed 

separately. 

(c) Requisitions 

 

The requisitions are filed at the offices of the 

Supply Chain Management Division.  

Requisitions are captured electronically and it is 

indicated on the system by who requested and 

approved the requisition.  It should also be noted 

that the documents of Supply Chain 

Management were confiscated by the 

Scorpions. 

 

3.5 Irregular Expenditure  

 

(a) Tenders 

 

For many of the items noted by the Auditor 

General the proper tender process was 

followed.  For all issues not yet resolved, the 

City Manager will follow up with each Executive 

Director to ensure they comply with the Supply 

Chain Policy. 

 

(b) Quotations 

 

The new Supply Chain Management Policy was 

approved by Council on 1 September 2005 with 

effect from 1 October 2005.  The procedures for 

the procurement of goods and services are now 

clearly prescribed in the policy in accordance 

with the Municipal Finance Management Act, 

2003. 
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(c) Donation of vehicle 

   

A donation of a Mitsubishi 2.8 Tdi Rodeo 4 x 4 

Doublecab to King Kgosi Moroka of Thaba Nchu 

was approved by the Acting City Manager and 

Executive Mayor.  The vehicle was bought on a 

quotation basis as a matter of urgency.   The 

vehicle was incorrectly recorded by the financial 

system as an asset of the council, and will be 

written off in the current financial year. 

 

(d) Authorisations 

 

The approval limits of the different levels of 

management are now prescribed in the 

Delegation of Power Policy as approved by 

council on 1 September 2005 with effect from 1 

October 2005.  

 

5.  EMPHASIS OF MATTER  

 

5.1 Matters affecting the financial 

statements 

 

5.1.1 Creditors  

  

The non-recording of some creditor invoices 

could be attributed to the late submission of 

invoices after the cut-off date for the year.  

Alternatively as a result of the budgets of 

directorates being exhausted at year-end, 

invoices are withheld to be paid in the next 

financial year. 

 

5.2 Matters not affecting the financial 

 statements  

 

5.2.1 Matters in the public interest 

(a) Mangaung Tourism  

 

The annual contribution to the organisation is 

currently under investigation.  Mangaung 

Tourism is an independent organisation and not 

part of the Mangaung Local Municipality.  

 

(b) Investigation by the Directorate  

 Special Investigations 

 

As mentioned in the report, several documents 

and payment vouchers were removed from 

various offices.  The removal had a serious 

detrimental effect on the daily operations of the 

Finance Directorate.  The confirmations of 

historical data with actual documents are now 

problematic and in some cases impossible as 

the documents were moved from Bloemfontein 

to Pretoria.  

 

5.2.2 Financial Management   

 

(a)  Independent reconciliation and 

 checks 
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(i) Receipting   

 

The problems as indicated in the report emanate 

mainly from the hand receipting pay points in 

Botshabelo.  A report whereby the manual pay 

points will be closed will be submitted to Council 

as soon as possible. The weaknesses in the 

report reflect on isolated cases.  Strict control 

measures are exercised at the various pay 

points of the municipality.   

 

(ii)  Overtime  

 

The detail of excessive overtime hours was 

referred to all the relevant directorates for further 

investigation.  Staff shortages, increasing 

workload and maintenance, were the main 

reasons for an increase in overtime paid.  

 

(iii) Leave  

 

The HR Focus system, currently being 

implemented by Human Resources will be able 

to produce a report at the beginning of each 

month indicating which employee’s compulsory 

leave is due. 

 

(iv)  Traffic fines 

 

The total traffic fines reflected by the audit are 

for all cases that were issued.  The amount 

however is influenced by various other reasons 

like the following: 

 

• People to whom fines were issued might 

not be staying in Mangaung and as a 

result of this it is not possible to deliver 

summonses to them, thus leading to the 

withdrawal of these fines. 

• Some revenue can only be recovered 

after a warrant of arrest has been issued 

against the offender.  The tracing of 

offenders can take up to six months. 

• Each transgressor can make a 

representation and the amount can be 

changed. 

• It can also happen that the fine is not 

completed correctly and is therefore 

withdrawn. 

• The information that is used for 

ownership details on the Natis system is 

not up to date and the transgressor 

cannot be summoned to appear in court. 

• It would therefore be incorrect to expect 

that revenue will be collected from fines 

issued in a particular or specific financial 

year. 

• A total amount of R 3 158 256-16 was 

also paid to Labat Traffic Solutions as 

per agreement. 
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The Traffic Division has also during the course 

of the financial year embarked on an awareness 

campaign to educate the public about traffic 

safety rather than issuing fines.  The Traffic 

Division is also in the process of negotiating a 

contract with Easy Pay whereby offenders can 

make use of outlets such as Pick a Pay, Lewis, 

Hyperama etc. to pay their traffic fines.  This will 

also lead to a further increase in revenue 

collected by the Traffic Division. 

 

(v)  Biological assets (animals) 

 

Animals in the zoo are counted and numbers 

amended when new animals are born or when 

deaths occur, or when new animals are acquired 

through exchange or selling.  Counts are further 

done randomly when time allows and thoroughly 

once a year.  The current record is on hard copy 

only, since the ISIS programme, associated with 

animal inventories worldwide, is too costly.  An 

electronic inventory will be developed together 

with IT. 

 

Control over animals at Kwaggafontein is done 

by means of recor d keeping whereby a list is 

kept of all animals residing on the farm.  This list 

contains information about births, deaths and 

new releases (including where the animals come 

from and from whom).  This list is available 

electronically. 

(vi)  Stock 

 

A new financial system was implemented on 1 

July 2005.  All transactions must now be 

authorized by an independent person as 

nominated on the system.  

 

(b)  Control Environment 

 

The weaknesses in the computer environment 

are being addressed on a continuous basis by 

the relevant computer and IT division.  A new 

financial system was implemented in the current 

financial year. 

 

(c)  Policies and Procedures 

 

Various policies and procedures are being 

prepared in accordance with legislation and will 

be submitted to council for approval. 

  

(d)  Internal Audit 

 

Due to budget limitations, the new and additional 

positions on the approved organisational 

structure for internal audit were delayed and 

could not be filled as initially planned.  An 

internal audit staff component of twenty 

employees was created and approved.  Eleven 

of these positions were frozen during the budget 

process.  At present seven internal auditors are 
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appointed.  Additional vacancies will be filled in 

the current financial year. 

 

(e)  Audit Committee  

 

The Audit Committee will be addressed as part 

of the new Mayor, MAYCO and Council briefing 

and plan for addressing all remaining MFMA 

issues, in 2005/06 and then 2006/07 and 

beyond.  There is now a commitment to 

reconstitute the Audit Committee in 2005/06 and 

beyond, in accordance with the MFMA. 

  

5.2.3 Non-compliance with laws and 

regulations 

 

(a)  Unauthorised expenditure    

 

MLM embarked on a Branding process as part 

of its transformation strategy and the funding of 

this process was from the restructuring grant.  

The Lucas Radebe benefit year was used as a 

platform to market MLM as a host City of the 

2010 Soccer World Cup and to expose itself in 

terms of the new branding by displaying its logo 

and slogan: “City on the Move” as part of the 

roll-out of the branding.  Therefore, MLM 

believes this expenditure was legitimate to fund 

from the restructuring grant. 

 

It is emphasized that the game was used to gain 

the necessary exposure in positioning MLM as a 

host City for the 2010 Soccer World Cup and 

market itself as a City on the Move. 

 

(b)  New Regional Office  

 

MLM believes the process followed with regard 

to this project was legitimate and the project was 

properly approved. 

 

Due regard has been given to Section 33 (b) of 

the MFMA requirement that council take into 

account the impact of the contract on the future 

municipal tariff and revenue. The report 

prepared by the Finance Directorate dated 14 

January 2005 accounted for the impact of the 

contract on future municipal tariff and revenue. 

Also the report dated 2 February 2005 dealt with 

the adherence to Section 33 of the MFMA. The 

later report of 31 March 2005 addressed other 

requirements.  

 

(c)  Tender Register  

 

The audit finding is noted and steps will be 

implemented to adhere to the requirements of 

the Act.   
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(d)  Delegated Powers 

 

A letter has been sent to all Executive Directors 

in this regard.  Such reports should be handed 

over to the City Manager on a monthly basis.  

The office of the City Manager will again issue a 

communique to emphasize the importance of 

this matter. 

 

(e)  Attendance of Meetings 

 

At the beginning of each year and during its first 

meeting of the year, the Council of Mangaung 

Local Municipality approves a schedule of all 

Council meetings, including, ordinary and 

special, for the entire year. This information is 

accordingly provided to Councillors so that they 

may diarise the applicable dates. This is to 

ensure that there is efficiency on the part of 

Council operations. 

 

However, it happened that other crucially 

important and unforeseen matters come up and 

the dates of scheduled meetings are changed at 

the last moment. In some or most of those 

instances some Councillors might have engaged 

themselves in other commitments elsewhere, 

either within the municipal area or out of town, 

especially those that have other employment. It 

was therefore difficult for them to be present at 

Council meetings. There was also a problem of 

late delivery of agendas to Councillors. 

 

The records indicate that incidents of absence 

from Council meetings happened mostly on the 

dates of meetings that were rescheduled. There 

were no Councillors who were sanctioned for 

non-attendance of meetings since the waiver of 

penalty by Council in July 2004.  

 

Finally, the Speaker’s Office will review all 

previous cases to determine if there was any 

negligence on the part of the affected 

Councillors or not. If the findings of the 

Speaker’s Office are that there was indeed 

negligence, then the penalty will be imposed. 

 

In the meantime and in relation to the new 

Council, pro-active measures have been put in 

place to ensure that the problem does not recur. 

Some of these measures are to ensure that the 

Office of Speaker also plays a crucial role in the 

preparation and the final issuing of the agendas 

so that it is able to monitor that they are issued 

and distributed on time. To ensure that there is 

proper recording of both oral and written 

applications of leave of absence from meetings. 

And to follow up on Councillors who were absent 

from meetings to establish with them the 

reasons for such absence so that if there were 

valid reasons preventing a particular Councillor 
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from attending a meeting that may be recorded 

accordingly. Lastly, to ensure that there is 

improved communication between the Office of 

Speaker and Committee Services on matters  

relating to Council meetings. 

 

(f)  Financial Interest of Councillors 

 

During the year under review, it was noted that 

four Councillors did not disclose their interests 

by completing the necessary disclosure forms 

either due to lack of appreciation of their action 

or by assumption that if there was nothing to 

disclose, then there is no need to complete the 

forms. 

 

Three councillors were contacted by the Office 

of the City Manager directly and they dully 

complied and completed the disclosure forms. 

Only one Councillor did not comply with the 

request from the Office of the City Manager. 

This matter was then referred to the Office of 

Speaker to intervene and take a corrective 

action.  The matter was taken up with the 

affected Councillor and it was resolved and the 

affected Councillor completed the disclosure 

forms.  

 

To prevent this problem happening again in 

future, the Office of Speaker has put measures 

in place. This includes conducting orientation 

meetings with all Councillors immediately after 

the elections and bringing to their attention the 

legislative provisions on disclosures and their 

implications and/or imperatives. Councillors 

were notified of the deadline for submission of 

the forms and further advised that they need to 

check their information regularly and on an 

annual basis to update it. The Office of Speaker 

will also ensure that they too keep proper record 

of all disclosures so that they are in a position to 

identify on time any non-compliance on the part 

of any Councillor.   

 

(g)  Consumer accounts of Councillors 

 

Eight of the ten Councillors with arrears 

outstanding as at 30 June 2005 have either paid 

their accounts in full or have made significant 

payments on the accounts - certain Councillors 

have disputed the amounts owed to the 

municipality and the issues have not yet been 

resolved.  MLM management will follow up with 

each Councillor individually to resolve these 

issues.   

 

There are efforts that have been put in place by 

the Office of Speaker to avoid the same problem 

happening in future. One such action is that all 

councillors have received on orientation 

immediately after the election and the matter 

and the legislative provisions related thereto 
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were brought to their attention. All councillors 

have been advised to settle their service 

accounts promptly. 

Additionally, the City Manager will direct the 

Finance Directorate to implement a regular 

monthly process to keep Councillors and the 

City Manager's Office appraised of future issues 

so that they can be addressed in a more timely 

manner as opposed to the previous situation 

when the information was only supplied on a 

quarterly basis. It I also an added responsibility 

of the Councillor Support Officer in the Office to 

deal with individual councillors who may seem to 

fall into arrears to alert them to that fact and 

request that they rectify the situation on time. 

Any failure by any councillor to heed the request 

and intervention by Councillor Support Officer 

will immediately be referred to the Speaker for 

some appropriate action.  

 

For the Councillors with arrears outstanding 

during the year, no amounts were noted as 

outstanding by the Finance Directorate, nor by 

the Auditor General, as of 30 June 2005.  

 

(h)  Tabling of Annual Report  

 

The 2003/04 Annual Report was tabled and 

adopted by Council on 9 February 2006.  

Additionally, Council directed the Mayor to 

create an Annual Report oversight committee to 

direct and ensure implementation of corrective 

action on the issues in the 2003/04 report and in 

the 2004/05 report, so as to eliminate the audit 

qualification for 2005/06.  Council further 

commented that bonuses and other 

compensation of those responsible for would be 

affected, if this objective was not achieved. 

 

(i)  Consolidated Financial Statements 

 

The effective date for Centlec (Pty) Ltd was 

changed from 1 July 2003 to 1 July 2005.  A 

note was included in the financial statements of 

Mangaung (note 28.2) that the financial 

statements are as, a result of the change of the 

effective date, therefore not yet consolidated.  

 

(j)  Matters reported in prior financial 

years 

 

The concern of the Auditor-General is noted and 

will be addressed on Executive Management 

level. 

 

Part 2: Report of the Auditor-General on the 

Financial Statements of the Bloemet 

Consolidated Metropolitan Transport Fund 

for the Year Ended 30 June 2005.  

 

No qualification is made by the Auditor-General 

in respect of the financial statements of the 



 

 59 

Bloemet Consolidated Metropolitan Transport 

Fund. 

 

Report of the Auditor-General to the Council 

on Performance Measurement at Mangaung 

Local Municipality for the Year Ended 30 

June 2005. 

 

MLM is pleased that the Auditor General’s 

Report on Performance Measurement is 

generally very positive: 

 

• MLM has an Integrated Development Plan 

that is integrated with the Budget 

• MLM has a performance measurement  

system in place, with key performance 

indicators and performance targets 

• The top three levels of management at MLM 

have performance agreements in place and 

are evaluated in accordance with the 

agreements. 

 

MLM notes and acknowledges certain remaining 

deficiencies with its performance measurement 

system, as cited by the Auditor General, and 

commits to addressing these issues 

expeditiously. 
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5.4 Report of the Executive Director: 

 Finance for the Financial Year 1 July 

 2004 to 30 June 2005 

 

5.4.1 Operating results 

 

Details of the operating results per department, 

classification and object of expenditure are 

included in appendices D and E.  The applicable 

statistics are shown in appendix F.  The overall 

operating results for the year ended 30 June 

2005 are as follows:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
5.4.1.1 Rate and general services 

 

 Actual 
2004 

Actual 
2005 

Variance 
2004/2005 Budget 

2005 
Variance 
Actual/ 
Budget 

 R R % R % 
Income 
Expenditure 

545 649 040 
615 109 850 

671 062 004 
732 773 645 

23.0 
19.1 

677 484 070 
766 961 810 

(0.9) 
(4.5) 

Surplus/(Deficit) (69 460 810) (61 711 641) 11.2 (89 477 740) 31.0 
Surplus/(Deficit) as % of total income  (12.7) (9.2)  (13.2)  

 Actual 
2004 

Actual 
2005 

Variance 
2004/2005 Budget 

2005 
Variance 
Actual/ 
Budget 

 R R % R % 

INCOME 
 
Opening surplus 
Operating income for the year 

 
 

34 413 804 
1 213 475 945 

 
 

36 381 643 
1 415 978 470 

 
 

5.7 
16.7 

 
 

11 292 630 
1 402 979 090 

 
 

222.2 
0.9 

 1 247 889 749 1 452 360 113 16.4 1 414 271 720 2.7 

EXPENDITURE 
 
Operating expenditure for the year 
Sundry transfer 
Closing surplus  

 
 

1 153 556 564 
57 951 542 
36 381 643 

 
 

1 334 125 281 
79 380 161 
38 854 671 

 
 

15.7 
37.0 

6.8 

 
 

1 413 643 210 
 

628 510 

 
 

(5.6) 
 

6 082.0 

 1 247 889 749 1 452 360 113 16.4 1 414 271 720 2.7 
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The actual deficit is R27.8 million less than the 

budgeted deficit of R89.5 million.  This was 

mainly due to savings on salaries as a result of 

vacancies, which existed during the financial 

year. 

 

5.4.1.2 Housing Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 Actual 
2004 

Actual 
2005 

Variance 
2004/2005 Budget 

2005 
Variance 
Actual/ 
Budget 

 R R % R % 

Income 
Expenditure 

6 405 842 
6 846 430 

6 772 319 
11 249 636 

5.7 
64.3 

7 909 240 
13 127 230 

(14.4) 
(14.3) 

Surplus/(deficit) (440 588) (4 477 317) (916.2) (5 217 990) 14.2 
Surplus/(deficit) as % of total 
income (6.9) (66.1)  (66.0)  

 
 

In accordance with the stipulation of the Housing 

Act (Act 107 of 1997), the net proceeds of the 

housing schemes must be transferred to the 

operating account of the Housing Fund.  The 

deficit represents the administration cost to be 

allocated to the Rate and General Services. 

 

5.4.1.3 Trading Services  

 

The purchase prices of water and electricity are 

subject to administered adjustments by Bloem 

Water Board and Eskom respectively. The 

purchase price of purified water increased by 

approximately 7.10% and the purchase price of 

electricity by 4.2% during the 2004/2005 

financial year. 
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(i) Electricity Service   

 

 Actual 
2004 

Actual 
2005 

Variance 
2004/2005 Budget 

2005 
Variance 
Actual/ 
Budget 

 R R % R % 

Income 
Expenditure 

433 197 199 
350 293 906 

489 227 515 
384 539 598 

12.9 
9.8 

486 956 460 
423 957 610 

0.5 
(9.3) 

Surplus/(deficit) 82 903 293 104 687 917 26.3 62 998 850 66.2 
Surplus/(deficit) as % of total 
income 19.1      21.4  12.9  

 

An amount of R73.4 million will be transferred to 

the Rate and General Services as a contribution 

in relief of rates. The utilization of the power 

station for the own generation of electricity and 

load control resulted in a saving of R24.3 million 

on the purchase of electricity from Eskom.  

Refer also to note 28. 

 

(ii)  Fresh Produce Market 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Actual 
2004 

Actual 
2005 

Variance 
2004/2005 Budget 

2005 
Variance 
Actual/ 
Budget 

 R R % R % 

Income 
Expenditure 

9 512 390 
8 080 208 

9 631 042 
9 025 891 

1.2 
11.7 

10 267 320 
8 339 220 

(6.2) 
8.2 

Surplus/(deficit) 1 432 182  605 151 (57.7) 1 928 100 (68.6) 
Surplus/(deficit) as % of total 
income 15.1 6.3  18.8  

 

Increases in overtime, bank charges, electricity 

and water consumption resulted in an excess of 

8.2% over the budgeted expenditure.  This was 

mainly due to adjustments in work hours in the 

Conditions of Service and extensions to the 

cold-room facilities. The income from 

commission from market agents was R608 120 

less than the budgeted amount.  The surplus will 

be transferred to the Rate and General Services. 
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(iii) Water Service 

 

 Actual 
2004 

Actual 
2005 

Variance 
2004/2005 Budget 

2005 
Variance 
Actual/ 
Budget 

 R R % R % 

Income 
Expenditure 

218 711 474 
173 226 170 

239 285 590 
196 536 511 

9.4 
13.5 

220 362 000 
201 257 340 

8.6 
(2.3) 

Surplus/(deficit) 45 485 304 42 749 079 (6.0) 19 104 660 123.8 
Surplus/(deficit) as % of total 
income 20.8 17.9  8.7  

 
 

An amount of R27 million will be transferred to 

the Rate and General Services account as a 

contribution in relief of rates.  The income from 

the sale of water was R16.3 million more than 

the budgeted amount, whilst the purchase of 

water was R6.1 million less than the amount 

budgeted for.  

 

5.4.2 Capital expenditure and financing 

 

The expenditure on fixed assets during the year 

amounted to R253 022 644.  The actual 

expenditure is 4.4% more than the amount 

budgeted for.  Additional funds received from 

government for infrastructure development and 

the new financial system resulted in an over 

expenditure on the approved budget. 
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 2005 
Actual 

2005 
Budget 

2004 
Actual 

 R R R 

Rate and General Services 
 
Executive Office 
 
Community and Social Development 
- Emergency Services 
- Traffic and Security Services 
- Parks and Cemeteries  
- Social Development 
- Health Services 
 
Corporate Services 
- Corporate Management Support  
- Info Management and Technology 
- Human Resource Management 
 
Infrastructure Services 
- Administrative Support Services 
- Roads and Stormwater 
- Sanitation 
- Mechanical Services 
- Solid Waste 
 
Finance 
 
Economic Development And Planning 
- Planning 
- Economic Development 

 
 

543 935 
 
 

3 209 866 
6 868 211 
4 813 241 
1 936 573 

840 353 
 
 

1 763 621 
1 525 413 

142 870 
 
 

45 307 
70 017 849 
58 614 499 

91 855 
4 820 982 

 
9 338 190 

 
 

3 469 951 
964 105 

 
 

0 
 
 

3 208 830 
686 800 

5 460 205 
2 374 230 
1 042 500 

 
 

1 820 000 
2 131 000 

0 
 
 

0 
60 012 340 
48 711 320 

100 000 
4 598 000 

 
3 843 500 

 
 

4 168 000 
2 210 000 

 
 

1 415 592 
 
 

1 247 548 
2 041 605 
6 318 808 
3 696 825 
4 767 288 

 
 

9 659 487 
2 293 301 

 
 
 

933 484 
57 639 252 
51 670 130 

504 364 
2 409 220 

 
1 242 643 

 
 

6 305 077 
546 412 

Subtotal 169 006 821 140 366 725 152 691 036 

Housing Service 4 396 410 12 299 680 4 908 627 

Trading Services 
 

     Electricity 
 
     Fresh Produce Market 
 
     Water 

 
 

40 786 377 
 

733 694 
 

38 099 342 

 
 

55 912 530 
 

100 000 
 

33 597 470 

 
 

58 032 976 
 

1 822 864 
 

28 750 491 

Subtotal 79 619 413 89 610 000 88 606 331 

Grand Total 253 022 644 242 276 405 246 205 994  
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Resources used to finance the fixed assets were 

as follows: 

 

 

 

 

 Actual 
2005 

Budget 
2005 

Actual 
2004 

 R R R 

Capital Development Fund 

Contributions from operating income 

Provisions and reserves 

Erven Trust Fund 

Grants and subsidies  

Public contributions 

137 015 111 

932 197 

8 311 799 

2 036 501 

95 056 849 

9 670 187 

134 493 825 

1 222 920 

10 252 600 

2 450 000 

77 893 220 

15 963 840 

144 748 883 

2 841 548 

2 956 391 

5 097 710 

81 945 297 

8 616 165 

Total 253 022 644 242 276 405 246 205 994 
 

A complete analysis of capital expenditure 

(budgeted and actual) per classification or 

service is included in appendix C.  More details 

regarding external loans and internal advances 

used to finance fixed assets are shown in 

appendix B. 

 

5.4.3. External loans, investments and cash 

 

External loans outstanding on 30 June 2005 are 

R20 438 828 as set out in appendix B.   

 

Investments, cash and bank on 30 June 2005 

amounted to R400 941 408. 

 

More information regarding loans and 

investments is disclosed in the notes (4 and 7) 

and appendix B to the financial statements. 

 

 

5.4.4.  Funds and reserves  

 

More information regarding funds and reserves 

is disclosed in the notes (1 to 3) and appendix A 

to the financial statements. 
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5.5 Accounting Policies 

 

5.5.1 Basis of presentation 

 

5.1.1 The financial statements have been 

prepared so as to conform to the 

standards laid down by the Institute of 

Municipal Finance Officers in its Code 

of Accounting Practice (1996) and 

Report on Published Annual Financial 

Statements (Second edition - January 

1996). 

5.1.2 The financial statements are 

prepared on the historical cost basis, 

adjusted for capital expenditure as 

more fully detailed in paragraph 

three.  The accounting policies are 

consistent with those applied in the 

previous year, except as otherwise 

indicated. 

5.1.3 The financial statements are 

prepared on the accrual basis 

whereas certain direct income is 

accrued when received, such as 

traffic fines, pre-paid electricity and 

certain licenses. 

 

5.5.2 Consolidation 

 

The balance sheet includes the Rate and 

General Services, Housing Service, Trading 

Services and the different funds and reserves.  

All interdepartmental charges are set off against 

each other, with the exception of assessment 

rates, refuse removal, electricity and water, 

which are treated as income and expenditure in 

the respective departments. 

 

5.5.3 Fixed Assets 

5.5.3.1 Fixed Assets are stated: 

 

- at historical cost, or 

- at valuation (based on the market price 

at date of acquisition), where assets 

have been acquired by grant or 

donation, or 

- at valuation on date of 

transfer/acquisition.  

 

while the assets are in existence and fit for use, 

except in the case of assets which are written off 

at the end of their estimated life as determined 

by the Executive Director Finance.  Erven are 

stated at valuation as recorded in the valuation 

roll. 

 

5.5.3.2 Capital outlay is financed from various 

sources including operating income, 

Government loans, external loans, 

contributions by the public and internal 

advances.  The period of internal 

advances is equated to the lives of the 

assets that are being financed and the 

services concerned are being charged 

interest at the internal interest rate. 

 

5.5.3.3 Depreciation 

 

The balance shown against the heading "Loans 

Redeemed and Other Capital Receipts" in the 

notes to the balance sheet is tantamount to a 

provision for depreciation, however, certain 

structural differences do exist.  By way of this 

"provision" assets are written down over their 

estimated useful life.  Apart from advances from 
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the various council funds, assets may also be 

acquired through: 

 

- Appropriations from income, where the 

full cost of the asset forms an immediate 

and direct charge against the operating 

income. 

 

- Grant or donation, where the amount 

representing the value of such grant or 

donation is immediately credited to the 

"Loans Redeemed and Other Capital 

Receipts" account, and therefore it is 

unnecessary to make any further 

provision for depreciation. 

  

5.5.3.4 The net proceeds on the sale of 

immovable property are credited to 

the Erven Trust Fund. 

 

The net proceeds on the sale of movable 

property are : 

 

- credited to the Capital Development 

Fund if it amounts to R1 000 or more. 

 

- credited to income if it amounts to less 

than R1 000. 

 

5.5.4 Inventory  

 

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, 

determined on the weighted average basis, and 

net realisable value. 

 

5.5.5 Funds, Reserves an d Provisions 

 

5.5.5.1 Reserves and provisions have been 

established where considered 

necessary.  The basis used in 

determining contributions to these 

funds is as follows: 

 

(a) Replacement Funds  

 

Water Service - 1% of the capitalised value of 

the assets in the undertaking concerned at the 

end of the previous financial year. 

Electricity Service - ½ % of the capitalised value 

of the assets in the undertaking concerned at 

the end of the previous financial year. 

 

(b) Capital Development Funds 

 

Not less than 1% of the defined annual income. 

 

(c) Insurance Fund 

 

An insurance reserve has been established to 

cater for losses not covered in the external 

policy.  The contributions are provided as 

estimated by the Council's Insurance Brokers 

and are charged against the various services. 

 

The following risks are insured under the 

reserve fund: 

 

S Business all risk 

S Glass 

S Business interruption, and 

S Motor fleet 

 

(d) The policies for funds and reserves as 

compiled and approved by Council, are 
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available at the department of the 

Executive Director Finance.  

 

(e) Leave -pay Provision 

 

An estimated amount is transferred annually to 

the leave-pay provision.  It is the policy of the 

Council to carry a provision of not less than 25% 

of the outstanding amount. 

 

5.5.6 Surpluses and Deficits 

 

The policy with regard to trading surpluses and 

deficits is: 

 

Electricity Services – A maximum of 15% of the 

gross income derived from the electricity service 

is appropriated as a contribution towards the 

relief of rates.  The balance is carried forward to 

the next financial year. 

 

 

Produce Market - The surplus is transferred to 

Rate and General Services as a contribution 

towards the relief of rates. 

 

Water Service - A maximum of 15% of the gross 

income derived from the sale of water is 

appropriated as a contribution towards the relief 

of rates.  The balance is carried forward to the 

next financial year.  

 

5.5.7 Treatment of administration and other 

overhead expenses 

 

Administration expenses are charged to the 

various services on a sliding scale based on the 

expenditure of the relevant department. 

5.5.8 Leased Assets 

 

Fixed assets held under finance leases are 

capitalised.  Such assets are effectively 

amortised over the term of the lease agreement. 

 

Lease finance charges are allocated to 

accounting periods over the duration of the 

leases, which reflects the extent and cost of 

lease finance utilised in each accounting period. 

 

5.5.9 Investments 

 

Investments are shown in the statements at 

original cost or market value if a permanent 

decline in the value occurred and are invested in 

the securities prescribed in Section 6 of the 

Municipal Investment Regulations, as 

determined by Section 13 of the Local 

Government: Municipal Finance Management 

Act, 2003 (Act number 56 of 2003). 

 

5.5.10  Income Recognition 

 

5.5.10.1 Electricity and Water billings 

 

Meters on properties are read and billed 

monthly. 

 

5.5.10.2 Pre-paid electricity 

 

Income is accrued when the cash is received. 

 

5.5.10.3 Assessment Rates 

 

Mangaung Local Municipality applies a 

differential partial site rating system.  In terms of 

this system the assessment rates are levied 
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partly on the municipal valuation of the ratable 

property without any improvements and partly 

on the municipal valuation of the improvements 

forming part of the ratable property. 

 

5.5.11 Retirement Benefits 

 

Mangaung Local Municipality, its employees and 

Councillors contribute to the following pension- 

or provident funds: 

 

Free State Municipal Pension Fund 

SALA Pension Fund 

Municipal Councillor’s Pension Fund 

Free State Municipal Provident Fund 

SAMWU National Provident Fund 

Mangaung Multi Provident Fund 

Government Employees Pension Fund 

Old Mutual Orion 

 

These funds provide retirement benefits to 

employees and councillors and are subject to 

the Pension Funds Act, 1956.  Benefits are 

being calculated according to the different funds’ 

rules.  Current contributions are charged against 

operating income. 

 

Actuarial valuations are performed by the 

relevant pension funds at least every three 

years. 

 

 

5.5.12 Medical Aid Funds 

 

Mangaung Local Municipality, its employees, 

Councillors and pensioners contribute to the 

following medical aid funds. 

Employees and pensioners: 

Munimed 

Bonitas Medical Fund 

Global Health 

Hosmed 

Samwumed 

LA Health 

 

Councillors : 

 

Bonitas 

Discovery 

Oxygen 

Medicover 

Fedhealth 

Munimed 

Hosmed 

 

Benefits are being calculated according to the 

rules of the different funds.  Current 

contributions are charged against operating 

income. 
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5.6 Balance Sheet at 30 June 2005 
 
         

  
Note 

 2005 

R 
   

2004 

R 

  

 CAPITAL EMPLOYED 

Funds and Reserves 
 

 

 

   

 

  

Statutory Funds  

Reserves  

1 

2 
 

1 132 427 471 

136 303 858 
   

1 029 810 531 

174 567 623 

  

 Retained Surplus  17  37 901 703    36 381 643   

    1 306 633 032    1 240 759 797   

 Accumulated Housing Fund 

Operating Account 

 

26 

  

63 965 885 

    

71 389 731 

  

           

 Trust Funds  

Long Term Liabilities 

Consumer Deposits - Services  

3 

4 

5 

 6 618 876 

19 031 651 

39 388 461 

   6 182 020 

20 440 486 

36 342 080 

  

    1 435 637 905     1 375 114 114   

 EMPLOYMENT OF CAPITAL          

Fixed Assets  

Investments 

Long Term Debtors 

6 

7 

8 

 822 231 912 

8 293 

49 962 151 

   728 568 075 

8 293 

55 825 096 

  

    872 202 356    784 401 464   

  

Net Current Assets  
 

  

563 435 549 

    

590 712 650 

  

 Current Assets    839 141 000    830 682 072   

Stock 

Debtors 

Short-term investments 

Short-term portion of long-term debtors 

Cash and Bank 

    9 

    10 

    7 

    8 

 17 349 884 

398 237 346 

277 758 992 

22 620 655 

123 174 123 

   28 713 324 

399 060 289 

317 024 927 

22 240 678 

63 642 854 

  

  

Current Liabilities  
 

  

275 705 451 

    

239 969 422 

  

Provisions 

Creditors 

Short-term portion of long-term liabilities 

    11 

    12 

    4 

 21 514 138 

252 784 136 

1 407 177 

   14 967 457 

223 685 824 

1 316 141 

  

           
           
    1 435 637 905    1 375 114 114   
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5.7 Income Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 
 
 

 2004  2004  2004   2005  2005  2005  2005  

 
Actual 

Income 
 

Actual 

Expenditure 
 

Surplus/ 

(Deficit) 
  

Actual 

Income 
 

Actual 

Expenditure 
 

Surplus/  

(Deficit) 

 Budget 

Surplus/ 

(Deficit) 

 

 R  R  R   R  R  R  R  

                

 
545 649 040  615 109 850  (69 460 810)  

Rate and General 

Services 
671 062 004  732 773 645  (61 711 641)  (89 477 740) 

 

                

 407 977 174  401 139 066  6 838 108  Community Services 529 842 558  506 116 7366  23 725 822  (174 680)   

 12 964 735  97 740 605  (84 775 870)  Subsidised Services 12 062 101  101 683 465  (89 621 364)  (89 963 230)  

 124 707 131  116 230 179  8 476 952  Economic Services 129 157 345  124 973 444  4 183 901  660 170  

                

 6 405 842  6 846 430  (440 588)  Housing Services 6 772 319  11 249 636  (4 477 317)  (5 217 990)  

 661 421 063  531 600 284  129 820 779  Trading Services 738 144 147  590 102 000  148 042 147  84 031 610  

 1 213 475 945  1 153 556 564  59 919 381  Total 1 415 978 470  1 334 125 281  81 853 189  (10 664 120)  

                

                

 
68 691 098  58 308 967  10 382 131 

Distribution, Suspense 

and Quarry Accounts 
18 272 160  19 225 128  (952 968)  - 

 

                

 
    (58 037 455)  

Appropriation for the year  

(Refer to note 17) 
 (79 380 161)   

 

     12 264 057  Net Surplus/(Deficit) of the Year  1 520 060    

                

     24 117 586  Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) Beginning of the Year  36 381 643    

                

     36 381 643  Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit) End of the Year  37 901 703    

                

                

Refer to Appendix D, E and E(i) for more details      
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5.8 Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 
 
 

 
 Note 2005  2004 

 

   R  R  

 Cash Retained from Operating Activities   274 605 777  239 016 159  

 Cash generated by operations 

Investment income 

(Increase)/decrease in working capital 

18 

16 

19 

47 989 847 

32 858 914 

91 228 367 

 

185 941 863 

43 645 475 

(61 080 017) 

 

  

 

Less: External interest paid 

 

 

16 

172 077 128 

 

(2 198 387) 

 

168 507 321 

 

(2 354 107) 

 

 Cash available from operations  

 

Cash contributions from the public and State 

 

169 878 741 

 

104 727 036 

 

166 153 214 

 

72 862 945 

 

  

 

Cash Utilised in Investing Activities 

 

Investment in fixed assets  

 

 

 

 

6 

 

 

 

 

(253 022 644) 

 

 

 

 

 

(246 205 994) 

 

 Net Cash Flow  21 583 133  (7 189 835)  

  

Cash Effects of Financing Activities: 

 

Increase/(Decrease) in long-term loans  

(Increase)/Decrease in cash investments 

(Increase)/Decrease in cash 

 

 

 

20 

21 

22 

 

 

 

(1 317 799) 

39 265 935 

(59 531 269) 

 

 

 

 

 (2 082 757) 

(1 747 015) 

11 019 607  

 

 Net Cash (Generated)/Utilized  (21 583 133)  7 189 835  
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5.9 Notes to the Financial Statements at 30 June 2005 
 
 

  
 

2005 
R  2004 

R 
 

 1. STATUTORY FUNDS 
 

Capital Development Fund 
Insurance Fund 
Erven Trust Fund  

 
1 031 457 319 

75 901 832 
25 068 320  

 
 

937 743 786 
69 965 924 
22 100 821 

 

 (Refer to note 25 and appendix A for more detail)  1 132 427 471  1 029 810 531  

 
2. RESERVES 

Protection Services  

Disaster Management 
Parking Fund 

Parks and Recreation 

Tennis Court Surface Renewal Fund 

Infrastructural Services 

Vehicles and Plant - Maintenance 

Gravel Quarries 

General Reserve 

Special And Sundry Reserves 
 

Market Deficit 
Workmen's Compensation Act 
Student Bursaries 
Capital Reserve 
Stores Contingencies Account 
General Reserve - Petra Quarry  
General Reserve - Business Entity 

  

 
 
 
 

3 467 134 
4 037 048 

 
 
 
 

 2 415 865 
 
 
 
 

405 350 
 
 
 

936 954 
 
 
 

2 030 539 
15 613 642 

767 490 
2 738 515 

10 508 378 
7 348 928 

68 200 718 

  
 
         
 

3 339 836 
3 728 353 

 
 
 
 

2 257 374 
 
 
 
 

378 757 
 
 
 

875 486 
 
 
 

1 897 327 
15 078 401 

738 991 
2 558 856 

15 858 838 
6 866 806 

102 741 548 
 

 

 Water Service  
 

Tariff Stabilisation Fund 
Replacement Fund - General Mains, etcetera  

 
 

4 211 970 
13 621 327 

  
 

3 935 646 
14 311 404 

 

 (Refer to appendix A for more detail)  136 303 858  174 567 623 
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 Notes to the Financial Statements at 30 June 2005 (Continued) 

 
  

2005 

R 
 

2004 

R 
 

 3. TRUST FUNDS 
Cultural Fund 
The Tomory Bequest 
Alfred Leith Non-European Endowment Fund 
R T B de Villiers Trust 
A E Fichardt Trust 
Coloured Old Age Home (OVV) 
Relief fund : Home for Coloureds 
Johan Ströhfeldt Trust  

139 964 
12 665 

2 199 
324 277 

5 930 782 
46 494 

136 780 
25 715  

 
130 782 

9 035 
2 224 

303 003 
5 541 697 

43 444 
127 807 

24 028 

 

(Refer to appendix A for more detail) 6 618 876 6 182 020 
4. LONG-TERM  LIABILITIES  

Government Loans                           
Development Bank of Southern Africa 

230 669 
20 208 159  

 
330 181 

21 426 446 

 

   20 438 828  21 756 627  
(Refer to appendix B for more detail on long term liabilities)    
Less : Current portion transferred to Current Liabilities 1 407 177  1 316 141 

 Government Loans 
Development Bank of Southern Africa  

109 712 
1 297 465  

99 512 
1 216 629 

 

       
   19 031 651  20 440 486  

The above loans were advanced for infrastructure projects.  
They bear interest at rates from 8.50 % to 14.00% per annum 
and were originally repayable over periods of between twenty 
and thirty years.  The final dates of repay ment vary from 31 
December 2005 to 31 December 2015. 

 
None of the loans are secured by any assets of the Council. 
 

5. CONSUMER DEPOSITS - SERVICES 
Electricity and water  39 388 461  

 
36 342 080 

 

 Guarantees held in lieu of electricity and water deposits 10 352 633  10 855 765  

 6. FIXED ASSETS 
Fixed assets at the beginning of the year  
Capital expenditure during the year 
Assets written off, transferred or disposed of during the year 

2 855 626 855 
253 022 644 

5 835 838  

2 414 798 192 
246 205 994 
194 622 669 

 

Total fixed assets  
Less : Loans redeemed and other capital receipts 

3 114 485 337 
(2 292 253 425)  

2 855 626 855 
(2 127 058 780) 

 

Net fixed assets  822 231 912  728 568 075 
    
Refer to appendix C and section 2 of the Report of  the Executive Director Finance for 
more detail on fixed assets)    
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Notes to the Financial Statements at 30 June 2005 (Continued) 

 
  

 
2005 

R  2004 

R 

 

 7. INVESTMENTS 
Unlisted 

Centlec (Pty) Ltd 
Senwes Ltd Shares 
OVK Holdings Ltd  

 
 

100 
5 658 
2 535  

 
 

100 
5 658 
2 535 

 

  
Short-term 

8 293 
277 758 992  

8 293 
317 024 927 

 

 
 277 767 285  317 033 220 

               
 Management valuation of unlisted investments 277 767 285  317 033 220 
 Average rate of return on investments 7.02%  8.86% 
 The Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 requires local 

authorities to invest funds not immediately required in investments types as 
prescribed in the Municipal Investment Regulations. 
 
Included in investments, is an amount of R358 992, being the balance of an 
investment at an institution currently under receivership. 
 
An investment of R6 000 000 is pledged as security to the Commissioner of the 
Workmen's Compensation Fund to guarantee the payment of claims in respect of 
accidental injuries while on duty. 
 
No investments have been written off during the year. 
    

 8. LONG-TERM  DEBTORS 
Loans to Local Authorities 
Housing Loans to Individuals and Public Organisations 
Mortgage Bonds to Employees 
Car loans 
Study loans 
Erven Trust 

  
8 337 502 

28 331 120 
4 905 579 

16 412 239 
358 757 

14 237 609 

  
6 368 244 

26 941 171 
6 603 245 

24 188 117 
921 535 

13 043 462 

 

 
Less:  Short-term portion of long-term debtors transferred to current assets  

72 582 806 
(22 620 655)  

78 065 774 
(22 240 678) 

 

  49 962 151  55 825 096  

9. STOCK 17 349 884  28 713 324  

 Stock represents consumable stores, raw materials, work in progress and finished 
goods.  Where necessary specific provision is made for obsolete stock.    

 10. DEBTORS 
Current debtors (consumer and other) 
Provision for bad debts  

 
526 665 003 

(128 427 657)  

 
568 902 269 

(169 841 980) 

 

  398 237 346  399 060 289  

 Amounts totaling R106 548 143 (2004 : R5 521 053)  were written off as bad debts.  
This represents 7.52% (2004: 0.45%) of the total operating income for the year.  
Days outstanding in debtors amount to 202 days (2004: 238 days) 

 11. PROVISIONS 
Leave Pay 21 514 138  14 967 457 
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Notes to the Financial Statements At 30 June 2005 (Continued) 

 

 

 
  

2005 

R 
 

2004 

R 

 

  
12. CREDITORS 

Trade Creditors and other  
Deposits 

 
 

252 303 255 
480 881  

 
 

223 050 465 
635 359 

 

  
 252 784 136  223 685 824  

       

 13. ASSESSMENT RATES 
 

 

SITE 
VALUATIONS 

AS AT 
1 JULY 2004 

ACTUAL 
INCOME 

2005 
 

ACTUAL 
INCOME 

2004 

 

  
Free Services 
Residential and Commercial 
State 
Municipal 

 
 

12 968 444 294 
2 069 156 200 
1 548 500 300 

 
33 876 970 

179 652 714 
16 720 325 
1 244 579 

 

 
30 505 400 

161 697 959 
15 282 406 

2 306 790 

 

   231 494 588  209 792 555  

 Valuations are performed at least every three years. The last general 
valuation in Mangaung came into effect on 1 July 2003. 
 
The basic rates were as follows : 
 
General assessment rates  
(a) 6,92c per rand on the value of ratable property without any 

improvements. 
(b) 0,629c per rand on the value of improvements. 
 
The following rebates apply on ratable properties: 
(i) 40% rebate on properties which are used solely for dwelling 

purposes, including properties which are zoned for the purpose of 
town houses and flats and including small holdings and farms 
used solely for residential and agricultural purposes. 

(ii) 100% rebate on properties in the Bloemdustria industrial area. 
(iii) 20% rebate on properties which are used mainly for dwelling 

purposes but on which informal business is also performed. 
     

 

 14. COUNCILLORS' REMUNERATION 
Mayor's allowances 
Speaker’s allowances  
Councillors’ allowances  
Mayoral Committee allowances  
Councillors' pension contributions 
Councillors’ medical aid contribution 

 
 

 
428 405 
352 391 

5 410 159 
3 333 870 

929 852 
155 851  

 
404 845 
333 135 

5 497 606 
3 152 060 

944 112 
107 750 

 

   10 610 528  10 439 508  

 15. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION 
Audit fees  

- Current year 
- Under provision prior year  

 
 

2 070 770 
336 303  

 
 

1 722 190 
475 233 

 

  
 2 407 073  2 197 423  
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2005 

R 
 

2004 

R 

 

  
16. FINANCE TRANSACTIONS 

Total external interest earned or paid : 
Interest earned 
Interest paid  

 
 

32 858 914 
2 198 387  

 
 

43 645 475 
2 354 107 

 

 Capital charges debited to operating and distribution accounts : 
Interest       :   External 

         Internal 
Redemption  :   External 

         Internal 

 
2 198 387 

73 209 930 
1 317 800 

44 504 259  

 
2 354 107 

63 749 629 
1 182 757 

50 435 706 

 

   121 230 376  117 722 199  

 17. APPROPRIATIONS 
 

Appropriation Account 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the beginning of the year :  

 
 

36 381 643  

 
 
 

24 117 586 

 

- Operating account 
- Distribution, Suspense and Quarry accounts  

36 381 643 
-  

34 413 804 
(10 296 218) 

 

       
Operating surplus/(deficit) for the year 80 900 221  70 301 512 
- Operating account 
- Distribution, Suspense and Quarry accounts  

81 853 189 
(952 968)  

59 919 381 
10 382 131 

 

       
Appropriations for the year : (79 380 161)  (58 037 455) 
-        Contributions to :     Workmen’s Compensation Fund 

                          Leave-pay Reserve 
                          Provision for Bad Debts 

-        Prior year adjustments:  Accrued VAT 
                Creditors 
                 Other 

-        Distribution, Suspense and Quarry accounts  

(1 000 000) 
(13 000 000) 
(58 000 000) 

(8 605 596) 
2 250 552 

(1 025 117) 
-  

- 
(3 000 000) 

(54 947 883) 
- 
- 

(3 659) 
(85 913) 

 

       
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) at the end of the year 37 901 703  36 381 643 
- Operating account 
- Distribution, suspense and Quarry accounts  

38 854 671 
(952 968)  

36 381 643 
- 

 

       
       
 The above results have been achieved after the following transfer and                                      

contributions have been made : 
 

Operating Account 
 

Transfer from General Reserve - Business Entity 

 
 
 
 
 

45 000 000  

 
 
 
 
 

- 

 

Capital expenditure 
Contribution to : 

Replacement provision 
- Electricity 
- Water 

Capital Development Fund 
Leave - Pay Reserve 
Parking Fund 
Bad debts provision 

932 197 
 
 

3 179 740 
2 729 699 

27 977 866 
1 086 350 

6 005 
7 133 820  

2 841 548 
 
 

2 892 375 
2 443 577 

24 216 581 
1 003 620 

129 042 
2 722 285 

 

   43 045 677  36 249 028  
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Notes To The Financial Statements At 30 June 2005 (Continued) 

 

 
  

2005 

R 
 

2004 

R 

 

 18. CASH GENERATED BY OPERATIONS 
Surplus/(deficit)  for year 

 
Adjustments in respect of : 
Previous years' operating transactions and contributions 

 
Appropriations charged against income : 

 
80 900 221 

 
 

(79 380 161) 
 

115 045 677  

 
70 301 512 

 
 

(58 037 455) 
 

111 895 427 

 

 - Capital development fund 
- Provisions and reserves  
- Fixed Assets   

27 977 866 
86 135 614 

932 197  

24 216 581 
67 138 781 
20 540 065 

 

  
Capital Charges : 

 
121 230 376  

 
117 722 199  

Interest paid : 
- to internal funds 
- on external funds 

 
Redemption : 

- of internal advances 
- of external borrowings   

 
73 209 930 

2 198 387 
 
 

44 504 259 
1 317 800  

 
63 749 629 

2 354 107 
 
 

50 435 706 
1 182 757 

 

  
Investment income (operating account) 
Non-operating income : 
Net income from Provisions, Reserves and Trust Funds 
Non-operating expenditure : 
Expenditure charged against Provisions, Reserves and Trust Funds  

 
(22 010 602) 

 
8 399 056 

 
(176 194 720)  

 
(21 005 122) 

 
16 169 095 

 
(51 103 793) 

 

 
 

 47 989 847  185 941 863  

 19. INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN WORKING CAPITAL 
(Increase)/decrease in stock 
(Increase)/decrease in debtors 
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 

 
11 363 440 
47 720 234 
32 144 693  

 
(4 831 835) 

(59 693 325) 
3 445 143 

 

  
 91 228 367  (61 080 017)  

 20. INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN LONG-TERM LOANS (EXTERNAL) 
Loans raised 
Loans repaid 

 
- 

(1 317 799)  

 
- 

(2 082 757) 
 

 
 

 (1 317 799)  (2 082 757 )  

 
21. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN EXTERNAL CASH INVESTMENT  

Investment realised 
Investment made 

 
152 265 935 

(113 000 000)  

 
156 000 000 

(157 747 015) 
 

 
 

 39 265 935  (1 747 015)  

 
22. (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN CASH ON HA ND 

Cash balance at the beginning of the year 
Less: Cash balance at the end of the year 

 
63 642 854 

123 174 123  

 
74 662 461 
63 642 854 

 

 
 

 (59 531 269)  11 019 607  
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Notes to the Financial Statements at 30 June 2005 (Continued)  

 

 
  

2005 

R 
 

2004 

R 

 

 23. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
 

Guarantees by Council in respect of housing loans at financial institutions for 
officials 

 
 

5 518 665  

 
 

6 124 181 

 

Leave pay outstanding as at 30 June 2005 amounts to R25 808 745, whereas 
the provision amounts to R21 514 138.  It is the policy of the Council to carry a 
provision of not less than 25% of the outstanding amount.    

 
The following pending claims exist against the council: 

 
a. R150 000 for a claim in respect of the utilization of funds from the Local 

Economic Development Fund (LEDF). 
b. R1.1 million for claims regarding labour disputes. 
c. R90 000 for animals which have died     

 

  
 
24. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure approved and contracted for 

 
 

95 833 830  

 
 

68 848 647 

 

This expenditure will be financed from : 
- Internal Sources 
- External Sources  
      Subsidies Government  

 
58 048 860 

 
37 784 970  

 
38 122 403 

 
30 726 244 

 

  
 95 833 830  68 848 647  

  
25. CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT FUND  

Accumulated Fund 
 
Less : 

 
 

1 031 457 319 
 

954 643 922  

 
 
 

937 743 786 
 

823 560 116 

 

   External investments 
  Debtors 
  Internal advances (See appendix B for more detail)  

117 660 061 
35 190 777 

801 793 084  

71 517 607 
45 231 061 

706 811 448 
 

       
Applied as operating capital  76 813 397  114 183 670 

26.   HOUSING OPERATING ACCOUNT 
The operating account of the Housing Fund was established in terms of the 
Housing Act, (Act 107 of 1997), which came into operation on 1 April 1998.   
Refer to Annexure E (ii) for more detail.    

 27.   RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
The actuarial valuations of the funds, as mentioned in the accounting policies, 
could not be obtained.    

 28.   POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 
28.1 A new company, Centlec (Pty) Ltd of which Mangaung Local Municipality is 

the sole shareholder, was formed to take over all activities in respect of the 
supply of electricity. The income derived from this activity will revert to the 
newly established business.  All assets, including certain of the debtors of 
the electricity service will be taken over by the newly formed company.  The 
income formerly derived from this activity will be replaced by interest to be 
received on a loan account.  The company will commence with business 
from 1 July 2005. 

28.2 The annual financial statements of Centlec (Pty) Ltd are as a result of details 
in 28.1 therefore not yet consolidated.     
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Notes to the Financial Statements at 30 June 2005 (Continued) 

 
 29. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES IN TERMS OF MUNICIPAL FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT, 2003 (ACT NO. 56 OF 2003) 

  
29.1 COUNCILLOR’S ARREAR CONSUMER ACCOUNTS - SECTION 124(1)(b) 

 

  
The following Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 days as at 30 June 2005: 

 Councillor Total  Outstanding Less 
than 90 Days 

Outstanding More 
than 90 Days 

 

 Goliath E K 4 348.38 1 545.01 2 803.37  

 Liphoko M A 2 408.86 1 325.68 1 083.18  

 Makhanya K N L 9 482.10 639.39 8 842.71  

 Mbange M B 2 513.87 1 453.53 1 060.34  

 Melamu M G 2 186.21 907.05 1 279.16  

 Minnie H 3 691.94 714.82 2 977.12  

 Mokoena J I 11 698.55 5 623.24 6 075.31  

 Moletsane M J 854.46 187.47 666.99  

 Siyonzana M A 8 247.21 563.19 7 684.02  

 Wittes V A 5 266.91  190-84 5 076.07  

  50 698.49 13 150.22 37 548.27  

      

 
During the year the following additional Councillors had arrear accounts outstanding for more than 90 
days 
 

30 June 2005  Councillors Highest Amount Outstanding Ageing 

Dlamini M L 141.17 > 150 days 

Jacobs L P 754.61 > 150 days 
Kosana M S 766.91 > 150 days 
Kotsoane M S 3 175.92 > 150 days 
Lala T S 1 711.98 > 150 days 
Mathae B L 2 835.96 > 150 days 
Mokotjo N G 292.50 > 150 days 
Motlalane J J 214.19 > 150 days 
Motsi K J 353.77 > 150 days 
Mzuzwana Z Z 8 028.91 > 150 days 
Nakedi S S 304.51 > 150 days 
Nompondo P M 614.68 > 150 days 
Nthejane T B 1 036.69 > 150 days 
Saohatse G K 358.44 > 150 days 
Scheepers M A 5 595.08 > 150 days 
Soebehle S N 617.83 > 150 days 
Tlhobelo T E 1 037.08 > 150 days 
Zumane Z A 4 073.79 > 150 days 
 
Note added to these financial statements by MLM:  See page 56 of this Annual Report for MLM 
resolution of these issues.
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Notes to the Financial Statements At 30 June 2005 (Continued) 

 
 29.2 EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS - SECTION 124(1)(c)     
 Remuneration of the Municipal Manager       
 Annual remuneration 

Performance bonuses  
Car allowance 

Contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 

692 885 

147 312 
199 704 

19 680 

     

 Total 1 059 581      
        
 Remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer        
 Annual remuneration 

Performance bonuses  
Car allowance 

Contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 

527 722 

119 572 
98 152 

125 451 

     

 Total 870 897      
        
 

Remuneration of the Individual Executive 
Directors 

Chief 
Operating 

Officer 

Community 
and Social 

Development 

Corporate 
Services 

Economic 
Development 

and Planning 

Infrastructure 
Services 

 

 Annual remuneration 

Performance bonuses  
Car allowance 

Contributions to UIF, medical and pension funds 

677 756 

130 680 
158 500 

1 060 

481 608 

125 400 
96 000 

121 298 

594 951 

106 800 
84 000 

1 060 

517 737 

125 928 
96 000 

111 003 

680 751 

125 928 
96 000 

6 380 

 

 Total 967 996 824 306 786 811 850 668 909 059  
        
 29.3 MUNICIPALITY ENTITIES  - SECTION 125(1)(a)   
   
 Municipal entities under the sole control of the municipality during and at the end of the financial year:  

Centlec (Pty) Ltd. 
 

   
 29.4 CONTRIBUTIONS TO ORGANIZED LOCAL GOVERNMENT - SECTION 125 (1)(b)  
  

Paid 2005 
Outstanding 

30 June 2005 

    

 Council subscriptions to SALGA  2 124 796 0     
        
 29.5 FEES, TAXES, LEVIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS PAID - SECTION 125(1)(c)  
 The amounts paid in audit fees are included in note 15.      
        
  

Paid 2005 
Outstanding 
30 June 2005 

    

 Value Added Tax 18 152 602 0     
 PAYE 47 610 238 0     
 UIF 5 522 941 0     
 Pension Contributions 65 196 904 0     
 Medical Aid Contributions 24 673 031 0     
 District Council Levies 2 449 244 209 004     
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Notes to the Financial Statements At 30 June 2005 (Continued) 

 
       
 The municipality has the following primary bank accounts:  
       
 

Bank Type Purpose  
Year Opening 

Bank Statement 
Balance 

Year-end 
Bank Statement 

Balance  

 

 ABSA Bank Current Primary Account 117 676 204(Cr) 166 782 374(Cr)  

 ABSA Bank Current Fresh Produce Market 4 242 856 (Cr) 1 656 009(Cr)  

 ABSA Bank Current Salaries 0 0  

 ABSA Bank Current Direct Deposits 0 0  

 ABSA Bank Current Vendors 0 0  

 ABSA Bank Current Kopanong Electricity 0 0  

 ABSA Bank Current Naledi Electricity 0 0  

 ABSA Bank Current Mohokare Electricity 0 0  

       
 29.7 INVESTMENTS  - SECTION 125(2)(b)  
       
 Refer to note 7.  
       
 29.8 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES  - SECTION 125(2)(c)  
       
 Refer to note 23.  
       
 29.9 STATEMENT BY ACCOUNTING OFFICER -  SECTION 124(1)(a)  
       
 I certify that the salaries, allowances and benefits of councillors, as disclosed in note 14, are within the 

upper limits of the framework envisaged in Section 219 of the Constitution, read with the Remuneration of 
Public Office Bearers Act and the Minister of Provincial and Local Government’s determination in 
accordance with this Act. 

 

    
 

 
 
 
 

   

 ACTING CITY MANAGER 29 August 2005 
DATE 
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Appendix A 
Statutory Funds, Trust Funds and Reserves 

 Balance  
at 

30/6/2004 
 
 
 
 

R 

Contri-
butions 
during 

the 
year 

 
 

R 

Interest 
on 

Invest- 
ments 

 
 
 

R 

Other 
Income 

 
 
 
 
 

R 

Opera-
ting 

Expendi-
ture 

during 
the year 

 
R 

Capital 
Expendi

-ture 
during 

the year 
 

R 

Balance  
at 

30/6/2005 
 
 
 
 

R 
STATUTORY FUNDS 
        
Capital Development Fund 

Insurance Fund 

Erven Trust Fund 

937 743 786 

69 965 924 

22 100 821 

27 977 866 86 631 780 

4 912 344 

705 315 

761 832 

2 525 097 

4 705 567 

21 657 945 

1 501 533 

406 881 

 

 

2 036 502 

1 031 457 319 

75 901 832 

25 068 320 

 1 029 810 531 27 977 866 92 249 439 7 992 496 23 566 359 2 036 502 
1 132 427 471 

RESERVES        

        

PROTECTION SERVICES 

Disaster Management 

Parking Fund 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

Tennis Court Surface Renewal Fund 

INFRASTRUCTURAL SERVICES 

Vehicles and Plant - Maintenance 

QUARRIES /GRAVEL 

General Reserve 

SPECIAL AND SUNDRY RESERVES 

Market Deficit 

Workmen's Compensation Fund 

Student Bursaries 

Capital Reserve 

General Reserve - Petra Quarry 

Stores Contingencies Account 

General Reserve - Business Entity 

WATER SERVICE 

Tariff Stabilisation Fund 

Replacement Fund - General Mains etc. 

 

3 339 836 

3 728 353 

 

2 257 374 

 

378 757 

 

875 486 

 

1 897 327 

15 078 401 

738 991 

2 558 856 

6 866 806 

15 858 838 

102 741 548 

 

3 935 646 

14 311 404 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 327 780 

 

 

 

 

3 179 741 

 

 

2 729 699 

 

234 492 

261 770 

 

158 491 

 

26 593 

 

61 468 

 

133 212 

1 058 662 

51 885 

179 659 

482 122 

1 113 457 

7 213 538 

 

276 324 

1 004 811 

 

 

46 925 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3 625 

65 891 

 

107 194 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 851 201 

23 386 

 

 

194 989 

45 000 000 

 

 

2 385 342 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 272 553 

 

 

 

2 039 245 

 

3 467 134 

4 037 048 

 

2 415 865 

 

405 350 

 

936 954 

 

2 030 539 

15 613 642 

767 490 

2 738 515 

7 348 928 

10 508 378 

68 200 718 

 

4 211 970 

13 621 327 

  174 567 623 7 237 220 12 256 484 116 441 49 562 112 8 311 798 136 303 858 

TRUST FUNDS        

Cultural Fund 

The Tomory Bequest 

Alfred Leith Non-European Endowment Fund 

R T B De Villiers Trust  

A E Fichardt Trust 

Coloured Old Age Home (OVV)  

Relief Fund : Home for Coloureds 

Johan Ströhfeldt Trust  

130 782 

9 035 

2 224 

303 003 

5 541 697 

43 444 

127 807 

24 028 

 9 182 

634 

156 

21 274 

389 085 

3 050 

8 973 

1 687 

 

2 996 

 

 

181 

 139 964 

12 665 

2 199 

324 277 

5 930 782 

46 494 

136 780 

25 715 

6 182 020  434 041 2 996 181  6 618 876 

1 210 560 174 35 215 086 104 939 964 8 111 933 73 128 652 10 348 300 1 275 350 205 
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Appendix B 

External Loans and Internal Advances 

 

 Balance 

at 

30/6/2004 

R 

Received During 

the Year 

 

R 

Redeemed or Written 

Off During The Year 

 

R 

Balance 

at 

30/6/2005 

R 

 

 

EXTERNAL LOANS  

 

 

Government Loans  

Bophuthatswana 

 

Development Bank 

 

 

 

 

330 181 

 

21 426 446 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

99 512 

 

1 218 287 

 

 

 

 

230 669 

 

20 208 159 

 
21 756 627       1 317 799 20 438 828 

     

(Refer to Note 4)     

     

 

 

INTERNAL ADVANCES TO BORROWING SERVICES  

 

 

Capital Development Fund 706 811 448 137 015 111 42 033 475 801 793 084 

 
    

(Refer to note 25) 
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Appendix C 

Analysis of Fixed Assets 

 

 
 

EXPEND- 
DITURE 

2003/2004 
 

R 

 
 

SERVICE  
 

BUDGET 
2004/2005 

 
 
R 

 
 

BALANCE 
AT 

30/6/2004 
 

R 

 
 

EXPEND- 
DITURE 

2004/2005 
 

R 

 
 

WRITTEN 
OFF, TRANS- 

FERRED, 
REDEEMED 

OR 
DISPOSED 
OF DURING 
THE YEAR 

R 

 
 

BALANCE 
AT 

30/6/2005 
 
R 

 

   
152 691 036  

 
RATE AND GENERAL SERVICES  

 
140 366 725  

 
1 885 793 973  

 
169 006 821  

 
(7 874 807)  

 
2 062 675 601 

 

  77 274 643  Community Services  72 125 470  539 069 737  93 029 097  19 876 622  612 222 212  

  

54 129 
192 466 

1 849 139 
77 907 

 
 

1 415 592 
4 767 288 
2 293 301 

 
933 484 

57 388 383 
250 870 

1 242 643 
504 364 

6 305 077 

 Protection Services : 
Administration 
Civil Defense  
Security 
Traffic Control 
Parks Administration 

Secretariat : 
Administration 
Council's General Expenses 

Health Services 
Personnel  
Infrastructural Services : 

Administration 
Roads and Stormwater 
Railway Sidings 

Finance 
Mechanical Services  
Urban Planning   

141 330 
190 000 
496 800 

 
 
 
 

1 042 500 
2 131 000 

 
 

59 744 840 
267 500 

3 843 500 
100 000 

4 168 000  

265 097 
2 474 752 
8 210 375 

13 652 494 
836 159 

 
3 003 824 
3 815 951 

11 345 988 
10 953 629 

 
5 156 997 

427 548 182 
1 561 935 

11 954 863 
11 755 950 
26 533 541  

145 163 
154 690 

6 713 521 
 
 
 

543 935 
840 353 

1 668 282 
 

45 308 
69 937 077 

80 772 
9 338 190 

91 855 
3 469 951  

(60 473) 
6 609 

52 854 
1 380 552 

43 157 
 

220 056 
67 547 

417 336 
(427 642) 

 
(531 088) 

16 746 016 
 

153 213 
498 651 

1 309 834  

325 570 
2 613 306 
8 312 211 

18 985 463 
793 002 

 
2 783 768 
4 292 339 

11 769 005 
13 049 553 

 
5 733 393 

480 739 243 
1 642 707 

21 139 840 
11 349 154 
28 693 658 

 

                

  21 336 840  Subsidised Services  14 931 935  1 003 451 616  12 542 242  (26 965 082)   1 042 958 940  

  1 193 419 
 

2 104 430 
1 442 777 

 
2 702 525 
1 873 811 

 
338 021 

 
6 360 368 
1 476 159 
3 845 330 

 

 Ambulance and Fire Brigade 
Parks and Recreation : 

Cemeteries 
Zoo and Nature Conservation 
Airport 
Parks and Public Grounds 
Recreational Facilities 
Stadiums 
Swimming Baths 

Secretariat : 
Miscellaneous Properties 
Library Services 
Civil Buildings 
Civic Theatre 
Rural Areas  

3 067 500 
 

2 268 000 
742 925 

 
2 449 280 
2 035 000 

 
 
 
 

339 230 
4 030 000 

 
  

16 631 548 
 

10 452 841 
8 997 477 
2 357 032 

29 066 476 
42 157 810 
49 075 060 
11 992 067 

 
707 349 213 

7 371 330 
106 657 294 

1 054 520 
10 288 948  

3 064 703 
 

1 850 841 
705 017 

 
2 257 383 
1 440 065 

 
 
 
 

496 507 
2 727 726 

 
  

63 914 
 

(221 011) 
 
 

796 712 
26 831 949 

(41 822 101) 
(270 220) 

 
(9 675 270) 

531 980 
(3 201 035) 

 
  

19 632 337 
 

12 524 693 
9 702 494 
2 357 032 

30 527 147 
16 765 926 
90 897 161 
12 262 287 

 
717 024 483 

7 335 857 
112 586 055 

1 054 520 
10 288 948 

 

                

  54 079 553  Economic Services  53 309 320  343 272 620  63 435 482  (786 347)  407 494 449  

  203 
2 409 220 

51 670 130 

 Procurement: Stores 
Sanitary and Night Soil 
Sewerage 
Petra Quarry  

 
4 778 000 

48 531 320 
  

3 007 740 
61 422 836 

275 711 894 
3 130 150  

 
4 942 479 

58 493 003 
  

1 995 
1 106 336 

(1 894 678) 
  

3 005 745 
65 258 979 

336 099 575 
3 130 150 
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Appendix C (Continued) 
Analysis of Fixed Assets 

 

 

EXPEN-

DITURE 

2003/2004 

R 

 

 
SERVICE  

 

 

BUDGET 

2004/2005 

 

R 

 

 

 

BALANCE 

AT 

30/6/2004 

R 

 

 

 

EXPEN- 

DITURE 

2004/2005 

R 

 

 

 

WRITTEN 

OFF, TRANS- 

FERRED, 

REDEEMED 

OR 

DISPOSED 

OF DURING 

THE YEAR  

R 

 

 

 

BALANCE 

AT 

30/6/2005 

R 

 

  

4 908 627 

  

HOUSING SERVICES  

 

12 299 680  

 

38 440 645  

 

4 396 410  

 

(3 091 238)   

 

45 928 293 

 

 4 908 627  Housings Schemes  12 299 680  38 440 645  4 396 410  (3091 238)   45 928 293  

               

  

88 606 331 

  

TRADING SERVICES  

 

89 610 000  

 

931 392 237  

 

79 619 413  

 

5 130 207  

 

1 005 881 443 

 

 58 032 976 

1 822 864 

28 750 491 

 Electricity   

Produce Market  

Water  

55 912 530 

100 000 

33 597 470  

635 948 094 

22 474 205 

272 969 938  

40 786 377 

733 694 

38 099 342  

335 432 

 

4 794 775  

676 399 039 

23 207 899 

306 274 505 

 

               

 246 205 994  TOTAL FIXED ASSETS  242 276 405  2 855 626 855  253 022 644  (5 835 838)   3 114 485 337  

               

  

 

101 457 111 

 LESS: LOANS REDEEMED AND 

OTHER CAPITAL RECEIPTS 

 

 

  

 

 

2 127 058 780  

 

 

 

 

116 007 533  

 

 

(49 187 112)   

 

 

2 292 253 425 

 

  

2 841 548 

8 054 101 

81 945 297 

8 616 165 

 Loans redeemed and advances repaid 

Contributions from operating income 

Contributions from reserves 

Grants and subsidies 

Public contributions    

872 784 068 

67 646 485 

914 515 122 

187 492 070 

84 621 035  

 

932 197 

10 348 300 

95 056 849 

9 670 187  

(57 398 296)  

2 269 028 

5 872 164 

69 992 

  

930 182 364 

66 309 654 

918 991 258 

282 478 927 

94 291 222 

 

 
 144 748 883  NET FIXED ASSETS    728 568 075  137 015 111  43 351 274  822 231 912  
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Appendix D 

Analysis of Operating Income and Expenditure 

for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 

 

Actual 
2004 

 
R 

  

Actual 
2005 

 
R 

 

Budget 
2005 

 
R 

 

 

 

 

 
189 014 322 

 
12 688 806 

 
 
 

209 792 555 
 

407 523 843 
  

189 528 462 
 

204 927 957 

 
 
INCOME 
 
Grants and Subsidies  
 
- Central Government 
 
- Regional Government 
 
Operating Income 
 
- Assessment rates 
 
- Sale of electricity 
 
- Sale of water  
 
- Other  
 
- Transfer from reserve 

 
 
 
 

213 527 493 
 

13 523 082 
 
 
 

231 494 588 
 

451 563 138 
 

203 437 885 
 

257 432 284 
 

45 000 000 

  
 
 
 

217 849 690 
 

11 371 790 
 
 
 

230 542 540 
 

436 722 060 
 

187 134 830 
 

274 358 180 
 

45 000 000 

 

 1 213 475 945   
1 415 978 470  

1 402 979 090  

 

 
 

350 404 799 
 
 
 

220 866 426 
 

114 869 967 
 

291 902 130 
 

78 866 336 
 

116 539 522 
 

2 816 115 
 
 
 

33 407 480 

  
EXPENDITURE 
 
Salaries, wages and allowances  
 
General expenses 
 
- Purchase of electricity  
 
- Purchase of water 
 
- Other expenses 
 
Repairs and maintenance 
 
Capital charges 
 
Contribution to fixed assets: Income 
 
Contribution to fixed assets: Grants 

 
Contributions 

 
 
 

423 116 790 
 
 
 

243 141 169 
 

128 391 388 
 

354 180 847 
 

93 663 914 
 

124 083 873 
 

932 197 
 

12 913 128 
 

42 113 480 

  
 
 

477 817 040 
 
 
 

267 487 390 
 

134 454 160 
 

363 645 372 
 

112 504 170 
 

130 038 540 
 

1 242 020 
 

12 913 128 
 

27 941 690 

 

 
1 209 672 775 

 
56 116 211 

 Gross expenditure 
 
Less : Amounts charged out 

1 422 536 786 
 

88 411 505 
 1 528 043 510 

 
114 400 300 

 

 1 153 556 564  Net expenditure  1 334 125 281  1 413 643 210  
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Appendix E 
Detailed Income Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 

 

 

  

2004 
ACTUAL 
INCOME 

 
 
 
R 

   

2004 
ACTUAL 
EXPEN-
DITURE  

 
 

R 

   

2004 
SURPLUS/  
(DEFICIT)  

 
 
 

R 

  
  

2005 
ACTUAL 
INCOME  

 
 
 

R 

   

2005 
ACTUAL 
EXPEN-
DITURE 

 
 

R 

   

2005 
SURPLUS/  
(DEFICIT)  

 
 
 

R 

   

2005 
BUDGET 

SURPLUS/  
(DEFICIT)  

 
 

R 

  

  

545 649 040    615 109 850    (69 460 810)  RATE AND GENERAL SERVICES  671 062 004    732 773 645    (61 711 641)    (89 477 740) 

  

 
 

  407 977 174    401 139 066    6 838 108  Community Services  529 842 558    506 116 736    23 725 822    (174 680)   

  209 792 555 
 
 
 

50 
1 105 287 
1 579 225 
3 997 827 

 
 
 

2 905 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 737 032 
10 750 

 
 
 

78 795 
 
 
 

159 002 
11 934 477 

 
 
 
 

438 
30 208 

5 108 180 
396 957 

2 087 
 
 
 
 

17 653 770 
366 938 

153 375 772 
 
 
 
 
 
 

116 030 
149 825 

5 337 
19 739 

 
337 860 

 
16 128 

   

 
 
 
 

417 906 
3 742 426 

19 260 796 
15 094 300 

 
 
 

2 054 822 
 
 
 

2 190 104 
4 189 592 
2 624 678 

 
 
 

6 745 832 
997 586 

1 105 383 
1 715 988 
1 059 278 

 
 
 

16 503 364 
18 960 105 

 
 
 

16 982 393 
 
 
 

1 460 431 
25 940 186 

423 852 
 
 
 

1 338 949 
606 933 

55 929 023 
396 957 

3 606 001 
1 396 387 

 
 
 

17 726 406 
8 009 257 

145 946 797 
4 955 340 
1 078 570 

 
 
 

1 372 555 
4 111 648 
1 973 445 

871 049 
1 912 688 

358 079 
5 131 235 

 
2 948 725 

   

209 792 555 
 
 
 

(417 856) 
(2 637 139) 

(17 681 571) 
(11 096 473) 

 
 
 

(2 051 917) 
 
 
 

(2 190 104) 
(4 189 592) 
(2 624 678) 

 
 
 

(6 745 832) 
(997 586) 

(1 105 383) 
(1 715 988) 
(1 059 278) 

 
 
 

(14 766 332) 
(18 949 355) 

 
 
 

(16 903 598) 
 
 
 

(1 301 429) 
(14 005 709) 

(423 852) 
 
 
 

(1 338 511) 
(576 725) 

(50 820 843) 
 

(3 603 914) 
(1 396 387) 

 
 
 

(72 636) 
(7 642 319) 

7 428 975 
(4 955 340) 
(1 078 570) 

 
 
 

(1 372 555) 
(3 995 618) 
(1 823 620) 

(865 712) 
(1 892 949) 

(358 079) 
(4 793 375) 

 
(2 932 597 

 

Assessment Rates 
 
Protection Services 
 
- Administration 
- Civil Defense 
- Security 
- Traffic Control 
 
Parks and Recreation  
 
- Administration 
 
Executive Office 
 
-  City Manager 
-  Office of the Mayor 
-  Office of the Speaker 
 
Executive Directors - Administration  
 
-  Chief Operations Officer 
-  Corporate Services  
-  Infrastructural Services 
-  Community and Social 

Development  
-        Economic Development and   
         Planning 
 
Secretariat  
 
- Administration 
- Council's General Expenses 
 
Corporate  Services 
 
Medical Officer of Health  
 
- Administration 
- Health Services 
-        Community Development 
 
Infrastructural Services  
 
- Administration 
- Design  
- Roads and Stormwater 
- Railway Sidings 
- Mechanical Service  
-  Rural Area Development 
 
Finance 
 
- Administration 
- Miscellaneous Servi ces 
-  Governmental Transfers 
- Grants-in-Aid  
-  Internal Audit 
 
Economic Development and Planning  
 
- Administration 
- Town Planning  
- Metropolitan Planning  
- Drafting Service 
- Property Administration 
-        Environmental management 
- Building Maintenan ce 
-  Industrial Marketing & Public 

Relations 

231 494 588 
 
 
 

1 816 
1 214 855 
1 578 285 
5 258 060 

 
 
 

5 994 
 
 
 

360 
6 605 000 

 
 
 
 

17 750 329 
 
 

2 600 
 
 
 
 

201 864 
1 500 

 
 
 

917 679 
 
 
 

6 886 
13 139 445 

 
 
 
 

821 036 
22 267 

4 794 204 
310 934 

1 305 231 
 
 
 
 

30 867 598 
49 633 908 

163 614 772 
 

100 
 
 
 

937 
29 073 

476 
13 321 
18 483 

 
 
 

230 957 
 
    

 
 
 
 

2 288 297 
3 180 462 

19 724 791 
15 618 392 

 
 
 

3 229 530 
 
 
 

2 422 290 
23 742 980 
3 159 654 

 
 
 

20 254 746 
1 548 019 

 
1 672 878 
1 135 992 

 
 
 

7 441 369 
16 228 715 

 
 
 

34 434 670 
 
 
 

1 427 002 
27 874 965 

975 166 
 
 
 

2 782 687 
131 257 

83 045 922 
310 934 

7 143 742 
1 293 253 

 
 
 

31 082 838 
10 615 016 

158 649 508 
5 413 797 
2 004 169 

 
 
 

949 352 
4 489 032 
1 921 537 

961 824 
2 864 913 
1 279 204 

 
 

4 817 833 

   

231 494 588 
 
 
 

(2 286 481) 
(1 965 607) 

(18 146 506) 
(10 360 332) 

 
 
 

(3 223 536) 
 
 
 

(2 421 930) 
(17 137 980) 
(3 159 654) 

 
 
 

(2 504 417) 
(1 548 019) 

 
(1 670 278) 
(1 135 992) 

 
 
 

(7 239 505) 
(16 227 215) 

 
 
 

(33 516 991) 
 
 
 

(1 420 116) 
(14 735 520) 

(975 166) 
 
 
 

(1 961 651) 
(108 990) 

(78 251 718) 
 

(5 838 511) 
(1 293 253) 

 
 
 

(215 240) 
39 018 892 
4 965 264 

(5 413 797) 
 (2 004 069)  

 
 
 

(948 415) 
(4 459 959) 
(1 921 061) 

(948 503) 
(2 846 430) 
(1 279 204) 

 
 

(4 586 876) 

   

230 542 540 
 
 
 

(2 342 480) 
(2 442 050) 

(19 224 020) 
(10 701 790) 

 
 
 

(2 863 140) 
 
 
 

(2 216 800) 
(15 265 050) 
(2 713 320) 

 
 
 

(2 301 020) 
 (1 088 850)  

 
(1 657 830) 
(1 166 460) 

 
 
 

(8 190 150) 
(17 967 990) 

 
 
 

(32 932 540) 
 
 
 

(1 323 970) 
(18 039 520) 

(977 270) 
 
 
 

(1 997 800) 
175 790 

(77 896 620) 
(97 510) 

(2 320 420) 
(1 441 190) 

 
 
 

457 690 
20 367 900 

0 
(5 450 930) 
(2 417 080) 

 
 
 

(1 034 930) 
(5 265 450) 
(1 969 190) 

(942 670) 
(2 631 540) 
(1 652 070) 

 
 

(3 186 950) 

  

   
12 964 735    

 
97 740 605    

 
(84 775 870)  

  
Subsidised Services  

 
12 062 101    

 
101 683 465    

 
(89 621 364)    

 
(89 963 230) 

  

  2 129 614 
4 011 474 

932 404 
189 099 
108 146 

2 405 126 
333 046 

1 706 634 
577 422 
571 770 

   22 552 424 
6 658 786 
3 843 911 

251 701 
22 820 633 
11 582 285 
3 997 224 
2 746 525 

10 165 410 
12 840 300 

281 406 

   (20 422 810) 
 (2 647 312)  
(2 911 507) 

(62 602) 
(22 712 487) 
(9 177 159) 
(3 664 178) 
(1 039 891) 
(9 587 988) 

(12 268 530) 
(281 406) 

 Fire Protection 
Cemeteries  
Zoo and Nature Conservation 
Airport 
Parks 
Sport and Recreation  
Swimming Baths 
Sundry Properties 
City Library Services 
Civic Buildings 
Civic Theatre 

 1 484 007 
3 190 352 
1 004 038 

201 809 
97 679 

1 475 228 
453 388 

2 155 240 
303 102 

1 697 258 
 

   21 572 395 
6 114 517 
3 841 634 

253 467 
26 310 766 
10 962 074 
4 856 257 
2 426 664 

10 254 675 
14 994 328 

96 688 

   (20 088 388) 
(2 924 165) 
(2 837 596) 

(51 658) 
(26 213 087) 
(9 486 846) 
(4 402 869) 

(271 424) 
(9 951 573) 

(13 297 070) 
(96 688) 

   (19 812 030) 
(3 011 580) 
(3 328 420) 

(89 190) 
(25 593 800) 
(9 291 700) 
(3 750 240) 

(362 020) 
(10 485 180) 
(13 976 300) 

(262 770) 
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Appendix E (Continued) 

 Detailed Income Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2005  
 

  

 
2004 

Actual  
 Income 

 
 

R 

   

 
2004 

Actual  
Expenditure 

 
R 

   

 
2004 

Surplus/  
(Deficit)  

 
R 

  
  

 
2005 

Actual  
Income 

 
 
R 

   

 
2005 

Actual  
Expenditure 

 
R 

   

 
2005 

Surplus/  
(Deficit)  

 
R 

   

 
2005 

Budget 
Surplus/  
(Deficit)  

R 

  

                             

   
124 707 131    

 
116 230 179    

 
8 476 952  

 
Economic Services   

 
129 157 345    

 
124 973 444    

 
4 183 901    

 
660 170 

  

  657 896 
108 025 

2 465 784 
18 249 607 
2 046 016 
1 620 045 

99 559 758 

   770 527 
120 648 

5 768 323 
56 474 416 
19 305 375 
33 790 890 

   (112 631) 
(12 623) 

(3 302 539) 
(38 224 809) 
(17 259 359) 
(32 170 845) 

99 559 758  

Parking Garage 
Taxi Terminus 
Building Management and Control  
Cleansing Service 
Sanitary and Nightsoil 
Sewerage 
Sanitary Fees  

596 996 
112 596 

3 169 244 
7 474 641 
6 903 014 

896 545 
110 004 309    

854 277 
302 111 

5 959 676 
58 892 966 
19 061 272 
39 903 142 

    

(257 281) 
(189 515) 

(2 790 432) 
(51 418 325) 
(12 158 258) 
(39 006 597) 
110 004 309    

(397 980) 
(88 060) 

(5 254 280) 
(51 766 920) 
(15 344 630) 
(35 932 370) 
109 444 410 

  

  6 405 842    6 846 430    (440 588)  HOUSING SERVICES  6 772 319    11 249 636    (4 477 317)    (5 217 990)   

  1 670 506 
 

3 660 206 
219 887 
33 957 
58 780 

198 192 
 

178 873 
385 441 

   2 111 094 
 

3 660 206 
219 887 
33 957 
58 780 

198 192 
 

178 873 
385 441 

   (440 588) 
 

 

Administration 
Rental Housing  
Economic Schemes  
Sub -economic Schemes 
Compound  
Mangnaung 
Mangaung Hostel 
Heidedal  
-   Economic Schemes 
-   Sub-economic Schemes  

949 844 
950 181 

3 778 007 
219 299 
31 959 
58 780 

213 408 
 

181 198 
389 643 

   956 900 
5 420 442 
3 778 007 

219 299 
31 959 
58 780 

213 408 
 

181 198 
389 643 

   (7 056) 
(4 470 261) 

   (645 520) 
(4 572 470) 

 

   
661 421 063 

    
531 600 284 

    
129 820 779  

 
TRADING SERVICES   

 
738 144 147 

    
590 102 000 

    
148 042 147 

    
84 031 610 

 

  433 197 199 
9 512 390 

218 711 474 

   350 293 906 
8 080 208 

173 226 170 

   82 903 293 
1 432 182 

45 485 304  

Electricity  
Produce Market 
Water  

489 227 515 
9 631 042 

239 285 590 

   384 539 598 
9 025 891 

196 536 511 

   104 687 917 
605 151 

42 749 079 

   62 998 850 
1 928 100 

19 104 660 

 

   
1 213 475 945 

    
1 153 556 564 

    
59 919 381  

 
TOTAL   

 
1 415 978 470 

    
1 334 125 281 

  
 

  
81 853 189 

    
(10 664 120) 

 

           
10 382 131 

 
 

(58 037 455)  

 
Distribution, Suspense and Quarry Accounts  
(Refer to Appendix E(i)) 
 
Appropriations for the year    

     
(952 968) 

 
 

(79 380 161) 

 

   

  

          (57 951 542) 
 

(85 913)  

- Operating Account 
- Distribution, Suspense and Quarry Accounts 
    (Refer to note 17)     

    (79 380 161) 
- 

 

   

  

                             

           
12 264 057 

 
 

24 117 586  

Net surplus/  
(deficit) for the year  
 
Accumulated surplus/ (deficit) 
 beginning of the year      

     
1 520 060  

 
 

36 381 643 

 

   

  

          34 413 804 
 

(10 296 218)  

- Operating Account 
- Distribution, Suspense and 

Quarry Accounts     

    36 381 643 
 

- 

 

   

  

                             

           
36 381 643  

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 
 END OF THE YEAR       

     
37 901 703 

 
   

  

          36 381 643 
 

0 
 

Operating Account  
Distribution, Suspense and Quarry 
Accounts  
(Refer to Appendix E(i))      

    38 854 671 
 

(952 968) 

 

   

  

                             

                             

 
Note:    As a result of the restructuring of the budget format, the allocations of accounts were changed.  A comparison of actual income and 

expenditure for 2004 and 2005 is therefore only possible for some of the sections.
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Appendix E (I) 

Distribution, Suspense and Quarry Accounts 

Detailed Income Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 

2004 
Actual 
Income 

 
 

R 

2004 
Actual 
Expen- 
Diture 

 
R 

2004 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

 
 

R 

Distribution, Suspense And Quarry 
Accounts  

2005 
Actual 
Income 

 
 

R 

2005 
Actual 
Expen- 
Diture 

 
R 

2005 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

 
 

R 

2005 
Budget 

Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

 
R 

 
 

5 511 328 
 

8 936 220 
 

28 283 186 
 

1 331 966 
 
 
 

5 499 841 
 

58 969 
 

13 754 839 
 

4 836 015 
 
 
 
 
 

478 734 

 
 

1 674 102 
 

5 915 607 
 

29 350 475 
 

1 155 305 
 
 
 

5 499 841 
 

(1 094 293) 
 

10 493 181 
 

4 836 015 
 
 
 
 
 

478 734 

 
 

3 837 226 
 

3 020 613 
 

(1 067 289) 
 

176 661 
 
 
 
 
 

1 153 262 
 

3 261 658 
 
 

DISTRIBUTION ACCOUNTS 
 
City Engineer 
 
Mechanical Services  
 
Electricity Service - Network Services 
 
Electricity Service - Training 
 
TARIFF VEHICLES 
 
Electricity Service 
 
Mechanical Services  
 
City Engineer 
 
STORES 
 
QUARRY ACCOUNTS 
 
Petra Dolerite Quarry 
 
Gravel Quarry 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 384 855 
 

385 739 
 

13 501 566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5 337 823 
 

385 739 
 

13 501 566 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(952 968) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

68 691 098 58 308 967 10 382 131  18 272 160 19 225 128 (952 968)  

  

(85 913) 
 
 

(10 296 218) 

Appropriations for the year 
 
Accumulated surplus (deficit) beginning 
of the year    

- 
 
 

-  

   
- 

   
(952 968) 

 

   

Accumulated surplus (deficit) end of 
year - Transferred to appendix E 
 
     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 92 

 
 
 

Appendix E (ii) 
Housing Fund (Housing Act No. 107 Of 1997) 

Detailed Income Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 

2004 
Actual 
Income 

 
 

R 

2004 
Actual  
Expen- 
Diture 

 
R 

2004 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

 
 

R 

 

2005 
Actual 
Income 

 
 

R 

2005 Actual 
Expen- 
Diture  

 
 

R 

2005 
Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

 
 

R 

2005 
Budget 

Surplus/ 
(Deficit) 

 
R 

 
 

1 261 346 

 
 

6 575 945 

 
 

(5 314 599) 

 
 
Operating Account 

 
 

1 195 784 

 
 

8 619 630 

 
 

(7 423 846) 

 
 

- 

  76 704 330 Accumulated Fund beginning of the year   71 389 731 
 

- 

  71 389 731 Accumulated Fund end of the year   63 965 885 - 
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Note: The populations as disclosed in Section A for 2004 and 2003 were restated.

Appendix F 

Statistical Information 

  2005   2004   2003  

A) GENERAL STATISTICS 
 
Population  

 
 

803 238   

 
 

759 197   

 
 

720 237  

Valuations as at :  1 July 2004   1 July 2003   1 July 2002  

Valuation of taxable property  
Land 
Improvements 

3 177 855 716 
12 410 954 628   

3 162 692 363 
12 404 670 645   

2 592 754 532 
10 263 751 714  

Valuation of residential property 
Land 
Improvements 

 
2 029 699 266 
7 736 422 928   

 
2 043 597 463 
7 854 204 745   

 
1 615 739 583 
6 191 061 214  

Valuation of commercial property  
Land 
Improvements 

 
760 150 400 

2 442 171 700   

 
751 099 300 

2 491 273 900   

 
678 114 749 

2 364 814 700  

Valuation of other properties 
Land 
Improvements 

 
388 006 050 

2 232 360 000   

 
367 995 600 

2 059 192 000   

 
298 900 200 

1 707 875 800  

Valuation of non-taxable property  
Land 
Improvements 

 
687 926 500 
764 254 700   

 
688 670 700 
744 943 900   

 
524 253 140 
925 014 951  

Number of properties  
Residential 
Commercial 
Other 

 
128 390 

4 167 
1 626   

 
120 410 

3 959 
36 792   

 
118 607 

3 697 
20 610  

Assessment rates 
On value of land  c/Rand 
On value of improvements c/Rand 

6.92 
0.629   

 
6.35 

0.578   

 
6.80 

0.616  

Number of employees   4 116   4 422   4 497  

B) ELECTRICITY STATISTICS    

Number of users 
Residential 
Commercial 

 
131 693 

4 457   

 
131 531 

4 540   

 
131 255 

4 538  

         

Units bought/generated                                        KWh 1 545 487 330   1 481 827 836   1 443 457 141  

Units sold                                                              KWh 1 400 766 850   1 364 951 385   1 313 842 237  

Units lost in distribution                                         KWh 144 720 480   116 876 451   129 614 904  

Percentage lost in distribution                               % 9.36   7.89   8.98  

Cost per unit sold                                                  c/KWh 27.45   25.66   26.04  

C) WATER STATISTICS         

Number of users 156 643   153 572   149 315  

Units bought/purified                                              Kl 61 763 972   59 650 943   57 246 440  

Units sold                                                               Kl 39 159 053   37 256 917   36 037 614  

Units lost in distribution/Unmetered consumption  Kl 22 604 919   22 394 026   21 208 826  

Percentage lost in distribution                                 % 36.60   37.54   37.05  

Cost per unit sold                                                    c/Kl 501.89   464.95   451.71  
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5.10 Report from the Auditor-General: 

Bloemet Consolidated Metropolitan Transport 

Fund  (CMTF) 

 

Part 2: Report of the Auditor-General to the 

Council on the Financial Statements of the 

Bloemet Consolidated Metropolitan Transport 

Fund for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 

 

1. Audit Assignment 

 

The financial statements as set out on pages 96 to 

99 for the year ended 30 June 2005, have been 

audited in terms of section 188 of the Constitution 

of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 

of 1996), read with sections 4 and 20 of the Public 

Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004). These 

financial statements, the maintenance of effective 

control measures and compliance with relevant 

laws and regulations are the responsibility of the 

accounting officer. My responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these financial statements, based on 

the audit. 

 

2. Nature and Scope 

 

The audit was conducted in accordance with 

Statements of South African Auditing Standards. 

Those standards require that I plan and perform the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance that the 

financial statements are free of material 

misstatement. 

 

An audit includes: 

 

• examining, on a test basis, evidence 

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements, 

• assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management, 

and 

• evaluating the overall financial statement 

presentation. 

 

Furthermore, an audit includes an examination,  on 

a test basis, of evidence supporting compliance in 

all material respects with the relevant laws and 

regulations, which came to my attention and are 

applicable to financial matters. 

The audit was completed in accordance with 

Auditor-General Directive No. 1 of 2005. 

 

I believe that the audit provides a reasonable basis 

for my opinion. 

 

3. Audit Opinion 

 

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly 

present, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Bloemet Consolidated Metropolitan 

Transport Fund at 30 June 2005 and the results of 

its operations and cash flows for the year then 

ended, in accordance with prescribed accounting 

practice. 
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4. Appreciation 

 

The assistance rendered by the staff of the 

Mangaung Local Municipality during the audit is 

sincerely appreciated. 

 

 

 

 

 

BJK van Niekerk 

for Auditor-General 

 

Bloemfontein 

30 November 2005 
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5.11 Accounting Policies: Bloemet 

Consolidated Metropolitan Transport Fund 

 

The financial statements incorporate the following 

principal accounting policies which are consistent 

with those applied in the previous year. 

 

1. The financial statements are prepared on the 

historical cost basis. 

2. Grants received are recognised as income in 

the same year that the income is expended. 

3. Equipment acquired is written off against 

contributions. 
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Bloemet Consolidated Metropolitan Transport Fund 

Balance Sheet At 30 June 2005 

 

 

2003/2004 
 

R 
  EMPLOYMENT OF CAPITAL  

2004/20/05 
 

R  

 

           

     NETT CURRENT ASSETS      

           

  2 279 164   Current Assets   2 272 813   

 

 

 
2 264 045 

 
 

15 119 
 

  
Due by  Mangaung Local Municipality 
 
 
Debtors 
Interstate Bus Service   

 
2 272 813 

 
 
 

-  

 

           

 
 

15 119 
 

 S Planning 
   -  

 

           

           

  (2 279 164)   Current Liabilities   (2 272 813)   

           

           

 

 

 
 
 

(2 279 164)  

 Contributions Prepaid 
 
 

Planning   

 
 
 

(2 272 813)  

 

           

 

 

(161 648) 
(1 832 921) 

(284 595) 
 

 S Department of Transport 
S Free State Provincial Administration 
S Mangaung Local Municipality 

   

(161 648) 
(1 832 921) 

(278 244) 
 

 

           

  0      0   
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Bloemet Consolidated Metropolitan Transport Fund 

Income and Expenditure for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 

 

2003/2004 

 

R 

 

 

 

 

 

2004/2005 

 

R 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

1 49 825 

12 013 

292 

400 

4 651  

EXPENDITURE 

 

Claims Submitted  

 

Planning 

 

Salaries 

  - Urban Planning 

  - Traffic Division 

Insurance 

Conferences 

Traveling and Subsistence    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- 

6 232 

- 

- 

- 

 

 167 181    6 232  

  

 

 

 

 

167 181  

INCOME 

 

Contributions Received 

 

Planning                        

Mangaung Local Municipality  

 

 

 

 

 

6 232 

 167 181    6 232  
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Bloemet Consolidated Metropolitan Transport Fund  

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2005 

  
 

NOTE  
2005 

 
R 

 
2004 

 
R 

 

  
CASH RETAINED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

15 119  
 

- 
 

 
Decrease/(Increase) in working capital 

 
Cash contribution 

 
2 
 
 

 

 
15 119 

 
 

 
- 

 

 NET CASH FLOW  15 119  -  

 CASH EFFECTS OF FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 

(Decrease)/Increase in amount due to Mangaung Local Municipality  (15 119)  - 

 

 NET CASH UTILISED/(GENERATED)  (15 119)  -  

  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
1. Equipment : 
 

Equipment at cost at beginning of year 
 

Written off against subsidies and contributions in previous 
years 

 
 
 
 
 

- 
 

-  

 
 
 
 
 

288 167 
 

(288 167) 

 

 Balance 30 June - -  

  
Acquired during year at cost 

 
Written off against subsidies and contributions  

 
- 
 

-  

 
- 
 

- 

 

 Balance 30 June - -  

  
2. Cash utilised to increase working capital : 
 

  
Decrease/(Increase) in debtors  
 
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors   

 
 
 
 

15 119 
 

-  

 
 
 
 

- 
 

- 

 

   15 119  -  
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CHAPTER 6: FUNCTIONAL AREA SERVICE  

DELIVERY REPORTING 
 
 
Function: Mangaung Local Municipality 
Sub Function: General Information 

   
Reporting 
Level 

Detail 

    
Overview: The Mangaung Local Municipality covers 6 285 km2 and is the most densely populated area 

in the Free State with 104 people per km2, and has 23% of the population of the province. It 
has 89% of the total population of the Motheo District Municipality area (FSPG, 2001).  

 
Mangaung Local Municipality consists of three urban areas, namely the city of 
Bloemfontein, the ‘peri-urban’ towns of Botshabelo and Thaba Nchu and a vast rural area. 

        
Information:      
  Geography:     

1 Geographical area in square kilometers 6 285   
       
 Demography:     

2 Total population 645 443   
 Source of information: SSA     

3 Indigent Population 5 285   
4 Total number of voters 342 033   
5 Age breakdown:    
 • 65 years and over  1% 
 • between 40 and 64 years  5% 
 • between 15 and 39 years  55% 
 • 14 years and under  39% 
 Source of information: MLM IDP 2003/04    

6 Household income:    
 None 10.2%  
 R1              -    R2 400 6.4%  
 R2 401       -    R6 000 15.7%  
  R6 001       -    R12 000 13.7%   
  R12 001     -    R18 000 11.9%   
 R18 001     -    R30 000 10.7%  
 R30 001     -    R42 000 5.6%  
 R42 001     -    more 18.9%  
 Unspecified 6.9%  
  Not applicable 0.1%   
  Source of information: MLM IDP 2003/04     
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Function: Executive and Council 
Sub Function: Office of the City Manager 
   
Reporting 
Level 

Detail 

   
Overview The Executive of the municipality is responsible to provide strategic leadership and 

management and to guide and inform the process of restructuring and transformation in its 
totality. This is done by ensuring proper alignment and integration between key programmes 
of the municipality and its priorities. The council on the other hand is responsible to provide 
overall political leadership and accountability to communities and stakeholders through 
implementation of sound policies and programmes. This must ensure that the decision-
making processes provide a balance between a speedy, transparent and efficient decision-
making process as well as meaningful participation of citizens and other stakeholders. It 
must ensure provision of quality service delivery at a reasonable cost while preserving the 
environment and natural resources.  

    
Description of 
Activity 

  

  The executive, through the leadership of the Executive Mayor is responsible for ensuring the 
compilation and total ownership of the IDP and budget, including the annual review 
processes.  The Mayor must ensure maximum participation and ownership of the process 
by the citizens and other stakeholders and finally to ensure that there is sufficient resource 
allocation in the budget for all IDP projects.  
 
The approved budget and reviewed IDP for 2004/05 financial year was a product of broad 
citizen and stakeholder involvement based on the ward development priorities as 
determine d in the ward-based planning process.  
 
This was done in line with a detailed programme of public participation which was approved 
by Council and published to the broader community. 
 
The executive is also responsible to ensure that the municipality put in place and implement 
a performance management system in line with the applicable legislation and policy 
guidelines from the national government. PMS was developed for the entire organization to 
serve as a tool to introduce and measure the effective performance by the Municipality.  
 
The system ensures that there is quarterly and mid-term reporting to council and the 
community generally. 
 
The executive has put in place measures and processes to establish and facilitate 
harmonious intergovernmental relations, including strategic partnerships with other local 
municipalities, the District Municipality, other spheres of government at provincial; and 
national level as well as other organs of state and organizations.  
 
 
To this end, Mangaung introduced and adopted the Mangaung Compact. Through Compact, 
the Municipality identified different stakeholders and created a platform to discuss their 
different roles as identified in the IDP so that the necessary resource mobilization and 
commitment is agreed upon for their implementation. Different information sessions were 
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held with the different stakeholders.  
 
Council and administration has embarked on an extensive drive to ensure that there is a 
common vision and shared purpose with regard to development with the broader 
community. To this end proper systems and mechanisms were developed, implemented and 
maintained to promote effective and cost efficient public participation including support to 
councillors and ward committees. The broader community was constantly engaged on 
policies and identification of development priorities through a community-based planning 
process.  
 
This has also assisted to reduce and lessen the community’s dependency on the 
municipality for implementation of development in their areas. 
  

        
Analysis of the 
Function: 

     

1 Councillor detail:     
 Total number of Councillors 86   
 Number of Councillors on Executive Committee 10   

2 Ward detail:    
 Total number of Wards 43   
 Number of Ward Meetings  1 032   

3 Number and type of Council and Committee meetings:    
 Ordinary 6   
 Special 4   
 MAYCO 8   
 Section 80 4   
       

Council 08.07.2004 – Special     
 03.08.2004 – Ordinary     
 30.09.2004 – Special     
 14.10.2004 – Ordinary     
 25.11.2004 – Ordinary     
 24.02.2005 – Ordinary     
 05.04.2005 – Special     
 05.05.2005 – Ordinary     
 21.05.2005 – Special     
 14.06.2005 – Ordinary     
       

MAYCO 27.07.2004 – Ordinary     
  09.09.2004 – Ordinary     
  09.11.2004 – Ordinary     
  18.11.2004 – Ordinary     
  15.02. 2005 – Ordinary     
  28.04.2005 – Ordinary     
  11.05.2005 – Ordinary     
  09.06.2005 – Ordinary     
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Function: Finance and Administration 

Sub Function: Finance  

Reporting 

Level 
Detail 

Overview: The Finance Directorate is responsible for the general financial management of the 

municipality. The main objective being to ensure that the organizations finances are 

managed in an economic, efficient and effective manner.  These financial practices are 

aimed at ensuring financial sustainability of the municipality, which will enable the 

Municipality to meet its developmental and community needs. 

  

Description of 

the Activity: 

The Finance Directorate is divided into three main components, Financial Management, 

Revenue Management and Financial Support Service. 

  

  Financial Management: The Financial Management component performs a support function 

to the internal and external stakeholders at Mangaung Local Municipality, that is, staff 

members, Executive Mayor, Councillors, the Executive Management Team and Suppliers.  

The following functions are performed by the section: 

- General financial  management and advice to directorates; 

- Budgeting and Financing 

- Budgetary Control 

- Administration of Assets and Loans  

- Banking and Investments 

- Payroll 

- Management Accounting 

- Financial Accounting and Reporting 

 

Revenue Management: The Revenue Management component is charged with the 

responsibility of ensuring that citizens are satisfied with the quality of billing services, 

provision of accessible pay points for payments, consumer accounts enquiries, and enforcing 

the credit control policies of the Municipality.  The division is responsible for the following 

activities: 

- General Revenue Management 

- Meter Reading 

- Provision of regular and accurate consumer accounts (Billing) 

- Revenue Collection and Credit controls 

- General property valuation, which is used as a basis for determination of property rates, 

taxes and sanitary fees 

- Formulation, review and implementation of financial policies including, credit control, Pro-

poor and Tariff policies 

 

Financial Support Services: The component is charged with the responsibility of providing 

management support and financial information systems for the Finance Directorate.   
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  These services extend to include the entire Mangaung area, except for water and electricity 

services in Thaba Nchu, which are being provided by Bloemwater and Eskom respectively. 

   

The strategic objectives of this function are to: 

  - Improve the debt collection rates and achieve a 97.5% collection target by 2006/2007; 

- Get an unqualified audit report from the Auditor-General; 

- Minimization of the incidence of theft and fraud; 

- Ensure adherence to internal control systems and procedures; 

- Successful implementation of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and other 

related legislation;  

- Minimize the impact of HIV/AIDS on municipal revenue and expenditure; and 

- Implementation of the new GAMAP compliant financial system with a minimum of 

disruptions. 

  
Analysis of the 
Function: 

 

1 Debtor billings: value of monthly billings: 

Month Rates 
R ‘000 

Sanitation 
R ‘000 

Rental 
R ‘000 

Water 
R ‘000 

Electricity 
R ‘000 

Jul 2004 45,811 17,242 934 14,098 41,439 
Aug 2004 17,020 4,904 1,125 12,670 42,766 
Sept 2004 17,040 4,913 1,000 20,131 40,456 
Oct 2004 17,129 4,.920 1,000 19,044 36,396 
Nov 2004 17,131 4,917 1,133 21,499 34,977 
Dec 2004 17,124 4,947 967 24,300 35,679 
Jan 2005 17,178 4,947 967 23,374 35,778 
Feb 2005 14,478 3,800 1,144 8,133 13,539 
Mar 2005 17,233 4,981 1,144 18,801 55,901 
Apr 2005 17,223 4,981 976 24,657 39,089 
May 2005 17,245 4,994 976 14,615 37,916 
Jun 2005 16,882 4,829 1,144 2,115 37,627 

Total 231,494  70,375  12,510  203,437  451,563  
2 Debtor collections: value of amount received including interest 

Month Rates 
R ‘000 

Sanitation 
R ‘000 

Rental 
R ‘000 

Water 
R ‘000 

Electricity 
R ‘000 

July 2004 12,243  4,637  287 14,491  41,918  
Aug 2004 12,865   4,948  625  13,025  42,164  
Sept 2004 13,816   4,887  314  17,403  43,012  
Oct 2004 34,443  4,999  314  14,491 41,045  
Nov 2004 12,337   4,740  297  18,456  35,066  
Dec 2004 9,751    3,627  316  16,476  34,285  
Jan 2005 15,604    9,226  297  22,092  41,038  
Feb 2005 10,927    4,661  284  8,935  8,745  
Mar 2005 13,475   5,933  310  19,265  39,677  
Apr 2005 13,649  5,466  299  17,562  38,655  
May 2005 13,626   5,175  299  14,125  39,341  
Jun 2005 15,049  5,361  306  16,029  36,813  

Total 177,785   63,660  3,948  192,350  441,759  
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3 Debtor analysis: amount outstanding over 30, 60, 90 and 120 plus days 

Days 0 - 30 
R ‘000 

30 - 60 
R ‘000 

60 - 90 
R ‘000 

90 - 120 
R ‘000 

120 + 
R ‘000 

Total 
R ‘000 

By income 
source           

 

Water tariffs 8,293  5,505  2,818  2,486  62,400  81,502  
Electricity tariffs 7,358  3,362  1,984  1,647  25,987  40,338  
Property rates   13,245 5,734   4,902 132,430  156,311  
Sewerage / 
sanitation tariffs   4,862   2,167  1,772  97,447  106,248  
Housing (rental 
income) 351  256  198  166  8,060  9,031  
Other 1,220  850  1,022  667  29,924  33,682  
Total by income 
source 17,222  28,080  13,923  11,640  356,247  427,112  
By customer 
group             
Government  4,156 2,577  362  530  54,838  62,463  
Business 6,989  9,550  4,608  3,671  67,891  92,709  
Individuals 5,488  15,312  8,476  7,044  211,339  247,659  
Other  589  641  477  395  22,179  24,281  
Total by 
customer group 17,222  28,080  13,923  11,640  356,247  427,112  

    
4 Property rates (Residential)    

   - Number and value of properties rated 128 390 9 766 122 194 
   - Number and value of properties not rated 0 0 
   - Number and value of rate exemptions 78 432 3 938 755 
   - Rates collectable for the current year  298 339 278 

    
5 Property rates (Commercial):    
  - Number and value of properties rated 4 195 3 254 089 900 
  - Number and value of properties not rated 0 0 
  - Number and value of rate exemptions 1 2 270 400 
  - Rates collectible for the current year  138 601 853 
    
6 Property valuation:    
  - Year of last valuation 2003  
  - Regularity of valuation Once 

every 3 
years 

 

7 Pro Poor Policy:     
  - Quantity (number of households affected) 78 432   
  - Total value across municipality (Water and Electricity - free basic services to all consumers    

    whether they are poor or not) 
8 Creditor Payments:    
 Five largest creditors individually, with the amount outstanding 

over 30, 60, 90 and 120 plus days as at 30 June 2005 
252,784 33.56 days 

 Eskom 38 972  
 Bloemwater 12 975  
 ABB Powertech 3 435  
 Alstom Siyakha 901  
 IST Energy  732  
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9 

 
Credit Rating: 
  

  Short-term debt: High Grade - A1: Very high certainty of timely payment. Liquidity factors are 
excellent and supported by good fundamental protection factors. Risk factors are minor. 
 
Long-term debt: Investment Grade - A: High credit quality. Protection factors are good. 
However, risk factors are more variable and greater in periods of economic stress.   
 
The rating is based on the following key factors: 
Mangaung Local Municipality displays a sound financial profile, as evidenced by its healthy 
discretionary cash flows and high level of cash on hand. 
 
Furthermore, the municipality exhibits negligible levels of gearing and a strong net cash 
position. 
 
The municipality has historically funded the bulk of its capital expenditure requirements 
internally and has demonstrated an ability to almost entirely achieve its budgeted capital 
expenditure spent in recent years. In addition, the relative level of net capital expenditure to 
total income was favourable considered. 
 
Following stricter provisioning policies and bad debt write-offs, the net debtors to total 
income ration has evidenced a decreasing trend in recent years and for the year to date, to a 
level slightly above its peers. 
 
While the relative strength and fairly well diversified nature of the local economy positively 
influenced the rating, the comparatively poor socio-economic profile and limited investment 
opportunities, despite efforts by Council to stimulate economic growth and employment, 
served to constrain the rating.  
 

10 External Loans: 

 
Interest 

% 
Repayment 

Date 

Balance 
30/06/04 
R (000) 

Received  
R(000) 

Redeemed 
R (000) 

Balance 
30/06/05 
R (000) 

Government 
Loans 10.00 30 Jun 2007 330  99 231 
DBSA 17.25 30 Jun 2005 26  26 0 
DBSA 11.25 31 Dec 2007 198  49 149 
DBSA 11.25 31 Dec 2008 162  30 132 
DBSA 17.25 30 Jun 2005 17  17 0 
DBSA 10.00 31 Dec 2015 19.727  978 18.749 
DBSA 8.50 31 Dec 2005 8  5 3 
DBSA 10.25 31 Dec 2006 4  2 2 
DBSA 14.00 30 Sep 2011 1.198  99 1.099 
DBSA 12.00 31 Mar 2009  87  13 74 
Total   21.757  1.318 20.439 

Key 
Performance 
Area 

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against 
Actual Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance Current Target 

 Financial indicators achieved for the year under review   
Financial 

Ratio Basis of Calculation Actual 
2003/04 

Actual 
2004/05 

Debt Management 
Debt to asset 
ratio 

Total Debt/Total Asset 0.030:1 0,025:1 

Debt to 
revenue 

Total Debt/Annual Income 0.018:1 0.014:1 

Capital charges 
to operating 

Interest to Redemption /Operating Expenditure 0.101:1 0.093:1 
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expenditure 
Liquidity 

Current ratio Current Assets / Current Liabilities 3.006:1 2.663:1 
Liquid ratio Monetary Assets / Current Liabilities 2.902:1 2.608:1 

Revenue Management  
Debtors annual 
collection rate 

Receipts for 12 months /Debtors billing for 12 months 92.07% 92.89% 

Efficiency 
Personnel cost 
to expenditure 

Receipts for 12 months/ Debtors billing for 12 months 30.38% 31.71% 

  Budget 
2004/05 

Actual 
2004/05 

Debt Management 
Debt to asset 
ratio 

Total Debt/Total Asset 0.027:1 0.025:1 

Debt to 
revenue 

Total Debt/Annual Income 0.016:1 0.014:1 

Capital charges 
to operating 
expenditure 

Interest to Redemption / 
Operating Expenditure 
 

0.098:1 0.093:1 

Liquidity  
Current ratio Current Assets / Current Liabilities 2.954:1 2.663:1 
Liquid ratio Monetary Assets / Current Liabilities 2.867:1 2.608:1 

Revenue Management  
Debtors annual 
collection rate 

Receipts for 12 months /Debtors billing for 12 months 96.50% 92.89% 

Efficiency    
Personnel cost 
to expenditure 

Personnel Cost / Total expenditure 31.0% 31.71% 
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Function: Community and Social Services 

Sub Function: Social Development 

 

Reporting 

Level 
Detail 

    

Overview: Rendering of social services to the MLM community. 

Description of 

the Activity: 

Provision of social services: sport and recreation, community development, education, library, 

arts & culture. 

  MLM is charged with the provision / maintenance of sports and recreation facilities, 

management of libraries on an agency basis and community development as per the 

requirements of the constitutions and relevant pieces of legislation including the White Paper 

on Local Government. 

  The strategic objectives of this function are to: 

  Facilitate proper management of self-help projects, provide easy access to reading and 

information, promote development of arts and culture and promote mass participation in sport 

and recreation. 

   

  The key issues for 2004/05 are: 

  Capacity building of 210 CBOs & NGOs in business plan develoment and office management. 

Promoted mass involvement in cultural activities via hosting of a cultural day. Promoted mass 

participation in sport and recreation via programmes such as differently abled sports festival, 

rose sports festival, masters sports day and mass participation programme in partnership with 

the provincial government and facilitating access to reading and information via book 

circulation and reading circle. 

Analysis of the 

Function: 

      

1 Nature and extent of facilities provided: No of 

facilities: 

  

 Stadium 8   

 Swimming pools 6   

 Libraries 8   

2 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with 

Social Development function: 

160 R 1,346,110 

3 Total operating cost of social services function 160 2,893,460 
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Key 
Performance 
Area 

Performance During the Year, Performance 
Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans 
to Improve Performance 

Current Target 

Supply Chain 
Management  

Promotion of previously disadvantaged 
businesses / individuals  

90%  Capital  Budget 
amounting to R 2 397 
215 were awarded to 
PDI’s 

90% of the total 
value of contracts 
between R 0 and 
R 120 000 to be 
awarded to PDI’s. 

Community 
resilience  

210 CBOs & NGOs trained on business plan 
development and office management to 
enhance their capaity to provide services to the 
community and manage self-help projects 
meant to combat poverty. 

100% To support 
applications of 
CBOs and NGOs 
for funding.  

  Site inspection was done at 30 community 
projects to assess management processes, 
implementation of projects, and determine 
agreed intervention and support mechanism. 
Markets secured for community projects via the 
Fresh Produce market who are willing to market 
their produce. 

100% compliance To provide 
agreed support 
and advice to 
projects. 

Education   A memorandum of understanding ABET and 
policy framework on municipal support was 
developed and discussed with the provincial 
Department of Education.   

100% compliance Signing of the 
MOU and 
approval of 
policy. 

  
  

Key Performance Area 
Performance During the Year, Performance 
Targets Against Actual Achieved and 
Plans to Improve Performance 

Current Target 

Sport & recreation The   following sport development 
programmes were presented: cricket & 
volleyball to promote mass participation in the 
code.  

100% 
compliance 

Develop Sports 
Codes  

Mangaung swimming 
pool: upgrading ablution 
block, staff room and 
change room 

Quotations closed on 06.12.05 and awaiting 
ranking by Procurement. 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Mangaung outdoor: 
fencing and paving are 
expected to be invited by 
31.01.06 

Quotations closed on 06.12.05 and awaiting 
ranking and evaluation by Procurement and 
Bid Evaluation Committee respectively. 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Botshabelo stadium: 
masterplan 

R 250 000.00 Consultant appointed and busy 
with the design of the masterplan. 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Upgrading of Johnson 
Bendile stadium: 
implementation of 
masterplan phase for 
R1 500 000 

Project completed in August 2005. 100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Botshabelo stadium: 
Public address system 

Project completed. 100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 



 

 110 

Irrigation system: 
Selosesha stadium  

Project completed. 100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Libraries and  
education 

    

  Libraries attended a story telling presented by 
Provincial Library Services in Ice Breaking, 
voice change, breathing, articulation, moods, 
story preparation, story telling techniques and 
accumulative stories. 

100% 
compliance 

Present story  
telling session 

  The following displays were made at the 
Libraries: Health Awareness month, Art and 
Jewellery, I am a Writer, Cancer Prevention, 
Women’s month, Women can change the 
world, African Culture. Life Skills Programme 
is run at the Bainsvlei Trevor Barlow Library to 
rehabilitate and teach the children that are in 
conflict with the law that crime does not pay. 
The children who graduated from the 
programme were given their Diplomas by the 
Premier in October 2005. 

100% 
compliance 

Do displays at all 
libraries 

  Books were issued to the elderly at the 
following old age homes: Striata, Rosestad, 
Clubsco, Omega, Siesta, Village and Vura.  
Bainsvlei Library Committee presented a 
holiday programme and fundraising.  Bana-
ba-Tshepa displaced children visited the City 
Library every Wednesday for the book 
Education and Literacy.  The following pre 
schools visited the Library for educational 
Programme Story: Doty Dot, Eunice, Edna 
Rita. Telling and Basic Library Orientation: 
Khanyiso, Iketseng, Universitas.  To introduce 
children to reading: Sonskyn, English Tuition 
Centre, St Michaels. 

100% 
compliance 

Issued books to 
all old age homes  

Air conditioning for 
community hall- BP 
Leinaeng 

The air conditioning system has already been 
installed and functioning well in the hall. Out 
of R 65 000.00, R 35 509.22 has been spent; 
R 4 560.00 has been committed and the rest 
still has to be paid. 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Steel book trolleys - all 
service points 

To date R 11 784.98 worth of different kinds 
of trolleys have already been ordered and the 
same amount has been committed for 
payment. Delivery is expected before the end 
of January 2006 as soon as the factories re- 
open. The total budgeted amount was R 12 
000 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Steel magazine stands: 
city library 

To date R 12 485.51 worth of steel magazine 
stands have already been ordered and the 
same amount has been committed for 
payment. Delivery is expected before the end 
of January 2006 as soon as the factories re- 
open. The total budgeted amount was R12 
640.00 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 



 

 111 

Bays bolted metal 
shelving: legal deposits- 
serials 

Three quotations were sent to procurement at 
stores in December 2005 to proceed with the 
Tender procedure. The process is in progress. 
Subsequently, no amount has been 
committed nor paid out of the R62 120.00. 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Textile carpet tiles: 
reference and research 
section 

Busy with the design of specification and 
quotations 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Community development To build organisational and administrative 
capacity of CBOs and NGOs, Community 
Projects. 

  Provide training 
to 250 CBOs & 
NGOs 

Capacity building Two workshops were held in Botshabelo and 
one in Thaba Nchu with the project leaders of 
CBOs, NGOs and Community Projects that 
were capacitated an provided with training on 
development of business plans. This was 
done in partnership with the service provider, 
Bokgoni Tsebo. The purpose of this 
refinement is to enhance and sharpen the 
skills of the NGOs, CBOs and Community 
Projects to be able to develop viable business 
plans. This will ultimately help them to secure 
funding to implement their projects.One 
training workshop was held in Botshabelo as 
part of the strategic objectives to develop a 
community that is self- reliant, resilient and 
sustainable. The CBOs, NGOs and 
Community Projects were trained on business 
plan development, Office Management, e.g., 
minute taking and filing. A number of CBOs, 
NGOs and Community Projects members 
were trained. 

100% 
compliance 

100% 
Expenditure 

Self-help projects A list of projects aimed for job creation was  
submitted to the Department of Local 
Government and Housing.  

100% 
compliance 

Improved 
cooperative 
governance 

Displaced children Meeting was held with South West Taxi 
Association, SAPS and Mrs Basson to 
discuss the accommodation of displaced 
children at possible places such as old 
Bastion clinic. 

100% 
compliance 

Secure 
accommodation 

  Meeting with Health Inspectors in Botshabelo 
to assist in identifying suitable sites for poultry 
projects to avoid pollution. 

100% 
compliance 

Projects sites 
identified 

  The lease agreement and land allocation were 
finalised for the following projects: Itjareng 
Poultry Project, Tsoha o Iketsetse and 
Itsoseng Poultry Project. 

100% 
compliance 

Lease 
agreements 
signed 

  Bainsvlei Library Committee presented a 
holiday programme and fundraising. 

100% 
compliance 

Programme 
presented 

  The CUT and UFS were approved to assist 
Unity Food Garden with training in Hydroponic 
Vegetable Production.  

100% 
compliance 

Quality services 

  The Office of the Regional Manager 
Botshabelo was requested to investigate the 
factory or production space for Botshabelo 
Sewing and Knitting Project. 

100% 
compliance 

Secure 
accommodation 
space 
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  Applications were submitted to the Property 
Management for Land and accommodation for 
African Poultry Chicken Project and helping 
the Helpless Project. 

100% 
compliance 

Lease agreement 
signed 

  A workshop was held with project leaders and 
the service provider to refine the business 
plans that were developed in the previous 
financial year through the action learning 
method of instruction to ensure that they are 
viable for the purpose of securing funding. 

100% 
compliance 

Improve 
administrative 
capacity 

  Support in the form of seedling, nutrients and 
business plan provided to Lechabile, 
Hlanganani and Etsa Phapang projects. 

100% 
compliance 

Provide technical 
support 

Arts and culture MACUFE and Vuka cultural festivals that were 
held in October and December were provided 
with both technical and financial support. 

100% 
compliance 

Provide support 

  Folkloric festival to promote cultural diversity 
and heritage held in Thaba Nchu, on 24 
September 2005 provided financial support. 

100% 
compliance 

Provide support 

  The Heritage Day celebration event was held 
on 23 September 2005, in Thaba Nchu to 
promote the South African heritage, especially 
those neglected in the past. 

100% 
compliance 

Present event 

  

Programmes to manage matters relating to 
initiation schools in order to control the 
hosting of these schools is being implemented 
on a continuous basis to minimise the risks 
posed to the initiates to those hosting illegal 
schools.  

100% 
compliance 

Effective control 
of schools 
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Function: Community and Social Services 

Sub Function: Emergency Services 

  

Reporting Level Detail 

    

Overview: Rendering of Emergency Services to the community of MLM 

Description of the 

Activity: 

Delivery of Emergency Services (Fire and Rescue, Disaster Managem ent and 

Emergency Communications)  

  These services extend to include the entire area of Mangaung. The municipality has a 

mandate to render fire-fighting services within its area of jurisdiction. Disaster 

Management service is rendered in terms of the provisions of the Disaster Management 

Act, 2002.  

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:   

  Prevent all incidents from escalating into full scale disasters beyond the capacity of MLM 

  Render a fire and rescue service in accordance with generally accepted standards 

  The key issues for 2004/05 are: 

  Economically promote previously disadvantaged individuals 

  Ensure Disaster Preparedness and Management for the Municipality 

  Enhance fire safety by ensuring compliance with fire safety standards and establishment 

of a volunteer corps 

  Effective and efficient emergency call taking and dispatching  

  Ensure public awareness of disaster preparedness and fire safety 

Analysis of the 

Function: 

      

1 Nature and extent of facilities provided: Number of 

facilities: 

  

 Fire Stations 5   

 Emergency Communications Centre 1   

     

2 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated 

with Emergency Services function:  

214 R19 403 164 

3 Total operating cost of emergency services function  R27 041 154 
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Key Performance Area 

Performance During the 

Year, Performance Targets 

Against Actual Achieved 

and Plans to Improve 

Performance 

Current Target 

Supply Chain 

Management  

Promotion of previously 

disadvantaged businesses / 

individuals  

73,5% of Capital 

Budget amounting to 

R 2 397 215 were 

awarded to PDI’s 

70 % of the total value of 

contracts between R 0 

and R 120 000 to be 

awarded to PDI’s. 

Prevention of full scale 

disasters by managing 

incidents  

No incidents escalated into 

full-scale disasters. Incidents 

which occurred were 

managed within the capacity 

of MLM. 

100% compliance No incidents to escalate 

into full scale disasters 

Ensuring adherence to 

fire safety standards by 

businesses 

2623 Low Fire / Life Safety 

Risk premises, 193 Medium 

Fire / Life Safety Risk 

premises and 72 High Fire / 

Life Safety Risk premises in 

MLM were inspected by Fire 

Safety Inspectors. 

100% compliance Inspecting 1869 of Low 

Fire / Life Safety Risk 

premises, 90 Medium 

Fire / Life Safety Risk 

premises and 52 High 

Fire /  Life Safety Risk 

premises in MLM 

Establishing an effective 

fire and rescue and 

disaster management 

volunteer corps  

142 Volunteers recruited and 

trained in First Aid, Fire 

Fighting and / or Emergency 

Communication 

100% compliance Recruitment and training 

of 110 volunteers in First 

Aid, Fire Fighting and / or 

Emergency 

Communication 

Emergency preparedness 

and Fire Safety Public 

Awareness Programmes  

Fire safety / emergency 

preparedness program 

delivered to 63 groups / 

schools exposing 13258 

learners to the program. 

100% compliance Fire safety / emergency 

preparedness program 

delivered to at least 30 

groups / schools 

Effective and efficient 

emergency call taking and 

dispatching by Control 

Centre, complying to 

National norms 

Random sample of 100 calls 

handled by Control Centre 

confirmed 97% compliance 

97% compliance Compliance for 90% of 

emergency calls handled 

To comply with SANS 

10090 in respect of 

emergency incidents 

attended 

Overall objective achieved 

but attendance times to 

certain localities remain 

unacceptable 

100% compliance Compliance for 60% 

emergency incidents 

attended 
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Function: Public Safety 
Sub Function: Police (Traffic) 
  
Reporting 
Level 

Detail 

    
Overview: Includes police force and traffic (and parking) control 
    
Description of 
the Activity: 

The policing and traffic control functions of the municipality are administered as follows and 
include: 

  To deliver a Traffic Law Enforcement and Crime Prevention Service. 
  These services extend to include the entire area of Mangaung.  The municipality has a 

mandate to render a Traffic Law Enforcement and Crime Prevention within its area of 
jurisdiction.  Traffic Management services is performed in terms of the provision of the 
National Road Traffic Act and the enforcement of Councils By-Laws. 

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     
  Better Traffic control to minimize incidents of traffic 

offences and accidents in the Mangaung area.     To 
render a Traffic and Security Service in accordance with 
generally accepted standards. 

    

  The key issues for 2004/2005 are.     
  Economically promote previous disadvantage individuals.  

Manage finances in accordance with Legislative 
provisions and Council policies.  Ensure Traffic Safety 
and Crime Prevention in Mangaung. 

    

        
        
Analysis of the 
Function: 

    
R 

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated 
with policing and traffic control: 

  

  - Professional (Senior Management) 10 1778890 
  - Field (Detectives/Supervisors) 21 2960200 
  - Office (Clerical/Administration) 37 3988460 
  - Non-professional (visible police officers on the street) 276 6282660 
  - Volunteer 0 0 
  - Temporary 34 1199320 
  - Contract 1 373380 
     

2 Total number of call-outs attended:    
  - Emergency call-outs     
  - Standard call-outs - Security Division: 18 000 calls 

for the period 2004/2005 
18 000 
calls 

  

     

3 Average response time to call-outs:  security division : 
30 minutes, traffic division - 10 minutes 

Recorded at 
control 
Room  

  

   - Emergency call-outs     
  - Standard call-outs     
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4 Total number of targeted violations i.e., traffic offences: 
Moving violations – 10 000; Parking violations – 
19855; Documents and Licences – 107; Camera 
offences - 150 298; Law Enforcement By Laws - 696 
cases                                          

    

5 Total number and type of emergencies leading to a loss 
of life or disaster: 

    

6 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 
 No grants were received during the past financial 

year. 
    

      

7 Total operating cost of police and traffic function   R 38,396,920 

Key 
Performance 
Area 

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets 
Against Actual Achieved and Plans to Improve 
Performance 

Current Target 

        
Community 
resilience 

In response to the President of the Country's call to 
alleviate poverty and develop skills, the Sub Directorate 
Traffic and Security trained twenty six (26) young 
unemployed members of the Community as Traffic 
Officers. These men and women are fully prepared for 
the job market. This was done after realizing that most of 
the smaller Municipalities wanted to employ Traffic 
Officers but had no budget to train them. The twenty six 
(26) students commenced their training in January 2005 
and completed it in June 2005. 

100% Complete 

Finalisation of a 
report on the 
feasability study 
on the 
establishment 
of the MUNPOL 

The draft White Paper (May 1998) proposes explicitly that 
local government should be responsible for the 
implementation and co-ordination of social crime 
prevention programmes within its areas of jurisdiction. 
Thus it is argued: "Local government, the level of 
government which is closest to the citizenry, is uniquely 
placed to actively participate in social crime prevention 
initiatives and to redirect the provision of services to 
facilitate crime prevention." Specifically, the draft White 
Paper suggests that local government should work with 
community police forums and play a part in initiating, 
implementing and maintaining social crime prevention 
interventions, in line with broad national and provincial 
guidelines; developing interventions aimed at preventing 
victimisation and deterring offenders; leading and co-
ordinating crime prevention strategies and interventions; 
re-orienting municipal services to facilitate crime 
prevention; and ensuring that development projects take 
account of crime prevention principles.  In order to meet 
this objective, the Municipality identified the need to 
establish a municipal Police service.  

Phase 1 - 
100%; 
Phase 2 
under 
investigation 

Jun-05 

Mangaung 
Compact 

The  General Manager Traffic and Security was expected 
to participate in the development of a common approach 
and programme on the CCTV cameras with relevant 
stakeholders. Although meetings were held with 
stakeholders such as Telkom and the SAPS, a 
memorandum of understanding could not be signed due 
to disagreement with Telkom on the price of their product 
(ducts). 

Negoiations 
are still 
under way  
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Increase in the 
Number of 
Notices  

A 15% increase in the number of notices issued to 
offenders in respect of road traffic offences was expected 
from the General Manager Traffic and Security. The total 
number of fines issued for the financial year 2003 / 2004 
was 108 454 notices. A total number of 179 778 notices 
were issued to offenders during the financial year 2004 / 
2005 which represent an increase of about 64% for the 
period of reporting.  The increase in the number of fines 
issued alluded to above, will no doubt have a positive 
effect on the revenue of Council. The impact of this 
increase on traffic collisions will only be measured once 
Council has an accident management system. This 
system will possibly be obtained in the financial year 
2005/6. 

100 % 
complete. 
Ongoing 
process 

  

To ensure 
Public Safety 
Awareness 

In response to the National Crime Prevention Strategy, 
the General Manager Traffic and Security was expected 
to establish a local crime prevention partnership, which 
partnership would comprise of various stakeholders 
having an interest on matters relating to public safety. A 
crime prevention partnership was established on 02 
February 2005.  The establishment of this partnership 
has not only improved communications between law 
enforcment agencies but also led to an integrated 
approach towards crime prevention. Further to the 
establishment of a Local Crime Prevention partnership, 
the General Manager Traffic and Security was also 
expected to ensure that the Municipality host a 
conference on crime prevention. A conference was held 
on 04 May 2005 and was attended by representatives of, 
inter alia, the following countries and Municipalities -  
Kenya, Gauteng, KZN, Matjhabeng and Lejwe le Putswa.   

Ongoing 
process 

  

  Given the continuous house breaking and theft cases 
reported at the Housing Division of the Municipality, The 
GM Housing Services was advised to request funds for 
the installation of cameras at the Housing Division. The 
said funds were subsequently requested and obtained. 
Cameras and monitors were installed at both the Housing 
Division and Traffic car parking area at the Chris De Wet 
Building. This was done with the view of curbing theft at 
the said places.    
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Function: Community and Social Services     

Sub Function: Parks and Cemeteries     

    

Reporting 

Level 
Detail Total 

        

Overview: Includes all activities associated with the provision of community and 

social services  

    

        

Description of 

the Activity: 

The function of provision of various community and social services 

within the municipality is administered as follows and includes: 

    

  The sub-directorate Parks & Cemeteries' objective is to ensure and to 

provide a clean, green and healthy environment to the residents of 

Mangaung through a process of effective, efficient and sustainable 

service delivery and are responsible for the horticultural maintenance 

and development of open spaces (parks), traffic islands, buffer zones, 

sportfields, street trees, city gardens and fire belts. A technical 

maintenance service contributes to the effectiveness of the service 

with reference to water network maintenanc e (irrigation systems), 

mechanical maintenance of small equipment such as lawnmowers, 

water pumps, parks, buildings, and fences, etc. 

    

  Zoo Kwaggafontein Naval Hill Eco Park Nature areas:     

  Conserve the natural environment, both in situ and ex si tu, to educate 

its community about conservation, to do research to the benefit of 

living animals and plants and to provide recreational facilities for the 

spiritual enrichment of its people 

    

  These services include breeding of game and management of natural 

veld, but do not take account of comprehensive nature conservation, 

including private land which resides within the jurisdiction of the 

DTEEA provincial government. 

    

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

  Enhance service excellence and sustainability and community 

resilience and self-reliance 

    

  The key issues for 2004/05 are:     

  Execution of the Zoo master plan, execution of Naval Hill project, 

execution of Kwaggafontein project, soil conservation in Thaba Nchu 

and rehabilitation of the Klein Modder River at Botshabelo, restoration 

of water ecology, Loch Logan 

    

        

Analysis of the 

Function: 

Horticulture maintains 203 developed parks (435 ha), 2039 ha open 

urban spaces, 250ha cemeteries, 165 ha fire breaks, 36 formal sport 

field facilities, 6 swimming pool gardens and 35 informal soccer fields 

as clean well-maintained parks and open spaces; this helps uplift the 
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community and market the city. 

  1 Each (total= 6) for Naval Hill, Zoo, Kwaggafontein, soil cons ervation 

Botshabelo & Thaba'Nchu and water ecology Loch Logan                             

Ensure all MLM residents are able to access suitable graves and 

crematoria in accordance with their cultural requirements. 

    

1 Nature and extent of facilities provided: no of  

facilit

ies: 

no of users: 

   - Parks 75   

  - The Zoo 1   

  - Kwaggafontein Game Reserve 1   

  - Franklin Nature Reserve 1   

  - The Eco Park 1   

  - Urban Conservancies 28   

        

       

  Cemeteries: Bloemfontein = 10, Botshabelo = 2, Thaba'Nchu urban 

cemeteries = 18, Thaba'Nchu rural = 38 

    

  Natural Resource Management     

2 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with each 

community services function: 

   

  - Parks 70          

19,510,100  

  - Nature Conservat ion Services  21            

2,482,810  

        

  Horticulture (331 - 16936671) NRM (20 - 1993410)      
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Key Performance Area 

Performance During the Year, Performance 

Targets Against Actual Achieved and Plans to 

Improve Performance 

Current Target 

        

Implementation of the 

Business Plan for Horticulture 

as part of Alternative Service 

Delivery 

Business Plan was implemented and SMME's and 

upcoming contractors were engaged in terms of 

service delivery.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

    

Open Space Development One Regional A Park was developed in Thaba 

'Nchu           

    

Greening of MLM City Entrances, parks and streets were planted 

with street trees to ensure a clean and green 

environment         

    

Horticulture maintenance of 

open spaces  

SMME engagement to ensure service delivery           

Ensure safety of all MLM 

Cemeteries 

2 Cemeteries fenced during the financial year.        

Manage nature reserves 

effectively so that there are 

key attractions in the city 

Kwaggafontein Game Farm ( Enlarged from 582 

ha to 900 ha)    

    

Implement key elements of 

natural resource 

management, including 

prevention of soil erosion and 

improvement of water 

catchments 

Loch Logan ( Improvement of water quality, 

continuous monitoring)       
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Function: Waste Management 
Sub Function: Solid Waste  
    
Reporting 
Level 

Detail Total 

Overview: Includes refuse removal, storage, transporting, public cleansing and 
management of landfill sites  

    

Description of 
the Activity: 

The refuse collection functions of the municipality are administered as 
follows and include: 

    

  Domestic waste collection: weekly door-to-door collection; trade waste 
services is per request 

    

  These services extend to include public cleansing, but do not take 
account of street sweeping which resides within the jurisdiction of 
roads and stormwater sub-directorates.  

    

 Strategic objectives of this function are:   
 To ensure that citizens are satisfied with the quality of service 

provision committed to by Mangaung Municipality 
  

    
  The key issues for 2004/05 are :     
 To Develop an Integrated Waste Management Plan   
 To do a round balancing exercise   
 Fencing of the Northern and Southern landfill sites   
  Development of a storm water system for Botshabelo     

Analysis of the 
Function: 

     

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with refuse 
removal: 

   

  - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) 1 131 389 
  - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) 36 3 004 500 
  - Office (Clerical/Administration) 10 955 490 
  - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) 494 28 653 090 
  - Temporary 38 301 450 
  - Contract 1 437 290 

2 Number of households receiving regular refuse removal services, and 
frequency and cost of service: 

176 275  

  - Removed by municipality at least once a week (service points) 8 000  
  - Own refuse dump 3   

3 Total and projected tonnage of all refuse disposed: 345 000   
4 Total number, capacity and life expectancy of refuse disposal sites:    
  - Domestic/Commerc ial (3 sites)  15 yrs 
 - Southern landfill site GMB 13 yrs 

 - Northern landfill site GMB 13 yrs 
  - Botshabelo landfill site GMB 26 yrs 
Reporting 
Level 

Detail Total (R) 

5 Anticipated expansion of refuse removal service:     
  - Domestic/Commercial (40 0 service points) 5 000  

7 Total operating cost of solid waste management function   60 826 470 
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Key Performance Area 
Performance During the Year, Performance Targets 
Against Actual Achieved and Plans to Improve 
Performance 

    
Management of solid waste  
 
Achieve procurement targets 
 
Ensure waste management complies with legislation 
 
Ensure outsourcing  of services that are most 
effectively delivered by communities or SMMEs 
 
 

- 103% of capital budget spent. 
 
- Procurement targets were achieved as per procurement 

policy. 
- Draft final Integrated Business Plan completed 
- Northern and Southern landfill sites were fenced. A storm 

water management system was developed for the 
Botshabelo landfill site 

 
 

Function: Waste Water Management 
Sub Function: Sewerage etc 
    
Reporting 
Level 

Detail Total Cost 

Overview: Includes provision of sewerage services not including infrastructure and 
water purification, also includes toilet facilities  

    

Description of 
the Activity: 

The sewerage functions of the municipality are administered as follows 
and include:  

    

  Sewer Maintenance; Sewerage Purification; Vacuum Services; 
Engineering Services 

    

  These services include the full sewerage service, and do not include any 
function which resides within the jurisdiction of government. The 
municipality has a mandate to: 

    

  Act as Water Service Authority     
  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     
  Provide 85% of the residents on existing formal erven with basic RDP 

standard sanitation by 2006.  
    

  The key issues for 2004/05 are:     
  To provide 8 050 erven with at least a RDP standard of sanitation.     
Analysis of the 
Function:  

     

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with sewerage 
functions: 

  R (000s) 

  - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) 4 867 
  - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) 33 4,124 
  - Office (Clerical/Administration) 3 288 
  - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) 161 9,194 
2 Number of households with sewerage services, and type and cost of 

service in this financial year:  
  R (000s) 

  - Flush toilet (connected to sewerage system) 1099 13,827 
  - Flush toilet (with septic tank) 0 0 
  - Chemical toilet 0 0 
  - Pit latrine with ventilation (B69VIPs) 12 248  59, 217 
  - Pit latrine without ventilation 11451 0 
  - Bucket latrine 1000 
3 Anticipated expansion of sewerage:   R (000s) 
  - Flush/chemical toilet 2094 28, 484 
  - Pit latrine 180 750 
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  - Bucket latrine 0 0 
  - No toilet provision 0 0 
     

4 Free Basic Service Provision:    
  - Quantity (number of households affected) 79 216   

Reporting 
Level 

Detail Total Cost 

5 Total operating cost of sewerage function   R58 965 
Key 
Performance 
Area 

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual 
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance Current Target 

        
  Provide 85% of the residents on existing formal erven with basic RDP 

standard sanitation by 2006.  
14,188  

 
 

Function: Water 
Sub Function: Water Distribution 
    
Reporting Level Detail Total Cost 
Overview: Includes the bulk purchase and distribution of water     
Description of the 
Activity: 

The water purchase and distribution functions of the municipality are 
administered as follows and include: 

    

 Water Maintenance; Water Purification; Engineering Services; Loss 
Management 

    

 These services extend to include bulk water supply and water distribution, 
but do not take account of 70% of bulk water supply which sits within the 
jurisdiction of Bloem Water.  

    

 The strategic objectives of this function are:      
 To provide all residents on existing formal erven with access to a water 

connection on their stands by 2006. 
    

 The key issues for 2004/05 are:      
 Provide 7 500 erven with water connections.     

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with the water 
distribution function: 

  R (000s) 

  - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) 13 3 861 
  - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) 64 6 677 
  - Office (Clerical/Administration) 12 1 218 
  - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) 227 13 179 

2 Percentage of total water usage per month     
 July 7.50   
 Aug 7.28   
 Sept  9.14   
 Oct 8.02   
 Nov 9.91   
 Dec 10.74   
 Jan 9.02   
 Feb 9.84   
 Mar 6.78   
 Apr 7.84   

 May 6.65   
 June 7.28   
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3 Total volume and cost of bulk water purchases in kilolitres and rand, by 
category of consumer 

 R (000s) 

  - Category 1  45 901 389 123 502
  - Category 2  15 862 583 6 558

4 Total volume and receipts for bulk water sales in kilolitres and rand, by 
category of consumer: 

 R (000s) 

  - Category 1 (total number of households) 24 852 538 118 530
  - Category 2 (total number of households) 940 611 4 515
  - Category 3 (total number of households) 13 365 904 90 522

5 Total year -to-date water losses in kilolitres and rand  R (000s) 
  22 604 919 59 457

6 Number of households with water service, and type and cost of service:  R (000s) 
  - Piped water inside dwelling 0 0
  - Piped water inside yard 6 642 26 886

7 Number and cost of new connections:  R (000s) 
 Piped water inside yards (including CRPs) 17 157 R 377 454 

8 Number and cost of disconnections and reconnections:  R (000s) 
 Restrictions and disconnections 27 652 608 344 

9 Number and total value of water projects planned and current:  R (000s) 
  - Current (financial year after year reported on) 9 33,597
  - Planned (future years) 18 76,502
 Note: provide total project and project value as per initial or revised budget    

10 Anticipated expansion of water service:  R (000s) 
  - Piped water inside dwelling 0 0
  - Piped water inside yard 4 250 12  755
  - Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m from dwelling 300 270 000
  - Piped water on community stand: distance > 200m from dwelling 1000 900 000
  - Borehole 0 0
  - Spring 0 0
  - Rain-water tank 0 0
     

11 Estimated backlog in number (and cost to provide) water connection:  R (000s) 
  - Piped water inside dwelling 0 0
  - Piped water inside yard 37 586 167,358
  - Piped water on community stand: distance < 200m from dwelling  
  - Piped water on community stand: distance > 200m from dwelling 0 0
  - Borehole 0 0
  - Spring 0 0
  - Rain-water tank 0 0
     

12 Free Basic Service Provision:    
  - Quantity (number of households affected) 105 650   
  - Quantum (value to each household) R20.16   
      

13 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 
 DWAF 1     4, 740 
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 Note: total value of specific water grants actually received during year to 
be recorded over the five quarters - Apr to Jun last year, Jul to Sep, Oct to 
Dec, Jan to Mar, Apr to Jun this year.  

    

14 Total operating cost of water distribution function   R 226,237 
    
Key 
Performance 
Area 

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual 
Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance Current Target 

        
  To provide all residents on existing formal erven with access to a water 

connection on their stands by 2006. 
    

        
 
 

Function: Road Transport 

Sub Function: Roads 

    

Reporting 

Level 
Detail Total Cost 

        

Overview: Construction and maintenance of roads within the municipality's 

jurisdiction 

    

        

Description of 

the Activity: 

The road maintenance and construction responsibilities of the municipality 

are administered as follows and includ e: 

    

  Provide access to all erven by building properly drained streets by 

appointing and managing consulting engineers and contractors 

    

  The municipality has a mandate to provide services needed by the 

community 

    

  The strategic objectives of this function are to:     

  Develop (tar or gravel) and maintain all streets to provide access to all 

erven and properties and to provide proper stormwater drainage. 

Upgrading (tar or gravel) of all low traffic local streets. Tarring (economical 

design) of all collector streets 

   

  The key issues for 2004/05 are:    

  To identify IDP projects and appoint consulting engineers in time to be 

able to spend all the available funds before the end of the financial year 

   

       

       

Analysis of the 

Function: 

    

1 Number and cost to employer of all personnel associated with road 

maintenance and construction: 

 R (000s) 

  - Professional (Engineers/Consultants) 20 6 206  

  - Field (Supervisors/Foremen) 19 2 938 

  - Office (Clerical/Administration) 23 1 734 

  - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce) 285 12 860 
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  - Temporary 0 0 

  - Contract 0 0 

2 Total number, kilometres and total value of road projects planned and 

current: 

 R (000s) 

  - New bitumenised (km) 17.78 42 672 

  - Existing re-tarred (km) 52.6 6 400 

  - New gravel (km) 71 7 800 

  - Existing tarred roads resealed (km)   

     

3 Total kilometres and maintenance cost associated with existing roads 

provided 

 R (000s) 

  - Tar 1 400 5 063 

  - Gravel 1 290 5 748 

     

4 Average frequency and cost of re-tarring, re-sheeting roads  R (000s) 

  - Tar Every 5-6 3 855/yr 

  - Gravel Every 2-8 2 741/yr 

 Note: based on maintenance records    

5 Estimated backlog in number of roads, showing kilometres and capital 

cost  

 R (000s) 

  - Tar 61.7 185 100 

  - Gravel 283  31 130 

    

6 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:  R (000s) 

 Municipal Infrastructure Grant  30 023 

    

7 Total operating cost of road construction and maintenance function  R (000s) 

   82 638 

 

Key Performance 

Area 

Performance During the Year, Performance Targets Against Actual 

Achieved and Plans to Improve Performance 
Current Target 

        

 Building new tar 

streets, gravelling of 

dust roads, resealing 

of tar roads, 

regravelling of streets 

and installing 

underground 

stormwater 

All the funds provided were spent and the performance targets were 

met. To improve performance, an attempt will be made to appoint 

consultants earlier so that the construction of the projects can start to 

make it easier to spend the funds in time. 
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Function: Economic Development and Planning 
Sub Function: Property and Land Management 
   

Reporting 
Level 

Detail 

   
Overview: • Ensure the strategic management of resources in line with the Council Policies. 

• Promoting sustainable human settlements and quality urban environments. 
• Ensuring that municipal property is managed in an efficient and effective manner.  
  

     
Description of 
the Activity: 

List of achievements of the Property and Land management sub-directorate relating to the targets 
set: 

• The formalization of lease agreements for the shops in the township were finalised 
• Deed of donation for the transfer of plots in Rodenbeck was signed 
• Deed of donation for the transfer of land at Mapikela Square was signed 
• Facilitated the re- evaluation and depreciation of sundry properties - (shops) 
• Compiled a contract register of internal and external lease agreements 
• Compiled a building and a stock item register of Council’s Properties. 

 
R8 million was collected as rental on leased properties. 
  

  The key issues for 2004/05  
  • R1 million revenue to be collected on leased properties and advertising structures 

• Expenditure of Capital Budget 100% 
• Expose each staff member to one development course i.t.o. of the development plan  
• Facilitate the transfer of Bloemside phase 4 and 5 
• Facilitate the transfer of Mapikela Square. Compile a contract register of internal and external 

lease agreements 
• Facilitate the re- evaluation and depreciation of sundry properties 
• Compile a building and a stock item register of council’s properties  
Formalising and legalising the leasing of sundry properties (shops and offices) 

   
        
Analysis of the 
Function: 

     

1 Number and cost to employer of all environmental 
management personnel: 

 R (000s) 

       
   - Professional (Directors / Managers) 2  
   - Non-professional (Clerical / Administrative) 6  
   - Temporary 0  
   - Contract 0  
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Function: Economic Development and Planning 

Sub Function: Environmental Management  

   

Reporting 

Level 
Detail 

    

Overview: Key objectives for the Environmental Management sub -directorate: 

• Evaluate new developments that can have a negative impact on the environment through the 

EIA process 

• Develop strategic policies and plans to promote sustainable development 

• Promote Local Agenda 21 

Manage Pollution in Mangaung Local Municipality 

   

Description of 

the Activity: 

The following describes the list of achievements of the sub-directorate relating to the targets set: 

• Community workshops took place in Bloemfontein, Mangaung township, Botshabelo and 

Thaba Nchu  

• Integrated Environmental Management Plan (IEMP) approved by Council  

• Local Agenda 21 framework approved by Council  

• Environmental Policy approved by Council  

• Urban Open Space Policy approved by Council.  Urban Open Space Implementation 

Framework approved by Council  

• Environmental Management System (EMS) framework approved by Council  

• Environmental Audit report approved by Council  

• Draft by-laws for urban open spaces produced  

• Draft by-laws for keeping of livestock produced  

• Draft by-laws for removal of topsoil produced  

• State of Environment procedure manual produced  

• 9 Community projects completed  

• Development of a State of Energy report initiated  

• Development of a Strategic Environmental Management Plan (SEMP) initiated  

• Development of an Energy Audit initiated  

• Draft Air Quality Management Plan produced  

• Environmental Awareness Course for senior officials conducted at UOFS Two environmental 

clubs established  

• Commented on 25 applications to purchase land  

Commented on 3 applications for township establishment    

  The key issues for 2004/05 

 • Finalise Integrated Environmental Management  (IEM) Policy for MLM 
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• Finalise Environmental Management Plan (EMP) for MLM 

• Conduct 1 environmental awareness course for senior officials and politicians in MLM 

• Finalise Local Agenda 21 framework  

• Establish 2 environmental clubs 

• Develop a draft air monitoring system for MLM 

• Develop a draft State of Energy Report for MLM Corporate 

• Conduct energy audit of Bram Fischer Building 

• Finalise Urban Open Space Framework 

• Develop a draft Strategic Environmental Management Plan (SEMP) for MLM 

• Draft 2 environmental by-laws  

• Develop a SOER procedure manual 

• Insufficient staff and budget  

• Environmental Management tools developed are not optimally utilized 

• Sustainable development not as yet integrated into all MLM functions 

    

Analysis of the 

Function: 

  

1 Number and cost to employer of all environmental 

management personnel: 

 R (000s) 

       

   - Professional (Directors / Managers) 3  

   - Non-professional (Clerical / Administrative) 1  

   - Temporary 0  

   - Contract 0  
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Function: Economic Development and Planning 
Sub Function: Planning and Development 
   

Reporting 
Level 

Detail 

    
Overview: To facilitate and implement Urban Planning and Environmental Management Strategies  
    
Description of 
the Activity: 

To create conditions within Mangaung that will enable self-reliant, proud and strong communities 
to thrive within an integrated and sustainable urban and rural environment. 

   
The key issues for 2004/05 
• Insufficient land and unmanaged urbanization 
• Need for service process improvements 
• Need for standardization of land use management  
• Need for the development of an integrated transport system 

    
        
Analysis of the 
Function: 

     

1 Number and cost to employer of all planning personnel:  R (000s) 
      7 951 
   - Professional (Directors / Managers) 19  
   - Non-professional (Clerical / Administrative) 9  
   - Temporary 0  
   - Contract 0  

2 Detail and cost of other urban renewal strategies:  R (000s) 
  Subdivision of approx 150 erven in Botshabelo   100 000 
       
   - Number of Building Inspectors 21 2 902 
   - Temporary  0   
   - Contract  0   

3 Details of building plans:     
   - Number of building plans approved 5 731 107 456 
   - Value of building plans approved    
        

Reporting 
Level 

Detail Total 

       

4 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 
  Implementation of Mangaung Activity Corridor Project 

(funds  received from National Department of Housing) 
1 36 000 
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Function: Economic Development and Planning 
Sub Function: Economic Development 
   

Reporting 
Level 

Detail 

   
Overview: The Economic Development sub-directorate has been facilitating the implementation of the 

Mangaung EDS. 
Multi-stakeholder Project Steering Committees have been established for each of the 6 catalyst 
projects: 
• N8 Corridor  
• Tourism Development  
• Agriculture development 
• Transport Logistics HUB 
• SMME Service Centre 
• Investment and incentive programme 
A further priority for the Economic Development Sub-directorate has been to assist with the 
finalization of the CBD Masterplan and the facilitation of the CBD Stakeholder Forum.  Flagship 
projects emerging from the CBD Masterplan will be implemented in 2005-2006 

   
Description of 
the Activity: 

The function of economic development within the municipality is administered as follows and 
includes: 
  

  The following is a summary of progress in terms of the implementation of the Mangaung Economic 
Development Strategy (EDS) 
 
N8 Development Corridor 
The N8 Development Corridor is a development spine that is aligned with economic development 
principles.  The aim is to stimulate increased activity in existing economic nodes and to 
development new economic nodes.  The corridor is based on the “bead on a string” concept.  
Furthermore the N8 aims to address spatial restructuring by integrating the municipal area along 
economic objectives.   As such the revised SDF highlights this project as an important spatial 
initiative.   
 
This major project has several facets and it addresses various economic sectors.  The project runs 
beyond the municipal boundaries and links with Mantsopa municipality and with Maseru, Lesotho.  
A detailed development framework is being put together for the N8 Corridor.  Funds for this 
development framework were recently approved by the DBSA.  Due to the enormity of the project, 
several stakeholders participate in the Steering Committee.   
These stakeholders include: 
• South African National Roads Agency LTD (SANRAL) 
• Airports Company of South Africa (ACSA) 
• Interstate Bus Lines (IBL) 
• Free State Province- Premier’s Office 
• ABSA 
• Free State Development Corporation (FDC) 
• Free State Provincial Department of Roads, Transport  and Public Works 
• Free State Provincial Department of Tourism, Environment and Economic Affairs 
• Free State Provincial Department of Agriculture 
• South African Police Service (SAPS) 
• Hentiq (Owners of Mandelaview) 
• Transnet 
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• Motheo District Municipality (MDM) 
• Mangaung Local Municipality (MLM) 
• Bloemfontein Chamber of Commerce and Industry (BCCI) 
• Development bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) 
• Phumelela Investments (Owners of the Bloemfontein Racecourse) 
• We Care rail (Empowerment group interested in reviving the railway line) 
 
All these stakeholders have submitted, in writing, to MLM their statement of intent for participating 
in the Steering Committee.  A Co-operation agreement is being finalized and will be signed shortly.  
This is an attempt to formalize the workings of the Steering committee.  
 
As part of the EDS process, the business plan for the project showed the project delineation and 
defined the vision of the project.  10 Activity Nodes have been identified: 
• Bloemfontein CBD Golf Course/Race Course (leisure/recreation- tourism) 
• Transwerk area (transport & logistics, freight and  warehousing) 
• Airport (transport & tourism) 
• Bloemdustria (industrial development) 
• Mandela View (residential) 
• Rustfontein Dam/ Sannaspos (eco-tourism) 
• Botshabelo Industrial Area (industrial development ) 
• Thaba Nchu agricultural land (agriculture and agro -processing) 
• Thaba Nchu Sun/airstrip (recreation/tourism)  
 
With funding received from the DBSA for the planning and implementation framework for the N8 
project, MLM made a call for proposals from individuals or institutions who are interested in 
finalizing this on behalf of MLM.  The closing date for proposals was the 15 August 2005.  
Proposals were evaluated and adjudicated, and a Service Provider appointed to start work in 
October 2005. 
 
Rural and Agriculture Development 
A comprehensive rural development programme was developed during the IDP review process 
 
In terms of agriculture, a MOU was signed between the Mangaung Local Municipality, National 
African Farmers Union and the University of the Free State in December 2004 to co-operate 
around agriculture development in the area.  A co-operation agreement together with a funding 
agreement is being finalised for signature.  The Lengau Agri-centre is one of the main projects that 
will be implemented under the auspices of this agreement.  This experiential training farm will 
assist emerging farmers to commercialise their operations.  To date some emerging farmers have 
been trained on auctioning of livestock.  They were then afforded an opportunity to sell and buy 
livestock at an auction that took place in March 2005. 
 
Other agriculture development initiatives are also underway in the municipal area in co- operation 
with partners such as the Free State Department of Agriculture.  One of these projects is a mohair-
processing business that both MLM and the DoA are assisting. The woman-headed enterprise 
employs more than 50 people and she also conducts training for those who wish to start similar 
businesses in the province.  MLM has assisted the entrepreneur to locate to a factory in the 
Bloemdustria area.  Her business is one of the projects supported by the Free State Premier. 
 
On smaller scale, attempts are being made to better manage the commonages in the area.  Many 
of the commonages have now been fenced off and water troughs and dipping tanks have been 
installed in some instances.  Additional commonages are required and suitable land is being 
sought.  Training for emerging farmers on brand marking was conducted by the UFS.  MLM has 
now appointed one of the trainees of this programme as a contractor to conduct the brand marking 
of livestock in the commonages.  Some of the local farmers were assisted with repairs to their 
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windmills when water shortage was a problem.  Funding for drought relief assistance was received 
from Motheo District Municipality to assist local farmers. 
 
Tourism  
A Tourism development framework has been put together.  A strategic co-ordinating committee 
comprising of Motheo District Municipality, MLM, Free State Department of Tourism, Environment 
and Economic Affairs (DTEEA), Tourism Entrepreneurial Programme (TEP), Mangaung Tourism, 
Central University of Technology - Tourism and Hospitality School are driving the projects 
emanating from this framework.  One of the priority projects identified is that of a tourism audit.   
The tourism audit aims to get primary data on all facilities and tourism attractions in the area so 
that a tourism profile of the area is compiled as a prelude to a comprehensive tourism strategy for 
the city.  The terms of reference for the tourism audit were compiled and MLM put out a call for 
proposals.  The proposals were evaluated and adjudicated and the Service Provider will 
commence with the audit in October 2005. 

 
The private sector is being approached to co-fund the tourism DVD of the Mangaung area. 
 
The restructuring of Mangaung Tourism has been an important component of the tourism 
programme.  A vibrant and well functioning tourism agency is important if tourism in the city is to 
grow and reach its true potential.  The final outcome of this process will be for a service level 
agreement to be signed between MLM and Mangaung Tourism. 
 
Transport Logistics Hub 
The aim of this project is to establish a transport /logistics cum freight centre in Mangaung.  This 
builds on the area’s competitive advantage as an important distribution point.  However, due to 
private sector lack of interest in this project, we have been unable to establish a Steering 
Committee.  The approach was then for MLM to identify and purchase suitable land for the centre 
and then put this out on tender with specific development criteria.  Land was identified along the 
N1, N6 and N8 as possibilities.  The most suitable pocket of land is the Transwerk land and 
discussions with Transnet are therefore important i f this project is going to get off the ground.  
 
A business plan for this project has been developed.  One of the next actions for this project will 
also be to commission a study on the market dynamics of the city region and national contribution.  
The intention is also to make linkages with coastal cities Port Elizabeth and East London.  A 
further aim is to start positioning the city as a major transport hub in central South Africa.  
 
SMME Service Centre 
The EDS identifies the SMME Sector as a key driver of the Mangaung local economy.  Support to 
this sector is therefore essential.  Other key strategies highlighted in the EDS are that of human 
resource development and the promotion of entrepreneurship.  The EDS highlights the need for 
quality business development support.  The approach that MLM has taken is to establish a SMME 
Service Centre that will co-ordinate and ensure quality business development support to SMMEs 
in the area.   
 
Investment and incentives programme 
This project is seen as key if the city is to promote investment and also to retain and expand local 
investment.  MLM currently has a set of ad hoc incentives that it offers to businesses.  Comments 
were received from the business community on the investment framework document that was put 
together by MLM.  The project is being co-ordinated by an internal team comprising of General 
Managers from various directorates.  A draft incentive and investment promotion policy was 
drafted which was presented to a Section -80 committee for input.   The policy will now go to 
Council for adoption.   An implementation plan linked to this policy is  being finalised 
 
Other initiatives such as the Urban development Zone (UDZ) tax incentive are being jointly 
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managed by the Economic Development sub -directorate and the Planning sub-directorate.  
Several enquiries have been received with regards to this tax.  

   
Analysis of the 
Function: 

 
  

    

1 Number and cost to employer of all economic 
development personnel: 

  R (000s) 

   4.2 m 
  - Professional (Directors / Managers) 3   
  - Non-professional (Clerical / Administrative) 7  
  - Temporary 0  
  - Contract 0  
 - Learnership  6 150  

2 Detail and cost of other urban renewal strategies:   R (000s) 
    
 Development of a CBD Master plan   1.2 m 
 Upgrading of public ablution facilities  228 000 
 Renovation of historic buildings  220 000 
 Provision of hawking facilities  210 000 
 N8 corridor   

3 Detail and cost of other rural development strategies:   R (000s) 
    334 000 
 Fencing of commonages  142 000 
 Branding of livestock in commonages  120 000 
 Scoping report for establishment of animal pounds  12 000 
 Agricultural equipment  60 000 
 SMME Service centre  930 000 

4 Number of people employed through job creation 
schemes: 

    

   - Short-term employment 2 449   
   - Long-term employment 0   

 
Function: Economic Development and Planning 

Sub Function: Housing 

  

Reporting 

Level 
Detail 

    

Overview: Government’s primary aim with the introduction of housing subsidies is to in the 
first instance provide security of tenure and access to basic services as well as 
starter formal structure (house) to the poorest of the poor. 
 

Provision of adequate housing is measured by certain core factors: legal security of tenure; the 

availability of services; materials, facilities and infrastructure; affordability location and cultural 

adequacy.  

    

Description of 

the Activity: 

The function of provision of housing within the municipality is administered as follows and includes: 

 

  Housing Act (No 107 of 1997) defines housing development as:  
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The establishment and maintenance of habitable, stable and sustainable public and private 

residential environments to ensure viable households and communities in area or areas allowing 

convenient access to economic opportunities, health, educational and social amenities in which all 

citizens and permanent residents of the Republic will, on a progressive basis, have access to: 

• Permanent residential structures with secure tenure, ensuring internal and external privacy 

and providing adequate protection against the elements; and 

• Portable water, adequate sanitary facilities and domestic energy supply.  

   

Analysis of the 

Function: 

     

1 Number and cost of all personnel associated with 

provision of municipal housing: 

  R (000s) 

   - Professional (Architects/Consultants) 74 15 132 310 

   - Field (Supervisors/Foremen)     

   - Office (Clerical/Administration) 70   

   - Non-professional (blue collar, outside workforce)     

   - Temporary  0   

   - Contract  0   

2 Number and total value of housing projects planned and 

current: 

  R (000s) 

    - Current (financial year after year reported on)  0   

   - Planned (future years)  0   

3 Total type, number and value of housing provided:   R (000s) 

  Project linked and People Housing Process 3 450 110 055  

       

5 Estimated backlog in number of (and costs to build) 

housing: 

67 247  R (000s) 

       

6 Type of habitat breakdown:      

   - number of people living in a house or brick structure 109 355   

   - number of people living in an informal dwelling or shack   67 247   

        

Reporting 

Level 
Detail Total 

7 Type and number of grants and subsidies received:   R (000s) 

     

  Rodenbeck 1 1000   

  Mangaung Ext 33 and JB Mafora iii 1000   

  Heidedal Ext 11 & 12 400   

  Botshabelo sections A & T 200   

  Botshabelo sections G, H & V 200   

  Botshabelo sections U, W & V 400   

  Botshabelo sections F & J 250   
 



 

 

 

 
 
 

Mangaung Local Municipality 
Contact Details 

Bram Fischer Building 
Cnr Nelson Mandela Drive & Markgraaf Street 

Bloemfontein 
P.O. Box 3704 

Bloemfontein, 9300 
 

Office of the City Manager 
Tel: (051) 405 8212 
Fax: (051) 405 8149 

 
e-mail: teboho@civic.mangaung.co.za 

 
www.mangaung.co.za  


